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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Wednesday, November 25, 2020

The Standing Senate Committee on National Finance met with
videoconference this day at 1 p.m. [ET] to examine and report
upon the expenditures set out in the Main Estimates and the
Supplementary Estimates (B) for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2021.

Senator Percy Mockler (Chair) in the chair.
[English]

The Chair: Before we begin, I’d like to remind senators and
witnesses to please keep your microphones muted at all times
unless recognized by name by the chair.

[Translation]

Honourable senators, should any technical challenges arise,
particularly in relation to interpretation, please signal this to the
chair or the clerk and we’ll work to resolve the issue. If you
experience other technical challenges, please contact the ISD
service desk with the technical assistance number provided.

[English]

Honourable senators and participants, the use of online
platforms does not guarantee speech privacy or prevent
eavesdropping. Therefore, while conducting committee
meetings, all participants should be aware of these limitations
and restrict the possible disclosure of sensitive, private and
privileged Senate information — participants should do so in a
private area and be mindful of their surroundings.

We will now begin the official portion of our meeting. My
name is Percy Mockler, a senator from New Brunswick and chair
of the committee. I would like to introduce the members of the
committee who are participating in this meeting: Senator Boehm,
Senator Dagenais, Senator Deacon (Ontario), Senator Duncan,
Senator Forest, Senator Galvez, Senator Klyne, Senator
Loffreda, Senator Marshall, Senator Richards and Senator Smith.

I wish to welcome all of you and viewers across the country
who may be watching the Finance Committee.

Honourable senators, this afternoon we begin our study of the
expenditures set out in the Main Estimates and the
Supplementary Estimates (B) for the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2021, which was referred to us by the Senate.

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le mercredi 25 novembre 2020

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des finances nationales se
réunit aujourd’hui, a 13 heures (HE), avec vidéoconférence, pour
étudier, afin d’en faire rapport, les dépenses prévues dans le
Budget principal des dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses (B) pour I’exercice se terminant le 31 mars 2021.

Le sénateur Percy Mockler (président) occupe le fauteuil.
[Traduction]

Le président : Avant que nous commencions, j’aimerais
rappeler aux sénateurs et aux témoins qu’ils sont priés de mettre
leur microphone en sourdine en tout temps, a moins que le
président ne leur donne la parole.

[Frangais]

Honorables sénateurs, en cas de difficultés techniques,
notamment en matiére d’interprétation, veuillez le signaler au
président ou a la greffiére et nous nous efforcerons de résoudre
le probléme. Si vous éprouvez d’autres difficultés techniques,
veuillez communiquer avec le Centre de services de la DSI a
I’aide du numéro qui vous a été fourni pour le soutien technique.

[Traduction]

Je précise aux honorables sénateurs et aux participants que
I’utilisation de plateformes en ligne ne garantit pas la protection
des conversations et |’absence d’écoute clandestine. Par
conséquent, au cours des réunions du comité, tous les
participants doivent étre conscients de ces contraintes et limiter
la divulgation d’informations sensibles, privées et confidentielles
du Sénat — les participants doivent s’installer dans un endroit
privé et étre attentifs a leur environnement.

Nous allons maintenant débuter la portion officielle de notre
réunion. Je m’appelle Percy Mockler. Je suis sénateur du
Nouveau-Brunswick et président du comité. J’aimerais présenter
les membres du comité qui participent a la réunion : le sénateur
Boehm, le sénateur Dagenais, la sénatrice Deacon (Ontario), la
sénatrice Duncan, le sénateur Forest, la sénatrice Galvez, le
sénateur Klyne, le sénateur Loffreda, la sénatrice Marshall, le
sénateur Richards et le sénateur Smith.

Bienvenue a tous, bienvenue a tous les Canadiens qui nous
regardent.

Honorables sénateurs, nous commencons aujourd’hui notre
étude des dépenses prévues dans le Budget principal des
dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) pour
I’exercice se terminant le 31 mars 2021, budgets qui nous ont été
renvoyés par le Sénat.
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For this first panel, we welcome representatives from the
Public Health Agency of Canada: Carlo Beaudoin, Chief
Financial Officer; accompanied by Karen McKinnon, Acting
Vice-President, Health Promotion and Chronic Disease
Prevention Branch; Peter Linkletter, Vice-President, National
Emergency Strategic Stockpile; and Kimberly Elmslie, Vice-
President, Infectious Disease Prevention and Control Branch.

We also welcome, honourable senators, from Health Canada:
Edward de Sousa, Acting Assistant Deputy Minister and Chief
Financial Officer; accompanied by Ed Morgan, Director General,
Policy, Planning and International Affairs Directorate; Megan
Bettle, Director General, COVID-19 Regulatory Response Team;
Nancy Hamzawi, Assistant Deputy Minister, Policy and
Strategic Integration, Testing, Contact Tracing and Data
Strategies Secretariat; and Marcel Saulnier, Associate Assistant
Deputy Minister, Strategic Policy Branch.

Finally, from Public Services and Procurement Canada, we
welcome: Wojciech (Wojo) Zielonka, Chief Financial Officer,
Finance and Administration Branch; accompanied by Michael
Mills, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister, Procurement
Branch; André Fillion, Assistant Deputy Minister, Defence and
Marine Procurement, Acquisitions Programs; and Stephanie
Kirkland, Assistant Deputy Minister, Pay Administration
Branch.

Welcome to all of you, and thank you for accepting our
invitation. We have been informed that there will be opening
remarks. Being mindful of the five-minute rule, Mr. Zielonka,
you have the floor.

[Translation]

Wojciech (Wojo) Zielonka, Chief Financial Officer,
Finance and Administration Branch, Public Services and
Procurement Canada: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and
committee members.

[English)

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this Senate
committee to discuss Public Services and Procurement Canada’s
Main Estimates and Supplementary Estimates (B) for 2020-21.
In our Main Estimates, PSPC is requesting $4.048 billion. More
than $3 billion of that amount will be spent on property and
infrastructure, including the Parliamentary Precinct.

Pour la premiére partie de la réunion, nous accueillons des
représentants de 1’Agence de la santé publique du Canada :
M. Carlo Beaudoin, dirigeant principal des finances. Il est
accompagné de Mme Karen McKinnon, vice-présidente par
intérim de la Direction générale de la promotion de la santé et de
la prévention des maladies chroniques; de M. Peter Linkletter,
vice-président de la Réserve nationale stratégique d’urgence; et
de Mme Kimberly Elmslie, vice-présidente de la Direction
générale de la prévention et du contrle des maladies
infectieuses.

Nous accueillons également, honorables sénateurs, des
représentants de Santé Canada : M. Edward de Sousa, sous-
ministre adjoint et dirigeant principal des finances par intérim. Il
est accompagné de M. Ed Morgan, directeur général de la
Direction des politiques, de la planification et des affaires
internationales; de Mme Megan Bettle, directrice générale de
I’Equipe  d’intervention  réglementaire =~ COVID-19; de
Mme Nancy Hamzawi, sous-ministre adjointe de Politiques et
intégration stratégique au Secrétariat du dépistage, recherche de
contacts et stratégie des données; et de M. Marcel Saulnier, sous-
ministre adjoint associ¢ de la Direction générale de la politique
stratégique.

Enfin, nous accueillons des représentants de Services publics
et Approvisionnement Canada : M. Wojciech (Wojo) Zielonka,
chef des services financiers de la Direction générale des finances
et de ’administration. Il est accompagné de M. Michael Mills,
sous-ministre adjoint délégué de la Direction générale de
I’approvisionnement; de M. André Fillion, sous-ministre adjoint
de I’ Approvisionnement maritime et de défense, Programmes des
approvisionnements; et de Mme Stephanie Kirkland, sous-
ministre adjointe de la Direction générale de 1’administration de
la paye.

Bienvenue a tous. Je vous remercie d’avoir accepté notre
invitation. Nous avons ¢été informés qu’il y aurait des
déclarations préliminaires. La parole est a vous, monsieur
Zielonka. Vous disposez de cinq minutes.

[Frangais]

Wojciech (Wojo) Zielonka, chef des services financiers,
Direction générale des finances et de 1’administration,
Services publics et Approvisionnement Canada : Monsieur le
président et membres du comité, bonjour.

[Traduction]

Je suis heureux de comparaitre devant ce comité sénatorial
aujourd’hui pour discuter du Budget principal des dépenses et du
Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de Services publics et
Approvisionnement Canada pour ’exercice 2020-2021. Dans
son Budget principal des dépenses, SPAC cherche a obtenir un
financement de 4 048 milliards de dollars. De cette somme, plus
de 3 milliards de dollars seront injectés dans les biens et les
infrastructures, y compris ceux de la Cité parlementaire.
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Payments and accounting are $316.2 million; $170.8 million
for government-wide support programs, including the
Translation Bureau; $206.8 million for the purchase of goods
and services; $4.1 million for the Procurement Ombudsman; and
$281.7 million for internal services.

In the Supplementary Estimates (B), PSPC is asking for
$817.8 million, which includes $720.8 million in voted
appropriations and close to $100 million in statutory
appropriations. The bulk of those funds will be used to support
Canada’s ongoing response to COVID-19.

[Translation]

For the last several months, PSPC has been working to support
Canada’s response to the evolving pandemic. Part of the
department’s role is procuring personal protective equipment and
other medical supplies for front-line health care workers. To
date, more than two billion individual pieces of equipment have
been secured for the immediate and long-term response.

[English]

PSPC remains focused on equipping health care providers, but
there are also significant needs for PPE in other essential service
sectors such as transportation, energy and food production. To
help meet these needs, PSPC launched the Essential Services
Contingency Reserve.

[Translation]

This reserve acts as an emergency backstop and gives
temporary and urgent access to personal protective equipment as
well as other supplies on a cost-recovery basis. Public Services
and Procurement Canada is requesting $500 million in its
Supplementary Estimates (B) to further support this important
initiative.

[English]

I will also mention that PSPC maintains a supply hub to
connect Canadian organizations from coast to coast to coast with
federal, provincial, territorial and other resources and
information on buying and selling PPE. The hub offers important
guidance on what PPE is needed for specific occupations and
work settings.

En outre, 316,2 millions de dollars sont destinés aux paiements
et a la comptabilité; 170,8 millions de dollars aux programmes
de soutien a 1’échelle du gouvernement, y compris le Bureau de
la traduction; 206,8 millions de dollars a ’achat de biens et de
services; 4,1 millions de dollars a [I’ombudsman de
I’approvisionnement et 281,7 millions de dollars aux services
internes.

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B), SPAC
souhaite obtenir un financement de 817,8 millions de dollars, ce
qui comprend 720,8 millions de dollars de crédits approuvés et
pres de 100 millions de dollars de crédits 1égislatifs. La majeure
partie de ces fonds sera utilisée pour soutenir la réponse du
Canada a la pandémie de COVID-19.

[Frangais]

Depuis plusieurs mois, SPAC s’efforce de soutenir la réponse
du Canada a cette pandémie en pleine évolution. Une partie du
role du ministére est d’acheter de 1’équipement de protection
individuelle et d’autres fournitures médicales pour les
travailleurs de la santé de premiére ligne. A ce jour, plus de 2
milliards de piéces d’équipement ont été obtenues pour soutenir
la réponse immédiate et a long terme.

[Traduction]

SPAC continue de se concentrer sur la fourniture
d’équipement aux prestataires de soins de santé, mais il existe
également des besoins importants en équipement de protection
individuelle dans d’autres secteurs de services essentiels tels que
les transports, 1’énergie et la production alimentaire. Pour aider a
répondre a ces besoins, SPAC a mis sur pied la Réserve
d’urgence pour les services essentiels.

[Frangais)

Cette réserve sert de filet de sécurité et donne un acces
temporaire et urgent a de 1’équipement de protection individuelle
ainsi qu’a d’autres fournitures sur la base du recouvrement des
couts. Services publics et Approvisionnement Canada demande
un financement de 500 millions de dollars dans le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B) pour soutenir davantage cette
importante initiative.

[Traduction]

Je mentionnerai également que SPAC gére un carrefour sur
I’approvisionnement pour mettre les organisations canadiennes
d’un océan a l’autre en contact avec des ressources fédérales,
provinciales et territoriales ainsi qu’avec d’autres ressources et
informations pour ’achat et la vente d’équipement de protection
individuelle. Le carrefour offre d’importants conseils sur
I’équipement de protection individuelle nécessaire dans des
professions et des milieux de travail précis.
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In addition to PPE, the department has been purchasing rapid
test kits on behalf of the Public Health Agency of Canada.

[Translation]

The department is also continuing to aggressively pursue
vaccine candidates on behalf of the agency. We’re also seeking
out logistic solutions so that the government can start delivering
doses as soon as Health Canada authorizes them to be used.

Mr. Chair, while Canada’s COVID-19 pandemic response is
the department’s number one priority, our dedicated public
servants are continuing to deliver other vital services during this
challenging time.

[English]

For example, significant progress has been made in stabilizing
the Phoenix pay system and eliminating the backlog of
transactions. As of October 28, the backlog of transactions with
financial implications has decreased by 71% since the peak in
January 2018.

We are also continuing important work to purchase the
supplies and equipment that are vital to the Canadian Armed
Forces and the Canadian Coast Guard. For example, the
competitive process to acquire advanced fighter jets is moving
forward, and we anticipate a contract award by 2022, with the
first replacement aircraft delivered as early as 2025. At the same
time, work under the National Shipbuilding Strategy is
happening across the country. On that front, we are responding
to evolving federal shipbuilding requirements by carrying out a
process to select a third partner shipyard under the NSS.

[Translation]

Another major file where work is continuing is in PSPC’s
portfolio of Crown-owned real property. Building on the
successful completion of the West Block and Senate of Canada
Building in the Parliamentary Precinct, PSPC will continue to
advance work on the Centre Block and the West Memorial
Building, which will allow it to accommodate the Supreme Court
of Canada during that building’s renovations.

[English)

Through the Supplementary Estimates (B), the department is
requesting $285 million to maintain its existing Crown-owned
office facilities and related real property levels of service to
federal departments and agencies.

En plus de I’équipement de protection individuelle, le
ministére a acheté des trousses de dépistage rapide pour le
compte de 1I’Agence de la santé publique du Canada.

[Frangais]

Le ministére continue également a rechercher assidiment des
candidats-vaccins au nom de I’agence. Nous recherchons aussi
des solutions logistiques afin que le gouvernement puisse
commencer a livrer des doses dés que Santé Canada en aura
donné I’autorisation.

Monsieur le président, bien que la réponse du Canada a la
pandémie de COVID-19 soit la priorité absolue du ministére, nos
fonctionnaires dévoués continuent de fournir d’autres services
essentiels en cette période difficile.

[Traduction]

Par exemple, des progrés considérables ont été réalisés a
I’égard de la stabilisation du systtme de paye Phénix et
I’¢limination de D’arriéré des mouvements en attente. Au 28
octobre, l’arriéré des mouvements ayant des incidences
financiéres a diminué de 71 % depuis le pic observé
en janvier 2018.

Nous poursuivons également des travaux importants visant
I’achat de fournitures et d’équipement de premiére importance
pour les Forces armées canadiennes et la Garde cotiére
canadienne. Par exemple, le processus concurrentiel pour
I’acquisition d’avions chasseurs de pointe continue d’avancer, et
nous prévoyons qu’un contrat sera attribué d’ici 2022. Le
premier appareil de remplacement devrait d’ailleurs étre livré dés
2025. Parallélement, des travaux se poursuivent partout au pays
dans le cadre de la Stratégie nationale de construction navale. A
cet égard, nous répondons a 1’évolution des besoins fédéraux en
matiére de construction navale en menant un processus visant a
sélectionner un troisiéme chantier naval partenaire dans le cadre
de la stratégie.

[Frangais]

Un autre dossier important sur lequel nous continuons a
travailler est celui du portefeuille des biens immobiliers
appartenant a I’Etat de SPAC. Maintenant que les projets de
I’édifice de I’Ouest et de 1’Edifice du Sénat du Canada dans la
Cité parlementaire ont ét¢é menés a bien avec succes, SPAC
continuera a faire avancer les travaux visant 1’édifice du Centre
et ’Edifice commémoratif de I’Ouest, qui permettra d’accueillir
la Cour supréme du Canada pendant la rénovation de cet édifice.

[Traduction]

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B), le ministére
demande un financement de 285 millions de dollars afin
d’assurer I’entretien de ses immeubles a bureaux existants qui
appartiennent a 1’Etat et de maintenir les niveaux de service
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The Chair: Mr. Zielonka, your five minutes is up, so I will
need to move on. Thank you very much. You will certainly be
asked some questions.

Mr. de Sousa, the floor is yours.

Edward de Sousa, Acting Assistant Deputy Minister and
Chief Financial Officer, Health Canada: Good afternoon,
Mr. Chair and members of the Standing Senate Committee on
National Finance.

Thank you for inviting me to discuss Health Canada’s 2020-21
Main Estimates and Supplementary Estimates (B). I welcome the
opportunity to highlight some of the department’s priorities and
to share with you some of the work the department is doing to
support the health of Canadians. With me today are several
colleagues in the event you have questions that require more
detailed program responses.

I’ll jump ahead. For the Main Estimates, there is $2.7 billion
in proposed spending, which represents an increase of
approximately $206 million, or 8.2%, over 2019-20.

Through these estimates, Health Canada will continue to
provide national leadership to support a health care system that
offers appropriate and effective health care to Canadians. The
department will remain focused on helping Canadians lead
healthier lives by working to protect them from unsafe health,
consumer and commercial products and substances and continue
to take action to modernize regulations for food and health
products.

I will begin by providing a summary of the $2.7 billion in
proposed spending in the Main Estimates, followed by an
overview of the Supplementary Estimates (B).

Some of the significant areas of investment in the Main
Estimates are as follows: Health Canada will spend
approximately $1.25 billion, an increase of $150 million from
last year, to strengthen Canada’s home and community care and
support improved access to home and community care, as well as
mental health and addiction services for Canadians. Funding is
provided to each province and territory through bilateral
agreements, and this is a continuation of the work announced in
Budget 2017.

immobiliers ministéres

fédéraux.

connexes pour les et organismes

Le président : Monsieur Zielonka, les cinq minutes sont
écoulées. Je devrai donc céder la parole au prochain témoin.
Merci beaucoup. On vous posera certainement quelques
questions.

Monsieur de Sousa, la parole est a vous.

Edward de Sousa, sous-ministre adjoint et dirigeant
principal des finances par intérim, Santé Canada : Bonjour,
monsieur le président. Bonjour aux membres du Comité
sénatorial permanent des finances nationales également.

Merci de m’avoir invité a examiner le Budget principal des
dépenses de 2020-2021 et le Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses (B) de 2020-2021 de Sant¢ Canada. Je profite de
I’occasion pour souligner quelques-unes des priorités du
ministére et vous faire part d’une partie des travaux qu’il
accomplit en faveur de la santé des Canadiens. Plusieurs
collégues m’accompagnent aujourd’hui en vue de répondre en
détail a vos questions sur les programmes.

Je vais passer tout de suite au Budget principal des dépenses.
Dans ce dernier figure un montant de 2,7 milliards de dollars en
dépenses proposées qui représente une augmentation d’environ
206 millions de dollars, ou 8,2 %, au cours de I’exercice
2019-2020.

Grace a ce budget des dépenses, Santé Canada continuera
d’assurer un leadership national pour appuyer un systéme de
soins de santé qui offre des services de santé appropriés et
efficaces aux Canadiens. Le ministére demeurera déterminé a
aider les Canadiens a mener une vie plus saine en s’effor¢ant de
les protéger contre les substances et les produits commerciaux et
de consommation dangereux pour la santé, et a continuer de
prendre des mesures pour moderniser la réglementation des
aliments et des produits de santé.

Je présenterai tout d’abord un résumé des dépenses proposées
dans le Budget principal des dépenses, qui s’élévent a 2,7
milliards de dollars, et ensuite un apercu des éléments du Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B).

Je wvais parler de certains des secteurs d’investissement
importants du Budget principal des dépenses. Santé Canada
dépensera environ 1,25 milliard de dollars, soit une
augmentation de 150 millions de dollars depuis 1’année derniére,
pour renforcer [I’initiative  d’amélioration des  soins
communautaires et a domicile au Canada et pour appuyer 1’accés
amélioré aux soins communautaires et a domicile, ainsi que les
services en matieére de santé mentale et de toxicomanie pour les
Canadiens. Un financement est offert a chaque province et a
chaque territoire dans le cadre d’accords bilatéraux a la suite des
travaux annoncés dans le budget de 2017.
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The department will also spend $24.8 million for bringing
innovation to regulations. This funding will be used to
modernize the department’s regulatory frameworks by making
them more agile and responsive to an innovative environment
while ultimately ensuring the health and safety of Canadians.

These estimates also include an additional $21.2 million to
continue to address the opioid crisis in Canada. With this
funding, the department will continue to focus on reducing
stigma, increasing access to evidence-based treatment services
and identifying barriers and opportunities for expanding access
to a safer drug supply.

Health Canada also has a $17.5 million increase compared to
last year to continue to fulfill the government’s commitment to
legalizing, strictly regulating and restricting access to cannabis
by supporting community-based Indigenous organizations in
leading public education awareness, harm reduction and
prevention activities.

Finally, with regard to the 2020-21 Main Estimates, Health
Canada has been provided $35.1 million for the settlement of
collective bargaining agreements.

With regard to the 2020-21 Supplementary Estimates (B),
Health Canada has a net increase of $968.8 million, bringing its
total proposed authorities to date to $4 billion for the current
fiscal year.

The majority of this funding is required to support the
immediate health response to COVID-19 announced by the
Government of Canada on March 11, 2020.

The COVID-19 pandemic has created unprecedented
challenges for Canadian health systems. Health Canada is
playing a key role in the development and implementation of the
responses to the pandemic at the regulatory, operational and
policy levels.

These supplementary estimates are comprised of voted
appropriations of $737.6 million, statutory appropriations of
$230.8 million and approximately $400,000 in net transfers to
and from other government departments and agencies.

In voted appropriations, Health Canada will be receiving
$318.9 million for COVID-19 medical research. This is to ensure
Canadians have access to the drugs they need to treat symptoms
of COVID-19 and to invest in regulatory capacity for clinical
trials, authorizations, drug shortages, compliance and
enforcement activities. Operational support is necessary to

Le ministére affectera également une somme de 24,8 millions
de dollars pour I’intégration de 1’innovation a la réglementation.
Ce financement servira a moderniser les cadres de
réglementation du ministére en les rendant plus souples et
adaptés au milieu innovateur tout en protégeant, en définitive, la
santé et la sécurité des Canadiens.

Ce budget des dépenses comprend également un montant
supplémentaire de 21,2 millions de dollars pour poursuivre la
lutte contre la crise des opioides au Canada. Griace a ce
financement, le ministére continuera de réduire la stigmatisation
et d’accroitre I’acces aux services de traitement fondés sur des
données probantes, et de cerner les obstacles et les possibilités
pour élargir 1’accés a un approvisionnement plus sécuritaire en
médicaments.

Santé Canada dispose également d’une augmentation de 17,5
millions de dollars comparativement a 1’année derniére pour
continuer a remplir 1’engagement du gouvernement visant a
légaliser, a réglementer et a restreindre rigoureusement 1’acces
au cannabis, et ce, en appuyant des organisations
communautaires et autochtones en vue de diriger des initiatives
de sensibilisation du public, de réduction des méfaits et de
prévention.

Enfin, en ce qui concerne le Budget principal des dépenses de
2020-2021, Santé Canada a regu la somme de 35,1 millions de
dollars pour le réglement de conventions collectives.

Pour ce qui est du Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de
2020-2021, Santé Canada a obtenu une augmentation nette de
968.,8 millions de dollars, portant ses autorisations proposées a
ce jour a 4 milliards de dollars pour I’exercice actuel.

La majeure partie de ce financement est requise pour appuyer
la réponse sanitaire immédiate a la COVID-19 annoncée par le
gouvernement du Canada le 11 mars 2020.

La pandémie de la COVID-19 a créé des défis sans précédent
pour les systémes de santé canadiens. Santé Canada joue un role
essentiel en ce qui concerne 1’élaboration et la mise en ceuvre des
interventions contre la pandémie sur les plans réglementaire,
opérationnel et politique.

Ce budget supplémentaire des dépenses comprend des crédits
approuvés s’élevant a 737,6 millions de dollars, des crédits
législatifs s’élevant a 230,8 millions de dollars et un montant
d’environ 400 000 $ en transferts nets en provenance d’autres
ministéres et organismes gouvernementaux et vers d’autres
ministéres et organismes gouvernementaux.

Pour ce qui est des crédits approuvés, Santé Canada recevra la
somme de 318,9 millions de dollars pour la recherche médicale
sur la COVID-19, afin de s’assurer que les Canadiens ont acces
aux médicaments dont ils ont besoin pour traiter les symptomes
de la COVID-19 et d’investir dans un pouvoir de réglementation
pour les essais cliniques, les autorisations, les pénuries de
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ensure that there is a coordinated and cohesive government
response to the pandemic.

Health Canada will also be receiving $315.1 million for the
Safe Restart Agreement, which covers federal investments in
testing, contact tracing and data management.

Funding of $100 million is being realigned from the
previously received statutory appropriations for drugs, medical
devices and virtual care. This is to continue the development and
launch of virtual care and mental health applications, facilitating
access to drugs and medical devices and sustaining operations
and coordination.

In addition, $3.7 million in funding is also being realigned
from the previously received statutory appropriations to support
Canada’s COVID-19 response. This is for specialized health
services, facilitating access to drugs and medical devices as well
as sustaining operations and coordination.

The statutory appropriation is a continuation of the provision
for Health Canada to access $221.2 million through the Public
Health Events of National Concern Payments Act. This amount
provides increases to the first two priorities and adjustments to
the last two where statutory funding is being transferred to
Health Canada’s voted appropriations.

This year has been a remarkable and challenging year unlike
any other. This proposed spending will ensure that the
Government of Canada can respond to the COVID pandemic and
continue to focus on important health priorities designed to result
in better health outcomes for all Canadians.

Thank you once again for inviting me to appear before the
committee today. I’'m pleased to answer any questions you may
have.

The Chair: To complete the presentations, Mr. Beaudoin,
please.

Carlo Beaudoin, Chief Financial Officer, Public Health
Agency of Canada: Mr. Chair, honourable senators, we would
like to thank you for inviting us today to present the Public
Health Agency of Canada’s Main Estimates for 2020-21 and
Supplementary Estimates (B) for 2020-21. We are pleased to
have the opportunity to discuss our resourcing plans with you.

médicaments et les activités de conformité et d’application de la
loi. Un soutien opérationnel est nécessaire afin d’assurer une
réponse gouvernementale coordonnée et cohérente a la
pandémie.

Santé Canada recevra également une somme de 315,1 millions
de dollars pour I’ Accord sur la relance sécuritaire, qui comprend
des investissements fédéraux pour les essais, la recherche des
contacts et la gestion des données.

Un financement de 100 millions de dollars est réaffecté des
crédits 1égislatifs obtenus précédemment pour les médicaments,
les instruments médicaux et les soins virtuels, afin de poursuivre
’¢laboration et le lancement d’applications de soins virtuels et
de santé mentale, de faciliter I’accés aux médicaments et aux
instruments médicaux, et d’assurer les opérations et la
coordination.

De plus, un financement de 3,7 millions de dollars est
également réaffecté des crédits législatifs obtenus précédemment
afin d’appuyer la réponse du Canada a la COVID-19. Ces fonds
sont destinés aux services de santé spécialisés et permettront de
faciliter I’accés aux médicaments et aux instruments médicaux et
d’assurer les opérations et la coordination.

Les crédits législatifs s’inscrivent dans la poursuite de la
prestation accordée a Santé Canada lui permettant d’avoir accés
a une somme de 221,2 millions de dollars par ’entremise de la
Loi sur les paiements relatifs aux événements de santé publique
d’intérét national. Ce montant comprend des sommes
additionnelles pour les deux premiéres priorités et des
redressements pour les deux derniéres, avec le transfert de fonds
1égislatifs vers les crédits approuvés de Santé Canada.

Cette année a ¢été une année particuliérement difficile et sans
précédent. Ces dépenses proposées permettront de s’assurer que
le gouvernement est en mesure de lutter contre la pandémie de
COVID et de continuer a se concentrer sur les priorités
essentielles en matiére de santé, et ce, afin d’obtenir de meilleurs
résultats en matiere de santé pour 1’ensemble des Canadiens.

Je vous remercie encore une fois de m’avoir invité a prendre la
parole devant le comité aujourd’hui. Je serai ravi de répondre a
toutes vos questions.

Le président : M. Beaudoin sera le dernier a faire un exposé.
Allez-y, s’il vous plait.

Carlo Beaudoin, dirigeant principal des finances, Agence
de la santé publique du Canada : Monsieur le président,
honorables sénateurs, nous souhaitons vous remercier de nous
avoir invités aujourd’hui a vous présenter le Budget principal des
dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de
I’Agence de la santé publique du Canada pour 2020-2021. Nous
sommes heureux d’avoir 1’occasion de discuter de nos plans de
ressourcement avec vous.



6:8 National Finance

25-11-2020

PHAC’s 2020-21 Main Estimates and Supplementary
Estimates (B) will capture the 2020-21 base budgets of the
agency as well as any significant budgetary changes since
Supplementary Estimates (A), on which we appeared earlier this
year.

The Public Health Agency of Canada’s 2020-21 Main
Estimates propose a net increase of $16.2 million from $625.6
million in 2019-20 to $641.8 million in 2020-21. This funding
includes $341.3 million in operating, $6.8 million in capital,
$250.8 million in grants and contributions, and statutory funding
of $42.9 million.

The major funding increases in Main Estimates include
funding to support the implementation of Canada’s first national
dementia strategy, $9.3 million; community-based projects to
address the challenges of dementia, $5.3 million; and addressing
the drug overdose crisis in Canada, $4.9 million.

The Supplementary Estimates (B) for the Public Health
Agency of Canada is seeking an increase of $18 billion to our
funding levels. With the approved Main Estimates and
Supplementary Estimates (A), this will bring agency total
authorities to nearly $21 billion for the 2020-21 fiscal year.

Supplementary Estimates (B) increase PHAC’s voted spending
authorities by nearly $9.26 billion in statutory spending and
statutory spending forecast by $8.78 billion. The Supplementary
Estimates (B) are seeking $9.07 billion in operating, $76.1
million in capital and $109 million in grants and contributions.

These increases to statutory spending authorities are mainly
due to spending under the Public Health Events of National
Concern Payments Act that was enacted in response to
COVID-19. This funding is needed primarily to fund the bulk
purchases of PPE, testing supplies, ventilators and vaccines to
meet the urgent needs of federal partners, including provinces
and territories. These bulk procurements are in support of large-
scale efforts to combat COVID-19.

The most significant funding changes in these Supplementary
Estimates (B) include funding for medical research and vaccine
development to support effective negotiations for vaccine
purchases and the procurement of key therapeutics, $9.2 billion;
funding to acquire protective gear and medical equipment

Le Budget principal des dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire
des dépenses (B) de 2020-2021 dresseront le portrait des budgets
de base de l’agence ainsi que des modifications budgétaires
significatives depuis que nous avons comparu devant votre
comité au sujet du Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (A) plus
tot cette année.

Le Budget principal des dépenses de 2020-2021 de 1’Agence
de la santé publique du Canada propose une augmentation nette
de 16,2 millions de dollars, passant de 625,6 millions de dollars
en 2019-2020 a 641,8 millions de dollars en 2020-2021. Ce
budget inclut 341,3 millions de dollars pour les dépenses de
fonctionnement, 6,8 millions de dollars en capital, 250,8 millions
de dollars en subventions et contributions ainsi que 42,9 millions
de dollars de financement prévu par la loi.

Les augmentations importantes du financement dans le Budget
principal des dépenses incluent 9,3 millions de dollars pour la
mise en ceuvre de la premiére stratégie nationale sur la démence
du Canada; 5,3 millions de dollars pour des projets
communautaires qui abordent les défis associés a la démence; et
4,9 millions de dollars pour la lutte contre la crise des surdoses
au Canada.

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B), I’Agence de
la santé publique du Canada demande une augmentation de ses
niveaux actuels de financement de 18 milliards de dollars. Avec
le Budget principal des dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses (A) approuvés, cela fera augmenter les autorisations
totales de I’agence a prés de 21 milliards de dollars pour
I’exercice 2020-2021.

Le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) augmente les
autorisations de dépenser de I’ASPC de prés de 9,26 milliards de
dollars et les dépenses législatives prévues de 8,78 milliards de
dollars. Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B),
I’agence demande 9,07 milliards de dollars en dépenses de
fonctionnement, 76,1 millions de dollars en dépenses en capital
et 109 millions de dollars en subventions et contributions.

Ces augmentations des autorisations législatives de dépenser
sont principalement attribuables a des dépenses engagées en
réponse a la pandémie de COVID-19 en vertu de la Loi sur les
paiements relatifs aux événements de santé publique d’intérét
national. Ce financement est principalement nécessaire pour
couvrir les achats en gros d’équipement de protection
individuelle, de fournitures d’analyse, de respirateurs et de
vaccins afin de répondre aux besoins urgents des partenaires
fédéraux, ce qui inclut les provinces et les territoires. Ces achats
en gros sont faits dans le cadre des activités de lutte a grande
échelle contre la COVID-19.

Les modifications les plus significatives du financement
apportées dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B)
incluent les fonds suivants : 9,2 milliards de dollars pour la
recherche médicale et le développement de vaccins visant a
appuyer des négociations efficaces pour ’achat de vaccins et
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supplies to meet urgent needs of federal partners and P/Ts of
$5.55 billion; funding for medical countermeasures to address
biomanufacturing capacity limitations, particularly in fill and
finish, the final stage of manufacturing, $1.3 billion; funding for
the Safe Restart Agreement for federal investments in testing,
contact tracing and data management, $942.4 million; and
funding for border and travel measures and isolation sites of
$508.8 million.

As the COVID-19 situation has evolved over the last several
months, the agency continues to focus on ensuring appropriate
measures remain in place to contain the virus, minimizing
community transmission and to ensure our institutions and health
systems have the capacity to continue to respond effectively.

The Public Health Agency of Canada is leading on the
procurement of PPE, testing and preparing Canada for
COVID-19 vaccines. Recent effectiveness testing of COVID-19
vaccines shows promising results. The Public Health Agency is
actively working to ensure we are ready to deploy vaccines when
they are approved for use in Canada.

As of November 18, we have signed agreements with seven
different companies to secure tens of millions of vaccine doses
for Canadians. Health Canada has received submissions for the
authorization of three COVID-19 vaccines from AstraZeneca,
Pfizer and BioNTech and from Moderna. Reviews of safety,
efficacy and quality of these vaccines are being conducted as
data becomes available. Other manufacturers are expected to
provide submissions soon.

The government has also committed $220 million to the
COVAX facility in order to secure options to purchase doses for
20% of Canada’s population and committed an additional $220
million to provide vaccines for the developing world through the
facility.

We want to thank you for this opportunity to speak about our
work. My colleagues and I will be pleased to answer questions
from the members of this Senate committee. Thank you.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Beaudoin. To the presenters,
thank you for your statements.

I’acquisition de traitements clés; 5,55 milliards de dollars
destinés a ’acquisition de matériel de protection et d’équipement
médical afin de répondre aux besoins urgents des partenaires
fédéraux et des provinces et des territoires; 1,3 milliard de
dollars pour les contre-mesures médicales visant a combler les
lacunes en ce qui concerne la capacit¢ de bioproduction,
particuliérement pour le remplissage et la finition, soit 1’étape
finale de la fabrication; 942.4 millions de dollars pour I’ Accord
sur la relance sécuritaire aux fins d’investissements fédéraux
dans le dépistage, la recherche des contacts et la gestion des
données; et 508,8 millions de dollars pour les mesures relatives
au voyage et aux frontieres et les centres d’isolement.

Au fur et a mesure de 1’évolution de la pandémie de
COVID-19 au cours des derniers mois, 1’agence a continué a
faire en sorte que les mesures appropriées restent en place pour
contenir le virus, minimiser la transmission communautaire et
assurer que les établissements de soins de santé et les systémes
de soins de santé sont en mesure de continuer a répondre aux
besoins de la population de maniére efficace.

L’Agence de la santé publique du Canada dirige les achats
d’équipement de protection individuelle, les analyses et la
préparation du Canada a [Darrivée des vaccins contre la
COVID-19. Les récentes analyses de D’efficacité des vaccins
contre la COVID-19 affichent des résultats prometteurs.
L’Agence de la santé publique du Canada se prépare activement
a déployer les vaccins des que leur utilisation sera approuvée au
Canada.

En date du 18 novembre, nous avons signé des ententes avec
sept entreprises différentes afin de fournir des dizaines de
millions de doses de vaccin aux Canadiennes et aux Canadiens.
Sant¢ Canada a regu des demandes d’autorisation pour trois
vaccins contre la COVID-19 : ceux d’AstraZeneca, de Pfizer et
BioNTech et de Moderna. L’examen de la sécurité, de
I’efficacité et de la qualité de ces vaccins est effectué au fur et a
mesure que les données sont rendues disponibles. D’autres
fabricants devraient présenter des demandes sous peu.

Le gouvernement s’est également engagé & investir 220
millions de dollars dans le mécanisme COVAX afin de garantir
des options d’achat de doses de vaccin pour 20 % de la
population canadienne. De plus, il s’est engagé a investir 220
millions de dollars supplémentaires pour que les pays en
développement aient acceés a des vaccins par 1’intermédiaire de
ce mécanisme.

Nous souhaitons vous remercier de nous avoir donné
I’occasion de parler de notre travail. Mes collégues et moi serons
ravis de répondre a toute question que pourraient avoir les
membres du comité sénatorial. Merci.

Le président : Merci, monsieur Beaudoin. Je remercie les
témoins de leurs déclarations.
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Honourable senators, being mindful of the five-minute rule, I
would ask that questions be directed to the witnesses.

To the witnesses, please answer as concisely as you can.

Senator Marshall: Thank you to all the witnesses. I was
especially interested in your comments on the COVID-19
vaccines because I watched the House of Commons Health
Committee last Friday when the minister testified, and she was
saying that we’ve acquired more vaccines per capita than any
other country in the world.

In the last few months there have been quite a few articles on
COVID-19 vaccines. Back in August, Minister Anand, the
procurement minister, had indicated that Canada was at the front
of the line to get millions of doses of four of the most promising
COVID-19 vaccines, the Pfizer and Moderna vaccines that you
referenced in your opening remarks. She said when one of these
vaccines is approved, Canadians will be among the first in line to
get it.

So I was kind of surprised yesterday when the Prime Minister
indicated that Canadians are going to get the COVID-19 vaccine
after other countries due to a lack of manufacturing capacity. I
thought that wasn’t really an issue, because we were going to
purchase millions of vaccines from these individual companies.
But now I find we’re going to be behind the United Kingdom,
Germany, Mexico and so on.

I’m thinking just of Moderna and Pfizer, those two deals. Can
you tell me what date we are to receive the vaccines from Pfizer
and what date we are to receive the vaccines from Moderna?

Mr. Beaudoin: I can’t give you an exact date. A large part of
it depends on when these vaccines will be approved and get
regulatory approval. We are expecting doses to start coming into
the country likely in January and February. I’m wondering if my
colleague Kim Elmslie on the line may have more details as
well. She’s Vice-President, Infectious Disease Prevention and
Control Branch.

Senator Marshall: The minister, when she testified, said
there would be some vaccines available in the first quarter. She
didn’t define what “some” was. I'm very interested and trying to
reconcile what the minister said with what the Prime Minister
said. They seem to be in conflict.

Mr. Beaudoin: Our understanding right now is that we are
expecting several million doses in the first quarter. Part of it is
due to regulatory approval, and part of it is due to when they will
be shipped here. These companies have committed to providing
Canada doses.

Honorables sénateurs, compte tenu de la régle des cinq
minutes, je vous demande de poser vos questions directement
aux témoins.

Je prie les témoins de répondre de la fagon la plus concise
possible.

La sénatrice Marshall : Je remercie tous les témoins. Je
m’intéresse particulierement a vos observations sur les vaccins
contre la COVID-19, car j’ai écouté la réunion du Comité
permanent de la santé de la Chambre des communes de vendredi
dernier, durant laquelle la ministre a témoigné. Elle disait que
nous avions acheté plus de vaccins par habitant que tout autre

pays.

Au cours des derniers mois, de nombreux articles ont porté sur
les vaccins contre la COVID-19. En aoft dernier, la ministre de
I’ Approvisionnement, Mme Anand, avait indiqué que le Canada
était I’'un des premiers pays qui obtiendraient des millions de
doses de quatre des vaccins les plus prometteurs, ceux de Pfizer
et de Moderna dont vous avez parlé dans votre déclaration
préliminaire. Elle a dit que lorsque 1’un de ces vaccins serait
approuvé, les Canadiens seraient parmi les premiers a 1’obtenir.

J’ai donc été un peu surprise, hier, lorsque le premier ministre
a indiqué que les Canadiens allaient recevoir le vaccin contre la
COVID-19 aprés d’autres pays en raison d’un manque de
capacité de production. Je pensais que ce n’était pas vraiment un
probléme, car nous allions acheter des millions de vaccins aupres
de ces différentes entreprises. Voila maintenant que je constate
que le Canada est derriére le Royaume-Uni, 1’Allemagne, le
Mexique, et d’autres pays dans la file d’attente.

Je ne pense qu’a Moderna et a Pfizer, ces deux entreprises.
Pouvez-vous me dire a quelle date nous recevrons les vaccins
Pfizer et a quelle date nous recevrons ceux de Moderna?

M. Beaudoin : Je ne peux pas vous donner de date exacte.
Cela dépend en grande partie du moment ou ces vaccins seront
approuvés et obtiendront I’approbation réglementaire. Nous nous
attendons a ce que les doses commencent a arriver au pays
probablement en janvier et en février. Je me demande si ma
collegue, Kim Elmslie, qui est présente, a de plus amples
renseignements. Elle est vice-présidente de la Direction générale
de la prévention et du contrdle des maladies infecticuses.

La sénatrice Marshall : Lors de son témoignage, la ministre
a dit que certains vaccins seraient disponibles au premier
trimestre. Elle n’a pas précis€ ce que cela voulait dire
exactement. J’aimerais vraiment comprendre, car la ministre et le
premier ministre semblent se contredire.

M. Beaudoin : Ce que nous croyons comprendre a 1’heure
actuelle, c’est que nous nous attendons a recevoir plusieurs
millions de doses au cours du premier trimestre. C’est en
partie en raison de 1’approbation réglementaire, et en partie en
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Senator Marshall: But is there a date? There must be one in
the contract.

Mr. Beaudoin: The date is as soon as regulatory approval is
received, and then they can start shipping vaccines to Canada.
Obviously, as soon as they receive regulatory approval in both
the States and in Canada, they will start shipping, my
understanding is, to both countries. They may give priority to the
U.S. and send fewer doses to Canada, but at this point I wouldn’t
be able to tell you, other than we have contracts in place that
guarantee us that they can start shipping as soon as they have
regulatory approval. The quantities they will ship will have to be
determined at that point.

I’m wondering, as I say, if my colleague Ms. Elmslie has more
information, as she’s closer to the vaccine file than I am.

The Chair: Ms. Elmslie, do you have any comments, please?

Maxime Fortin, Clerk of the Committee: I’m sorry, senator,
but Ms. Elmslie’s audio did not pass the test earlier. Her audio is
not good enough for interpretation.

Senator Marshall: Could I follow up with one question?
The Chair: Yes, please.

Senator Marshall: What does the contract say? I can
appreciate the fact that it’s not going to say “on March 15,” but
there must be some definition of when we’re going to receive
those vaccines. Initially we were told that we were at the front of
the line. Yesterday we were told that we’re at the back of the
line. So people are very concerned, which is going to lead to
another problem because people who aren’t at the front of the
line in Canada are going to go to countries where they can get
the vaccine, so you’re going to end up with a split in your health
care system. Can somebody not clarify exactly where we’re at in
the lineup for the vaccines?

Mr. Beaudoin: So the contract defines the number of doses
we’ll receive, and they can start shipping as soon as regulatory
approval is received. The contract does not define priorities, like
that they’ll be shipped after the U.S. My understanding is they
were going to start shipping to Canada concurrently.

Senator Marshall: Do I have more time, Mr. Chair?

raison du moment ou les vaccins seront expédiés ici. Ces
entreprises se sont engagées a fournir des doses au Canada.

La sénatrice Marshall : Mais a-t-on fixé une date? Une date
a da étre établie dans le contrat.

M. Beaudoin : Dés que les vaccins auront recu 1’approbation
réglementaire, les entreprises pourront commencer a les expédier
au Canada. Evidemment, dés qu’elles auront obtenu
’approbation réglementaire des Etats-Unis et du Canada, elles
commenceront a envoyer des vaccins, a ma connaissance, dans
les deux pays. Il se peut qu’elles donnent la priorité aux Etats-
Unis et qu’elles envoient moins de doses au Canada, mais a ce
moment-ci, je ne suis pas en mesure de vous le dire. Tout ce que
je peux vous dire, c’est que nous avons signé des contrats qui
nous garantissent qu’elles commenceront a les expédier dés que
I’approbation réglementaire sera donnée. Les quantités expédiées
devront étre déterminées a ce moment-la.

Comme je D’ai dit, je me demande si ma collégue,
Mme Elmslie, a de plus amples renseignements, car elle est plus
au fait du dossier des vaccins que moi.

Le président : Madame Elmslie, avez-vous des commentaires
a cet égard?

Maxime Fortin, greffiere du comité : Je suis désolée,
sénateur, mais le son de Mme Elmslie n’a pas réussi le test plus
tot. Son son n’est donc pas de qualité suffisante pour
I’interprétation.

La sénatrice Marshall : Pourrais-je ajouter une question?
Le président : Oui, vous avez la parole.

La sénatrice Marshall : Qu’indique le contrat? Je peux
comprendre qu’il n’indiquera rien de précis comme « le
15 mars », mais il doit y avoir une approximation de la date a
laquelle nous recevrons ces vaccins. Au départ, on nous a dit que
nous étions au début de la file. Hier, on nous a dit que nous
étions au bout de la file. Les gens sont donc trés inquiets, ce qui
va entrainer un autre probléme, car les personnes qui ne sont pas
en téte de file au Canada se rendront dans des pays ou elles
peuvent se faire vacciner, ce qui va entrainer une scission de
notre systéme de santé. Quelqu’un ne peut-il pas nous dire ou
nous en sommes exactement dans la file d’attente pour les
vaccins?

M. Beaudoin : Le contrat définit le nombre de doses que nous
recevrons, et 1’expédition pourra commencer dés que
I’approbation réglementaire sera regue. Le contrat n’établit pas
de priorités, comme le fait que les vaccins nous seront envoyés
seulement aprés avoir été envoyés aux Etats-Unis. D’aprés ce
que je comprends, les vaccins seront envoyés au Canada en
méme temps.

La sénatrice Marshall : Me reste-t-il du temps, monsieur le
président?
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The Chair: No. Thank you, Senator Marshall.

Senator Marshall: Second round, please.

The Chair: Yes, absolutely.

To the clerk, if we can connect Ms. Elmslie, please let us
know so that we can have her respond to Senator Marshall’s
questions.

[Translation]

Senator Forest: The Prime Minister said that our country has
ordered more vaccines than any other country and that we’ve
made investments to increase production capacity in Canada in
anticipation of future events. I have two questions. First, I gather
that the contracts are secret for trade strategy reasons, that the
contract sets out the number of doses and that we’re bound by
these contracts. Do the contracts negotiated with the
pharmaceutical companies contain provisions ensuring that
Canada will have priority and, if so, what might these provisions
look like? That’s my first question. I know that we may not be
the first. However, do any provisions ensure that we have
priority in the contracts established with the pharmaceutical
companies, Mr. Linkletter?

[English]

Peter Linkletter, Vice-President, National Emergency
Strategic Stockpile, Public Health Agency of Canada: Thank
you, senator, for your question. Specifically the component of
the request regarding personal protective equipment and medical
equipment in relation to the ongoing work to support our front-
line health care sector across the country is $2.2 billion. This
funding is going to be used to support PPE, test kits, medical
supplies and equipment for use in the health care sector.

Senator, was there a particular component of that you were
looking for more clarity on?

[Translation]

Senator Forest: Given what the Prime Minister told us, do
the agreements — where we specified a number of doses in
exchange for a lump sum and determined that the deliveries
would take place after the approval of the authorities involved —
contain any provisions ensuring that we have some priority in
terms of the delivery of these doses? The epidemic is global. It
isn’t just in Canada or North America.

Le président : Non. Je vous remercie, sénatrice Marshall.

La sénatrice Marshall : Lors de la deuxiéme série de
questions, dans ce cas.

Le président : Oui, certainement.

Madame la greffiére, si nous pouvons établir la connexion
avec Mme Elmslie, veuillez nous le faire savoir, afin qu’elle
puisse répondre aux questions de la sénatrice Marshall.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Le premier ministre a affirmé que nous
sommes le pays qui a passé¢ le plus de commandes de vaccins et
que nous avons investi pour augmenter notre capacité de
production au Canada en prévision des prochains événements.
Jai deux questions. D’abord, je comprends que les contrats sont
secrets pour des raisons de stratégie commerciale, que le contrat
définit le nombre de doses et que nous sommes liés par ces
contrats. Dans les contrats négociés avec les compagnies
pharmaceutiques, y a-t-il des dispositions garantissant que le
Canada sera traité en priorit¢ et, dans D’affirmative, a quoi
peuvent ressembler ces dispositions? Voila ma premicre
question. Je sais que nous ne sommes peut-étre pas les premiers,
mais y a-t-il des dispositions qui nous garantissent un ordre de
priorit¢ dans le cadre des contrats qui sont conclus avec les
compagnies pharmaceutiques, monsieur Linkletter?

[Traduction]

Peter Linkletter, vice-président, Réserve nationale
stratégique d’urgence, Agence de la santé publique du
Canada : Je vous remercie, sénateur, de votre question. Plus
précisément, le volet de la demande concernant 1’équipement de
protection individuelle et 1’équipement médical 1i¢ a 1’effort en
cours pour soutenir notre secteur de soins de santé de premicre
ligne a I’échelle du pays est de 2,2 milliards de dollars. Ce
financement sera utilisé pour soutenir 1’équipement de protection
individuelle, les trousses de dépistage, les fournitures médicales
et ’équipement utilisé dans le secteur des soins de santé.

Sénateur, y avait-il un volet particulier sur lequel vous
souhaitiez obtenir plus d’éclaircissements?

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Compte tenu de ce que le premier
ministre nous a dit, dans les ententes — dans lesquelles nous
avons précis€ un nombre de doses en échange d’un montant
forfaitaire et déterminé que les livraisons allaient se faire aprés
I’approbation des autorités concernées —, y a-t-il des
dispositions qui nous garantissent une certaine priorité quant a la
livraison de ces doses? L’épidémie est mondiale, elle n’est pas
seulement au Canada ou en Amérique du Nord.
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[English]

Mr. Linkletter: Excuse me, Mr. Chair and senator, I was
having some difficulties hearing. I think the focus of your
question, senator, is linked to the previous line of questioning
regarding vaccines, to which I would certainly want to defer to
my colleague Ms. Elmslie, who may be able to get on.

The Chair: I think it’s still very difficult for Ms. Elmslie.
Mr. Beaudoin, can you add a few comments?

Mr. Beaudoin: Yes. The contracts don’t specify that a certain
country will have priority over Canada. There is no order in
which countries pass ahead, but some of that might be defined by
the legislation in the U.S. itself as opposed to the contracts. The
contracts really stipulate that the company will make every effort
to guarantee and to deliver X number of doses once they receive
regulatory approval. There is no order of priority in terms of
countries within those contracts. That is a measure that another
country, such as the U.S. or England, could put in place to keep
the doses for their citizens prior to shipping them to other
countries, but it’s certainly not defined in the contract.

[Translation]

Senator Forest: In addition, the Prime Minister said that we
worked hard to increase our production capacity, because this
constitutes a shortcoming in Canada. Do the agreements
negotiated with the pharmaceutical companies contain provisions
in which we asked them to partner with Canadian companies to
ensure production in Canada and Canada’s supply of
pharmaceuticals for the coming months and years?

Mr. Beaudoin: Part of our job involves working with
Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada. Our
estimate includes $1.3 billion to strengthen our capacity in terms
of vaccine development and vaccine manufacturing lines. We’ve
invested in this area. We’re working hard with the department to
increase Canada’s capacity to obtain vaccines, including syringes
and bottles, and to support the distribution and assembly of the
vaccines. We’re working on this and we’ve set aside funding for
this as well.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Beaudoin.
[English]

Senator Klyne: Welcome to the guests on the panel. Thank
you very much.

[Traduction]

M. Linkletter : Excusez-moi, monsieur le président et
sénateur, j’avais de la difficulté a vous entendre. Je pense que
I’objet de votre question, sénateur, est 1i¢ a la série de questions
précédentes sur les vaccins, et j’aimerais certainement m’en
remettre & ma collégue, Mme Elmslie, qui pourra peut-étre
répondre & ces questions.

Le président : Je crois que Mme Elmslie a toujours des
difficultés techniques. Monsieur Beaudoin, pouvez-vous
formuler quelques commentaires?

M. Beaudoin : Oui. Les contrats ne précisent pas qu’un
certain pays aura la priorité sur le Canada. Il n’y a pas d’ordre
dans lequel certains pays passent en premier, mais une partie de
cela pourrait étre attribuable aux lois américaines, plutot qu’aux
contrats. En effet, les contrats stipulent que ’entreprise fera tout
son possible pour garantir et livrer un nombre établi de doses une
fois qu’elle aura recu ’approbation réglementaire. Il n’y a donc
pas d’ordre de priorité pour les pays dans ces contrats. C’est une
mesure qu’un autre pays, comme les Etats-Unis ou I’ Angleterre,
pourrait mettre en place pour conserver les doses pour ses
citoyens avant de les expédier dans d’autres pays, mais ce n’est
certainement pas défini dans le contrat.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : D’autre part, le premier ministre nous
mentionne que nous avons fait beaucoup d’efforts pour
augmenter notre capacité de production, car ¢’est une lacune au
Canada. Est-ce qu’il y a des dispositions dans les ententes
négociées avec les compagnies pharmaceutiques dans lesquelles
nous leur avons demandé de s’associer a des entreprises
canadiennes pour qu’il puisse y avoir une production au Canada
et pour assurer 1’approvisionnement du Canada dans le domaine
pharmaceutique pour les mois et les années a venir?

M. Beaudoin : Une partie du travail qu’on fait, c’est de
collaborer avec Innovation, Sciences et Développement
économique Canada. Dans notre estimation, un montant de 1,3
milliard de dollars est prévu afin de renforcer notre capacité en
matiere de développement des vaccins et des chalnes de
fabrication de vaccins. Donc, on a investi dans ce domaine et on
travaille beaucoup avec ce ministére pour augmenter la capacité
du Canada a se procurer des vaccins, y compris des seringues et
des bouteilles, et pour favoriser la distribution et 1’assemblage
des vaccins. On travaille donc la-dessus et on a prévu des fonds
pour cela également.

Le président : Merci, monsieur Beaudoin.
[Traduction]

Le sénateur Klyne : J’aimerais souhaiter la bienvenue aux
témoins de ce groupe. Je vous remercie beaucoup d’étre ici.
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My question is for the Public Health Agency of Canada, a
quick point going back to research and vaccine development.
The forecasted statutory spending is $3.8 billion and the
Supplementary Estimates (B) request is $5.4 billion, for a total of
$9.2 billion. Of that total $9.2 billion, how much is on the R&D
side and how much is being earmarked for procurement,
distribution and inoculation?

Mr. Beaudoin: Thank you for the question, senator. Of the $9
billion, $8 billion is for purchase agreements for vaccine
supplies. There is $1 billion for working with international
partners on vaccines, and $200 million for treatments. The broad
vaccine envelope provides funding for distribution of the
vaccines and storing of the vaccines, which we’re working on. In
terms of the biomanufacturing and development of capacity,
you’re looking at the $1.3 billion that we called funding for
medical countermeasures. That’s really to bolster that domestic
biomanufacturing capacity. There is close to $650 million for
that. That also includes funding for packaging, supplies as well
as therapeutics and logistics.

The envelopes are broad, so they’re not locked in on certain
amounts. We have flexibility with these envelopes. Also, a lot of
this work is being done in partnerships, especially when you’re
looking at developing industry capacity. A lot of that is being
done in collaboration with Innovation, Science and Economic
Development Canada and other federal government departments
who lead on that front.

Senator Klyne: Thank you. In your answer you folded in
medical countermeasures. In the Supplementary Estimates (B),
there is $782 million in that regard. Are there any statutory
authorities or forecasted statutory spending leading up to the
Supplementary Estimates (B) for countermeasures of $782
million? How do we know what to put into inventory, and how
do you include it in COVID-19?

Mr. Beaudoin: Thank you for the question. In terms of the
envelopes, you need to understand how we divide the $1.3
billion. The portion we put on the $782 million is what we plan
to spend between January 1 and March 31. That’s how the
estimates were structured. As of this week, it was announced this
morning that we purchased 26,000 doses of a product from Eli
Lilly, which was developed in collaboration with a Vancouver
company. That is one of the treatments we’ve purchased.

Ma question s’adresse a 1’Agence de la santé publique du
Canada et concerne la recherche et la mise au point de vaccins.
Les dépenses 1égislatives prévues sont de 3,8 milliards de dollars
et la demande du Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) est de
5,4 milliards de dollars, pour un total de 9,2 milliards de dollars.
Sur ce total, quel est le montant consacré a la recherche et
développement et quel est le montant prévu pour
I’approvisionnement, la distribution et 1’inoculation?

M. Beaudoin : Je vous remercie de votre question, sénateur.
Sur les 9 milliards de dollars, 8 milliards de dollars sont destinés
a des conventions d’achat pour I’approvisionnement en vaccins.
Il y a également 1 milliard de dollars pour la collaboration avec
des partenaires internationaux en matiére de vaccin et 200
millions de dollars pour les traitements. La vaste enveloppe
consacrée aux vaccins prévoit des fonds pour la distribution et le
stockage des vaccins, des éléments sur lesquels nous travaillons
actuellement. En ce qui concerne la biofabrication et le
renforcement des capacités, il y a les 1,3 milliard de dollars que
nous appelons le financement pour les contre-mesures médicales.
Il s’agit réellement de renforcer la capacité nationale de
bioproduction et nous avons donc prévu pres de 650 millions de
dollars a cet égard. Cela comprend également les fonds pour
I’emballage, les fournitures, les produits thérapeutiques et la
logistique.

Ces enveloppes sont générales, c’est-a-dire qu’elles ne sont
pas limitées a certains montants. Elles nous offrent donc une
certaine souplesse. En outre, une grande partie de ce travail se
fait dans le cadre de partenariats, surtout lorsqu’il s’agit de
renforcer les capacités de 1’industrie. Une grande partie de ce
travail se fait en collaboration avec Innovation, Sciences et
Développement économique Canada, ainsi que d’autres
ministéres fédéraux qui sont des chefs de file dans ce secteur.

Le sénateur Klyne : Je vous remercie. Dans votre réponse,
vous avez inclus les contre-mesures médicales. Dans le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B), on prévoit 782 millions de
dollars a cet égard. Y a-t-il des autorisations législatives ou des
dépenses législatives prévues dans le Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses (B) pour des contre-mesures de 782 millions de
dollars? Comment savons-nous ce qu’il faut mettre en stock et
comment intégrons-nous cela a la COVID-19?

M. Beaudoin : Je vous remercie de votre question. En ce qui
concerne les enveloppes, il faut comprendre la fagon dont nous
divisons les 1,3 milliard de dollars. La partie que nous affectons
aux 782 millions de dollars représente les dépenses que nous
prévoyons effectuer entre le 1°* janvier et le 31 mars. C’est la
facon dont le budget a été structuré. On a annoncé ce matin
I’achat de 26 000 doses d’un produit d’Eli Lilly, qui a été mis au
point en collaboration avec une entreprise de Vancouver. C’est
donc I’un des traitements que nous avons achetés.
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We also purchased treatment of remdesivir earlier. The
envelope is also being kept for potential future purchases. But
also within that envelope you will also see the packaging, the
logistical support, shipping and storage of vaccines. This is all
what we plan to spend in the new year. We expect to start to roll
out our vaccine strategies starting in January. We expect to start
receiving doses in the first quarter of next year, so we need to be
ready for the distribution and deployment of vaccines across the
country.

Senator Klyne: Including countermeasures?

Mr. Beaudoin: Including countermeasures, which we have
now purchased and will be distributing to provinces.

Senator Richards: I wanted to follow up on what has been
asked so far. I wonder why we gave up on research in our health
care system and left it up to Pfizer and other places in the United
States. We certainly brag about our health care system to other
nations. I’'m just wondering why we’re so far behind the eight
ball with this research. Nothing [Technical difficulties] more
than this crisis, and I wonder if someone could answer why we
weren’t up to speed.

The Chair: Let’s start with Health Canada. Comments?

Mr. de Sousa: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’ll turn the question
over to Marcel Saulnier.

Marcel Saulnier, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Strategic Policy Branch, Health Canada: There has been
significant investment in research since the beginning of the
pandemic. Some of that has been done through the Canadian
Institutes of Health Research, where there has been mobilization
of the research community across the country to look at
furthering research in areas that are critical, like mental health
and substance use as well as in the area of therapeutic products.

This responsibility is with the CIHR, which is not Health
Canada proper. However, I think the record will show that the
government has made significant investments in supporting
health services research linked to COVID-19.

Senator Richards: That may be well and true, and I’'m not
saying it’s not, but what we heard yesterday was pretty alarming
about when we’re going to get these vials of vaccination to our
population. We might have to wait in a long, long line. I'm

Plus t6t, nous avons également acheté un traitement appelé
remdésivir. L’enveloppe est également conservée pour
d’éventuels achats futurs, mais il y a aussi I’emballage, le soutien
logistique, 1’expédition et le stockage des vaccins. Il s’agit de
tout ce que nous prévoyons dépenser au cours de la nouvelle
année. Nous prévoyons commencer a déployer nos stratégies en
matiére de vaccins deés janvier. Nous nous attendons a
commencer a recevoir des doses au cours du premier trimestre de
I’année prochaine, et nous devons donc étre préts pour la
distribution et I’administration des vaccins a I’échelle du pays.

Le sénateur Klyne : Cela comprend-il les contre-mesures?

M. Beaudoin : Cela comprend également les contre-mesures,
que nous avons maintenant achetées et que nous distribuerons
aux provinces.

Le sénateur Richards : J’aimerais poursuivre la série de
questions qui a été posée jusqu’a maintenant. Je me demande
pourquoi nous avons renoncé a la recherche dans notre systéme
de soins de santé et pourquoi nous avons laissé cela a Pfizer et a
d’autres  endroits aux FEtats-Unis. Nous nous vantons
certainement de notre systéme de santé auprés d’autres nations.
Je me demande simplement pourquoi nous sommes si loin
derriére en ce qui concerne ces recherches. Rien [Difficultés
techniques] plus que cette crise, et j’aimerais savoir si quelqu’un
peut me dire pourquoi nous n’avons pas été a la hauteur.

Le président : Nous pouvons d’abord entendre les témoins de
Santé Canada. Mesdames et messieurs, avez-vous des
commentaires a formuler?

M. de Sousa : Je vous remercie, monsieur le président. Je
demanderais a Marcel Saulnier de répondre a cette question.

Marcel Saulnier, sous-ministre adjoint associé, Direction
générale de la politique stratégique, Santé Canada : Depuis
le début de la pandémie, des investissements importants ont été
effectués dans la recherche. Une partie de ces investissements a
été effectuée par 'intermédiaire des Instituts de recherche en
santé du Canada, ou la communauté des chercheurs d’un bout a
I’autre du pays s’est mobilisée pour faire avancer la recherche
dans des domaines essentiels, comme la santé mentale et la
toxicomanie, ainsi que dans le domaine des produits
thérapeutiques.

Cette responsabilité incombe aux Instituts de recherche en
sant¢ du Canada, ce qui n’est pas vraiment Santé Canada.
Toutefois, je pense que le compte rendu révélera que le
gouvernement a fait des investissements importants pour soutenir
la recherche dans les services de sant¢ liés a la COVID-19.

Le sénateur Richards : C’est peut-étre vrai, et je ne dis pas
le contraire, mais pas plus tard qu’hier, nous avons entendu des
propos assez alarmants sur le moment ou nous pourrons
distribuer ces doses de vaccin a notre population. Nous pourrions
nous retrouver dans une trés longue file d’attente. Je me
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wondering, having one of the foremost health care systems in the
world, how we lost sight of that.

It’s fine to say that we’re doing this research after the fact, but
I think our whole research ability should have been a little more
formidable.

The Chair: Thank you for the comment, Senator Richards.
Are there any witnesses who would like to comment? If not, then
we will move on.

Senator M. Deacon: Thank you all for being here. I know we
are having some technical challenges, but your profile and the
work you’re doing make this an extremely important meeting for
us today. I’m hoping we get through it all.

I have two questions, and the Public Health Agency or Health
Canada may wish to respond to the first one. Looking at the
supplementary estimates of $2.2 billion that was referred to
earlier for PPE, testing and all health-related supplies, can you
tighten up for us what happens to these once they are purchased?
It’s our understanding that once they are procured, they would be
given to the provinces to then distribute as they see fit. Is this the
case? If it is, does the Public Health Agency keep tabs and
reports on how this PPE is used? I’m trying to clearly understand
fact from fiction and where the federal responsibility ends and
the provincial responsibility begins in this work.

Mr. Linkletter: Thank you, senator, for the question. As |
mentioned earlier, the Government of Canada is working to
secure PPE, medical equipment and supplies to support gaps in
provinces and territories. Maybe to give you an illustration,
currently we have 2.9 billion pieces of PPE, medical equipment
and supplies on order, of which we’ve received approximately
1.4 billion pieces — so about half — of which 12% has been
shipped to provinces and territories.

So we receive this PPE, medical equipment and supplies at the
Public Health Agency of Canada, into our National Emergency
Strategic Stockpile. It is then allocated on a population-based
formula, so that 80% of the overall allocation goes to provinces
and territories, and then 20% is held in this emergency stockpile
with a further portion of that to support Indigenous Services
Canada.

demande comment nous avons pu perdre cela de vue, alors que
nous avons 1’un des meilleurs systémes de santé au monde.

C’est bien de dire que nous faisons cette recherche aprés coup,
mais je pense que l’ensemble de notre capacité de recherche
aurait dd étre un peu plus vaste.

Le président : Je vous remercie de votre commentaire,
sénateur Richards. Les témoins ont-ils des commentaires? Sinon,
nous allons passer a autre chose.

La sénatrice M. Deacon : J’aimerais remercier tous les
témoins d’étre ici aujourd’hui. Je sais que nous éprouvons
quelques difficultés techniques, mais en raison de votre profil et
du travail que vous faites, la réunion d’aujourd’hui est
extrémement importante pour nous. J’espére que nous passerons
a travers tout cela.

J’ai deux questions, et les témoins de 1’Agence de la santé
publique ou de Santé Canada voudront probablement répondre a
la premiére question. Etant donné le Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses de 2,2 milliards de dollars auquel on a fait référence
plus tot pour I’équipement de protection individuelle, les tests de
dépistage et tout le matériel 1ié a la santé, pouvez-vous nous
préciser ce qu’il advient de ces produits une fois qu’ils sont
achetés? Nous avons cru comprendre qu’une fois achetés, ils
seront remis aux provinces pour qu’elles les distribuent selon
leur bon jugement. Est-ce exact? Si oui, ’Agence de la santé
publique assure-t-elle un suivi et produit-elle des rapports sur
I’utilisation de cet équipement de protection individuelle?
Jessaie de distinguer le vrai du faux et de comprendre ou se
termine la responsabilit¢ fédérale et ou commence Ila
responsabilité provinciale dans cette situation.

M. Linkletter : Je vous remercie de votre question, sénatrice.
Comme je I’ai mentionné plus tot, le gouvernement du Canada
s’efforce d’obtenir de I’équipement de protection individuelle,
ainsi que des fournitures et de 1’équipement médicaux pour
combler les lacunes dans les provinces et les territoires. Pour
vous donner un exemple, nous avons actuellement 2,9 milliards
d’éléments d’équipement de protection individuelle et de
fournitures et d’équipement médicaux en commande, et nous
avons regu environ 1,4 milliard d’éléments de ce total — soit
environ la moitié — et 12 % ont été expédiés aux provinces et
aux territoires.

L’Agence de la santé publique du Canada recoit donc
I’équipement de protection individuelle et les fournitures et
I’équipement médicaux dans le cadre de sa Réserve stratégique
nationale d’urgence. Cet équipement est ensuite réparti selon une
formule fondée sur la population, de sorte que 80 % de
1’allocation globale va aux provinces et aux territoires, puis 20 %
sont conservés dans cette réserve d’urgence, et une partie sert
également a soutenir Services aux Autochtones Canada.
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In addition to that, should there be an extraordinary
requirement for support, there is a formal request for assistance
process that would be made by a province or territory to the
National Emergency Strategic Stockpile. It would then be
scrutinized to make sure we can support it and address the
logistical requirements of shipping the PPE, medical equipment
and supplies out to a province or territory.

So we do, in the background, have a very clear picture of that
supply chain, supported by an IM/IT platform, a warehousing
platform, a stockpile management system platform, to give us a
very timely perspective of that overall supply chain and the
overall portfolio. Does that help?

Senator M. Deacon: Thank you very much for that response;
I do appreciate it.

I’m going to leave vaccines alone, although I am anxious to
hear the numbers of the doses from the three companies. I
believe that response would come from somebody who is unable
to have audio support.

On procurement, my question concerns the $40 million to
acquire and distribute supplies of key goods and services for a
broad range of organizations that are involved in the COVID-19
response or provide non-medical essential services to Canadians.

Can you give me an idea of what these non-medical essential
services might be? Will there be an application system based on
need? Large chains, for instance, probably have no issues with
getting their own equipment and having their own supply chain,
but smaller and privately owned operations could use, I would
imagine, some support with this.

Michael Mills, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Procurement Branch, Public Services and Procurement
Canada: Senator, I believe your question is related to the
Essential Services Contingency Reserve.

These would be essential sectors, such as food production and
manufacturing, or non-medical services like dental services.
There are 10 different sectors that have been identified through
the public safety community in terms of what are deemed
essential services. They can make an application, and it depends
on what industry they are in. If they are transportation, for
instance, we would consult with Transport Canada to determine
the validity of the application and the need.

De plus, en cas de besoin exceptionnel, une province ou un
territoire peut présenter une demande d’aide officielle a la
Réserve nationale stratégique d’urgence. Cette demande sera
alors examinée pour vérifier si nous pouvons la remplir et
répondre aux exigences logistiques liées a 1’envoi de
I’équipement de protection individuelle et des fournitures et de
I’équipement médicaux a une province ou un territoire.

Nous avons donc, en arriere-plan, une image tres claire de
cette chaine d’approvisionnement, qui est soutenue par une
plateforme de gestion et de technologies de 1’information, une
plateforme d’entreposage et une plateforme de systéme de
gestion des stocks. Nous avons ainsi un portrait en temps utile de
I’ensemble de la chaine et du portefeuille d’approvisionnement.
Cela vous aide-t-il?

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Je vous remercie beaucoup de
votre réponse. Je vous en suis reconnaissante.

Je vais maintenant laisser la question des vaccins de coOté,
méme si j’ai hate d’entendre le nombre de doses des trois
entreprises. Je crois que cette réponse sera fournie par un témoin
qui n’est pas en mesure d’avoir un soutien audio.

En ce qui concerne I’approvisionnement, ma question porte
sur les 40 millions de dollars destinés a 1’acquisition et a la
distribution de biens et de services essentiels pour un large
éventail d’organismes qui participent a la réponse a la
COVID-19 ou qui fournissent des services essentiels non
médicaux aux Canadiens.

Pouvez-vous me donner une idée de ce que pourraient étre ces
services essentiels non médicaux? Y aura-t-il un systéme de
demandes fondé sur les besoins? Par exemple, les grandes
chaines n’ont probablement aucun probléme a obtenir leur
propre équipement et elles ont leur propre chaine
d’approvisionnement, mais j’imagine que les petites entreprises
privées pourraient avoir besoin d’un certain soutien a cet égard.

Michael Mills, sous-ministre adjoint délégué, Direction
générale de Dapprovisionnement, Services publics et
Approvisionnement Canada : Sénatrice, je crois que votre
question concerne la Réserve d’urgence pour les services
essentiels.

Il s’agit de secteurs essentiels, par exemple la production
alimentaire et I’industrie manufacturiére, ou de services non
médicaux comme les soins dentaires. Dix secteurs différents ont
été cernés par la communauté de la sécurité publique comme
étant des services essentiels. Les intervenants de ces secteurs
peuvent faire une demande qui sera évaluée selon leur industrie.
S’il s’agit des transports, par exemple, nous consulterons
Transports Canada pour déterminer la validité de la demande et
le besoin en question.
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This is a backstop reserve, so we do have a test in terms of
whether it is possible to acquire those privately, and, if not, we
would provide the material on a cost-recovery basis.

Senator M. Deacon: Have you had non-medical essential
services requests that have been a surprise or a shock to you?

Mr. Mills: T would not say that we’ve had applications that
have been a surprise or a shock.

I think most of our requests have been from smaller businesses
such as individual proprietors, dental shops and whatnot. I think
the one surprise is we would have thought there would have been
more industry association larger requests, but they’ve tended to
be more from smaller applicants.

Senator Boehm: I would like to thank the witnesses for being
here and for the excellent work they do as public servants in our
country.

I am mindful of the time, so I'm going to launch all my
questions at once and direct them first to the Public Health
Agency of Canada. My question is about priorities. Who are the
priority people who will receive the vaccine first? The National
Advisory Committee on Immunization has released
recommendations. Is there a consensus developing? Are you
working with the provinces to look at that, and will there be a
national campaign to ensure consistency regarding which groups
will be prioritized for vaccination?

To Public Services and Procurement Canada, in other federal
jurisdictions — I know a little bit about Germany — there has
been a distributional plan already established with the 16 federal
states in Germany. They are setting up vaccination centres as
well on a county and regional basis. Is there work under way to
look at that?

To Health Canada, as far as I know, there is not a national
immunization registry. Some of us still have our little booklets
from the 1970s and 1980s. Are there plans to do that,
recognizing that many people will have to get a vaccine twice,
that there will be a second vaccination? How would that be
handled?

To Health Canada, we’re all aware of COVAX. What I find a
little disturbing is that if you look at the countries that have
signed up for Pfizer, about 85% of them are first-world
countries. There has to be something left over for the rest of the
world. As our own Prime Minister has said, this is a global crisis.
If there are any leftovers, I’m wondering whether they would be
donated to that global facility.

Il s’agit d’un filet de sécurité, et nous avons un processus pour
déterminer s’il est possible d’acquérir ces services dans le
secteur privé et, si ce n’est pas le cas, nous fournirons le matériel
selon le principe du recouvrement des cofts.

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Avez-vous recu des demandes de
services essentiels non médicaux qui vous ont surpris ou
déconcertés?

M. Mills : Je ne dirais pas que nous avons recu des demandes
qui nous ont surpris ou déconcertés.

Je pense que la plupart des demandes que nous avons regues
provenaient de petites entreprises, par exemple des entreprises a
propriétaire unique, des dentistes, et cetera. Je pense que la seule
surprise, c’est que nous aurions cru recevoir davantage de
grandes demandes d’associations industrielles, mais nous avons
surtout regu des demandes de petites entreprises.

Le sénateur Boehm : J’aimerais remercier les témoins d’étre
ici aujourd’hui et de l’excellent travail qu’ils font a titre de
fonctionnaires dans notre pays.

Je suis conscient des limites de temps, et je vais donc lancer
toutes mes questions en méme temps et les adresser d’abord a
I’Agence de la santé publique du Canada. Ma premiére question
concerne les priorités. Quelles sont les personnes prioritaires qui
recevront le vaccin en premier? Le Comité consultatif national
de I’immunisation a formulé des recommandations a cet égard.
Un consensus est-il en train de se dégager? Collaborez-vous avec
les provinces pour examiner la question, et y aura-t-il une
campagne nationale pour assurer la cohérence en ce qui concerne
les groupes qui seront prioritaires pour la vaccination?

Voici maintenant ma question pour les témoins de Services
publics et Approvisionnement Canada. Dans d’autres pays... Je
connais un peu la situation de 1’Allemagne, ou un plan de
distribution a déja été établi avec les 16 Etats fédéraux
d’Allemagne. Ils sont en train de mettre en place des centres de
vaccination a I’échelle des comtés et des régions. Y a-t-il des
travaux en cours pour examiner ces efforts?

Voici maintenant ma question pour les témoins de Santé
Canada. A ma connaissance, il n’existe pas de registre national
d’immunisation. Certains d’entre nous ont encore leur petit livret
des années 1970 et 1980. Compte tenu du fait que de nombreuses
personnes devront se faire vacciner a deux reprises, a-t-on prévu
la création d’un tel registre? Comment cela sera-t-il géré?

Ma prochaine question s’adresse aux témoins de Santé
Canada. Nous connaissons tous le programme COVAX. Ce que
je trouve un peu troublant, c’est qu’environ 85 % des pays qui
ont fait affaire avec Pfizer sont des pays industrialisés. Il doit
bien rester quelque chose pour le reste du monde. Comme notre
premier ministre I’a dit, il s’agit d’une crise mondiale. S’il y a
des restes, je me demande s’ils seront donnés a ce programme.



25-11-2020

Finances nationales

6:19

My last point is an important question for me because I’'m
originally from the foreign service of Canada. We have a lot of
personnel, foreign service and military, serving abroad. Will
their needs be looked after in terms of providing them with the
vaccine? Thank you.

The Chair: The witnesses responsible for the agency or the
ministry, please answer Senator Boehm’s questions.
Mr. Beaudoin first, then Public Services and Procurement
Canada and Health Canada.

Mr. Beaudoin: In terms of the first questions and in terms of
prioritization of the vaccine, as my colleague Ms. Elmslie isn’t
here and she’s working quite actively with the provinces on the
distribution and prioritization, I submit we should respond in
writing to the committee to make sure we give you the
proper answer on that one.

The Chair: Is that acceptable, Senator Boehm? Thank you,
Mr. Beaudoin.

Now we will go to Public Services and Procurement Canada
to answer the question posed by Senator Boehm.

Mr. Zielonka: I believe the senator’s question was around
distribution. I think that would be better answered by our
colleagues in PHAC.

Mr. Beaudoin: We can add that answer to our written
response in terms of the distribution. I know we’re actively
working on it; we have a task team dedicated to the distribution
of vaccines. I think that ties into the previous question on
prioritization.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Beaudoin.

To Health Canada, please. The question posed by Senator
Boehm.

Mr. de Sousa: Thank you. As I understood the questions,
there were two: one with regard to the immunization registry and
the other related to COVAX.

I believe those are probably better answered by the Public
Health Agency as well.

The Chair: So
Mr. Beaudoin.

Public Health Agency of Canada,

Ma derniére question me tient beaucoup a cceur, car je
travaillais autrefois pour le service extérieur du Canada. Dans ce
secteur, un grand nombre de personnes, que ce soit dans le
service extérieur ou dans I’armée, travaillent a 1’étranger. Leurs
besoins seront-ils pris en compte lorsqu’il s’agira de leur fournir
le vaccin? Je vous remercie.

Le président : Je demanderais aux témoins responsables de
I’agence ou du ministére de bien vouloir répondre aux questions
du sénateur Boehm. Nous pourrions entendre d’abord
M. Beaudoin, ensuite les témoins de Services publics et
Approvisionnement Canada, et enfin ceux de Santé Canada.

M. Beaudoin : En ce qui concerne les premiéres questions et
les priorités liées au vaccin, comme ma colléegue Mme Elmslie
n’est pas ici et qu’elle travaille trés activement avec les
provinces sur la distribution et 1’établissement des priorités a cet
égard, je pense que nous devrions répondre par écrit au comité
pour vous donner la meilleure réponse possible.

Le président : Est-ce acceptable, sénateur Boehm? Je vous
remercie, monsieur Beaudoin.

Je demanderais maintenant aux témoins de Services publics et
Approvisionnement Canada de répondre a la question posée par
le sénateur Boehm.

M. Zielonka : Je crois que la question du sénateur concernait
la distribution. Je pense que nos colléges de I’Agence de la santé
publique du Canada seraient mieux outillés pour répondre a cette
question.

M. Beaudoin : Nous pouvons ajouter la réponse a la question
sur la distribution a la réponse écrite que nous ferons parvenir au
comité. Je sais que nous travaillons activement la-dessus, car
nous avons une équipe de travail qui s’occupe de la distribution
des vaccins. Je pense que c’est lié & la question précédente sur
1’établissement des priorités.

Le président : Je vous remercie, monsieur Beaudoin.

Maintenant, je demanderais aux témoins de Santé Canada de
bien vouloir répondre a la question du sénateur Boehm.

M. de Sousa : Je vous remercie. D’aprés ce que j’ai compris,
il y avait deux questions, c’est-a-dire que 1'une concernait un
registre d’immunisation et 1’autre concernait le programme
COVAX.

Je pense également que I’ Agence de la santé publique pourrait
fournir de meilleures réponses a ces questions.

Le président : Je demanderais donc a M. Beaudoin, de
I’ Agence de la santé publique du Canada, de bien répondre a ces
questions.
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Mr. Beaudoin: We’ll have to get back to you about
immunization registries. I believe that was a Health Canada lead
and not a Public Health Agency lead. I think we can sort it out
between our two organizations and we’ll get back to you. We
can put that in writing.

In terms of donations, we’re already working with COVAX
and my understanding is any excess vaccines will be donated to
other countries. We’re working through COVAX right now or
one of the partners.

The Chair: Therefore, Mr. Beaudoin, before I move on to the
next senator, when can we expect to have that in writing?

Mr. Beaudoin: I believe we should be able to give that to you
within a week, if that’s acceptable.

The Chair: We have a time frame. I will ask the clerk to
connect with you about our time frame so we are in a position to
table our report in the Senate. Is that fair?

Mr. Beaudoin: I think that’s fair.
The Chair: Thank you.

Senator Boehm: Chair, if [ may. I did not get a response to
the last question I asked about Canadian personnel serving
abroad. If there isn’t an answer now, maybe that could be
included in the written submission.

The Chair: I see we are at the end of the five minutes.

Mr. Beaudoin, will you be answering that question also?

Mr. Beaudoin: I think we will because it’s part of the
distribution.

The Chair: Thank you, sir.

Senator Duncan: A special thank you to my colleagues and
all of the witnesses who are here before us today.

In the supplementary estimates, the Privy Council Office is
requesting a transfer of $10 million to Health Canada for the
marketing and advertising campaign for the Government of
Canada’s COVID Alert app system.

Could I ask the witnesses to provide, in writing, an answer
about the efficacy of the COVID Alert app? For example, it’s not
in effect in all of Northern Canada, to the best of my knowledge.
While I appreciate that it’s more effective in the greater populous
and the more populous areas, a COVID Alert app that worked

M. Beaudoin : Nous devrons vous revenir sur la question des
registres d’immunisation. Je crois que cette initiative est dirigée
par Santé Canada, et non par I’Agence de la santé publique du
Canada. Je pense que nous pouvons régler la question entre nos
deux organismes et vous fournir une réponse par écrit.

En ce qui concerne les dons, nous travaillons déja avec
COVAX et je crois savoir que tous les vaccins excédentaires
seront donnés a d’autres pays. Nous travaillons actuellement
avec COVAX ou I'un des partenaires.

Le président : Monsieur Beaudoin, avant de donner la parole
au sénateur suivant, j’aimerais que vous nous précisiez quand
nous pouvons nous attendre a recevoir ces réponses par écrit.

M. Beaudoin : Je crois que nous devrions étre en mesure de
vous les faire parvenir d’ici une semaine, si c’est acceptable.

Le président : Nous avons des échéances a respecter. Je vais
demander a la greffiére de communiquer avec vous au sujet de
ces échéances, afin que nous puissions déposer notre rapport au
Sénat. Est-ce correct avec vous?

M. Beaudoin : Je pense que c’est correct.
Le président : Je vous remercie.

Le sénateur Boehm : Monsieur le président, si vous me le
permettez, j’aimerais préciser que je n’ai pas recu de réponse a
ma derniére question, c’est-a-dire celle sur le personnel canadien
qui travaille a 1’étranger. Si aucune réponse ne peut étre fournie
maintenant, elle pourrait peut-étre étre ajoutée a la réponse qui
nous sera envoyée par écrit.

Le président : Je vois que nous sommes arrivés a la fin des
cinq minutes.

Monsieur Beaudoin, allez-vous aussi

question?

répondre a cette

M. Beaudoin : Je crois que nous allons le faire, car cela fait
partie de la distribution.

Le président : Merci, monsieur.

La sénatrice Duncan : Je remercie tout particuliérement mes
collégues et tous les témoins qui sont présents aujourd’hui.

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses, le Bureau du
Conseil privé demande un transfert de 10 millions de dollars a
Santé Canada pour la campagne de marketing et de publicité
relative a D’application Alerte COVID du gouvernement du
Canada.

Puis-je demander aux témoins de fournir, par écrit, une
réponse sur D’efficacité de 1’application Alerte COVID? Par
exemple, elle ne fonctionne pas partout dans le Nord du Canada,
a ma connaissance. Bien que je comprenne qu’elle soit plus
efficace dans les grandes agglomérations et les régions les plus
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with our communication system in Northern Canada could
safeguard a whole community.

Could I have a preliminary report on the efficacy of that
system? How is it working? How is it reaching people? And
what provinces and territories have not signed on? If T could
have that answered in writing.

Also, about the immunization registry that Health Canada and
our other witnesses have referenced, could I also have a snapshot
of how effective the Canadian Institute for Health Information
has been in this whole process? They were originally instituted
in order that provincial health care cards could transfer
information. Where are they in this process and in this whole
pandemic? That’s the Canadian Institute for Health Information
and the exchange of information between provinces and
territories.

Finally, with regard to procurement, could I have the
information provided about the Phoenix pay system? The audio
quality was not very good. Could we have that presentation
submitted in writing to us so that we could have a look at it and
digest it?

What has been the impact of having public servants working
from home while dealing with the Phoenix pay system and the
backlog of claims? Have we been able to adjust and pivot to
enable people to work from home in processing the backlog?

I appreciate the opportunity to ask those questions. I look
forward to a response in written form. Thank you.

The Chair: Who will take the lead on those? Mr. Beaudoin or
Procurement Canada.

Mr. Zielonka: Perhaps if we could address the questions
around the Phoenix pay system. I have my colleague Stephanie
Kirkland on the line. She would be able to provide some
information.

The Chair: Thank you. Ms. Kirkland, please bring clarity to
the question.

Stephanie Kirkland, Assistant Deputy Minister, Pay
Administration Branch, Public Services and Procurement
Canada: Thank you very much for the question, Senator
Duncan. The entire pay operations made a successful shift to
remote working in March. We have been exceptionally
successful, in fact. We have continued to reduce the backlog of
cases. At this point, we have reduced the backlog by over 56%
since the peak in January 2018. We continue to meet our service
standards to the rate of 73% overall — an improvement of 57%

peuplées, si I’application Alerte COVID pouvait fonctionner
avec notre systéme de communication dans le Nord du Canada,
elle pourrait protéger toute une communauté.

Est-ce que je pourrais avoir un rapport préliminaire sur
I’efficacité de ce systéme? Comment fonctionne-t-il? Comment
atteint-il les gens? Et quels sont les provinces et territoires qui
n’ont pas adopté le systéme? J’aimerais avoir une réponse a cette
question par écrit.

Par ailleurs, en ce qui concerne le registre des immunisations
mentionné par Santé Canada et nos autres témoins, pourrais-je
également savoir dans quelle mesure 1’Institut canadien
d’information sur la santé a été efficace dans tout ce processus?
Le but, a Iorigine, était de permettre le transfert d’information
au moyen des cartes d’assurance maladie provinciales. Ou en
est-on dans ce processus et dans toute cette pandémie? Il s’agit
donc de I’Institut canadien d’information sur la santé et de
I’échange d’information entre les provinces et les territoires.

Enfin, en ce qui concerne 1’approvisionnement, pourrais-je
avoir I’information qui a ét¢ donnée au sujet du systéme de
rémunération Phénix? La qualité du son n’était pas trés bonne.
Pourrions-nous recevoir cette déclaration par écrit afin que nous
puissions 1’examiner et la digérer?

Quels sont les effets du travail a domicile des fonctionnaires
alors qu’ils doivent gérer les problémes liés au systeme de
rémunération Phénix et 1’arriéré des demandes? Avons-nous été
capables de nous adapter et de faire en sorte que les
fonctionnaires soient capables de traiter I’arriéré a partir de leur
domicile?

Je vous remercie de me donner I’occasion de poser ces
questions. J’attends avec impatience une réponse écrite. Je vous
remercie.

Le président : Qui va se charger de répondre a ces questions?
M. Beaudoin ou Approvisionnement Canada?

M. Zielonka : Peut-étre que nous pourrions répondre aux
questions concernant le systéme de rémunération Phénix. J’ai ma
collegue Stephanie Kirkland en ligne. Elle serait en mesure de
fournir de 1’information.

Le président : Je vous remercie. Madame Kirkland, veuillez
nous apporter des éclaircissements sur la question.

Stephanie Kirkland, sous-ministre adjointe, Direction
générale de ’administration de la paye, Services publics et
Approvisionnement Canada : Je vous remercie beaucoup de
cette question, sénatrice Duncan. L’ensemble des opérations de
paye a pu passer avec succeés au travail a distance en mars. En
fait, nous avons connu un succeés exceptionnel. Nous avons
continué a réduire I’arriéré des dossiers. A ce jour, nous avons
réduit ’arriéré de plus de 56 % depuis le pic de janvier 2018.
Nous continuons de répondre a nos normes de service, avec un
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since the last fiscal year. And we’re tracking to over 99% on the
high-priority areas for cases and service standard for maternity
and disability transactions.

We have been exceptionally successful in supporting our
personnel from a technology perspective. Senator, if [ may just
add that we have placed special emphasis on the wellness of our
employees across the country as well, ensuring that the use of
technology and communications remains stable and consistent to
support the staff.

We have also continued our efforts in our three-year plan
around pay stabilization, not only in supporting our staff but in
the dedicated teams that tackle the backlog of pay transactions.
We’re seeing great traction on those things.

We have continued, with our technology partners, to introduce
automation, robotics and technology solutions that allow the
system to do the work and allow our compensation advisers to
focus on the high-value, more complex work with great and
positive effect over the course of the last seven or eight months.

[ hope that answers your question for now. Thank you.

The Chair: Thank you. The clerk will communicate with the
Public Health Agency of Canada and Health Canada to make
sure that you can provide a reply in writing within the time frame
we have to table our report.

Senator Loffreda: Thank you to all our panellists and
colleagues. My question is for Health Canada. There is a request
for $100 million for drugs, medical devices and virtual care for
COVID.

How has the medical industry adapted to this, if you can
elaborate? What is the feedback from our patients and health
care professionals? Everybody believes this is the future, so I
assume there will be a larger investment going forward and that
Health Canada will request more funds going forward, but can
you elaborate on it? Is it helping with the backlog? We hear
there’s a large backlog with respect to essential operations or
interventions that need to be done in the medical field by
hospitals, but because of COVID this is being delayed. If you
can elaborate on that.

Yes, a large portion of medical care is provincial, but do you
feel there will be savings going forward because of the virtual
care that will take more and more room and space in the medical
industry? Thank you.

taux global de 73 %, soit une amélioration de 57 % depuis le
dernier exercice financier. De plus, nous atteignons un taux de
plus de 99 % dans les dossiers hautement prioritaires et nous
respectons les normes de service pour les transactions relatives
aux congés de maternité et d’invalidité.

Nous réussissons exceptionnellement bien a soutenir notre
personnel sur le plan technologique. Sénatrice, j’ajouterais
simplement que nous avons également insisté en particulier sur
le bien-étre de nos employés dans tout le pays et que, pour ce
faire, nous avons veillé a la stabilité et a la cohérence du recours
a la technologie et aux communications pour soutenir le
personnel.

Nous avons également poursuivi nos efforts dans le cadre de
notre plan triennal de stabilisation des salaires, non seulement en
soutenant notre personnel, mais aussi les équipes spécialisées qui
s’attaquent a ’arriéré des opérations de paye. Nous constatons
une forte progression a cet égard.

Nous avons continué, avec nos partenaires technologiques, a
implanter des solutions d’automatisation, de robotique et de
technologie qui permettent au systeme de faire le travail et & nos
conseillers en rémunération de se concentrer sur du travail plus
complexe et de grande valeur, ce qui a produit un effet important
et positif au cours des sept ou huit derniers mois.

J’espére que cela répond a votre question pour I’instant.
Merci.

Le président : Merci. La greffiere va communiquer avec
1’Agence de la santé publique du Canada et Santé Canada afin de
veiller a ce que vous puissiez répondre par écrit en tenant compte
de la date a laquelle le rapport doit étre déposé.

Le sénateur Loffreda : Merci a tous nos invités et collegues.
Ma question s’adresse a Santé Canada. Il y a une demande de
100 millions de dollars pour les médicaments, les dispositifs
médicaux et les soins virtuels liés a la COVID.

Comment 1’industrie médicale arrive-t-elle a s’adapter a cela,
si vous pouvez nous en dire plus? Quelles sont les réactions de
nos patients et des professionnels de la santé? Tout le monde
croit que c’est 1’avenir, alors je suppose qu’il y aura un
investissement plus important a 1’avenir et que Santé Canada
demandera plus de fonds a I’avenir, mais pouvez-vous nous en
dire plus? Est-ce que cela aide a réduire 1’arriéré? Nous
entendons dire qu’il y a un important arriéré en ce qui concerne
les opérations ou les interventions essentielles que les hopitaux
doivent exécuter, dans le domaine médical, mais a cause de la
COVID, il y a du retard. Vous pourriez nous en dire plus a ce
sujet.

Oui, une grande partie des soins médicaux reléve des
provinces, mais pensez-vous que les soins virtuels, qui prendront
de plus en plus de place dans I’industrie médicale, permettront
de réaliser des économies a 1’avenir? Je vous remercie.
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Mr. de Sousa: Thank you, senator, for that question. I’ll turn
it over to my colleague Marcel Saulnier in a minute. As you
mentioned, there is $100 million in these voted appropriations
for virtual care and medical devices, and that is actually offset by
the $100 million reduction in statutory. This was previously
approved in the Public Health Events of National Concern
Payments Act.

That funding is really, as you mentioned, to develop and
launch a virtual and mental health care application. This is part
of the government’s commitment to invest $240.5 million to
support those virtual care services so that Canadians can engage
effectively with their health providers through telephone, text or
video conferencing to have their needs met.

There are a number of initiatives underneath that, so perhaps
I'll turn it over to Marcel Saulnier for the balance of the
question.

Mr. Saulnier: Thank you for the question. There has been a
lot of work in this space over the last eight months. Provinces
and territories very quickly changed their approaches to funding
medical care in March to support virtual visits with doctors and
other health care providers. We went from something in the
range of fewer than 5% of visits being virtual before the
pandemic to now in the range of over half of interactions with
health care providers being done over the phone, video
conferencing or other virtual means.

That is a major change. The federal government has invested
funds in this space and is in the process of negotiating bilateral
agreements with each of the provinces to help them accelerate
this shift, put in place more platforms that support secure video
conferencing and secure messaging that enable patients to access
their test results online and that enable providers to monitor
patients remotely from the hospital or from their clinics. That’s
important work that is ongoing now with the support of Canada
Health Infoway as well, which is the national agency for digital
health.

With respect to the comment about the impact on supporting
delays in surgery or removing backlogs, I would just say that the
more you can free up hospitals and clinics from having patients
come into those facilities physically, and instead being dealt with
from home, the more capacity you are freeing up.

Sometimes even for surgeries, whether you have to have
specialist consultations either before or after the surgery, those
interactions can also be done virtually. Then the only in-person
interaction is when you actually have to come in for the
treatment or the surgery.

M. de Sousa : Je vous remercie de cette question, sénateur. Je
vais demander & mon collégue Marcel Saulnier d’y répondre
dans une minute. Comme vous ’avez mentionné, il y a 100
millions de dollars dans ces crédits votés pour les soins virtuels
et les dispositifs médicaux, et cela est en fait compensé par la
réduction de 100 millions de dollars des dépenses législatives.
Cela a été approuvé précédemment dans la Loi sur les paiements
relatifs aux événements de santé publique d’intérét national.

Comme vous I’avez mentionné, ce financement est en fait
destiné a développer et a lancer des outils virtuels en matiére de
soins et de sant¢ mentale. Cela fait partie de 1’engagement du
gouvernement a consacrer 240,5 millions de dollars au soutien
des services de soins virtuels afin que les Canadiens puissent
communiquer efficacement avec leurs fournisseurs de soins de
santé par téléphone, par message texte ou par vidéoconférence
pour que leurs besoins soient satisfaits.

Il y a un certain nombre d’initiatives sous-jacentes, alors je
vais peut-étre céder la parole a Marcel Saulnier pour le reste de
la question.

M. Saulnier : Je vous remercie de votre question. Il s’est fait
beaucoup de travail dans ce domaine au cours des huit derniers
mois. Les provinces et territoires ont trés rapidement modifié
leur approche du financement des soins médicaux en mars pour
soutenir les consultations virtuelles avec les médecins et autres
fournisseurs de soins de santé. Nous sommes passés de moins de
5 % de consultations virtuelles avant la pandémie a plus de la
moitié des interactions avec les fournisseurs de soins de santé par
téléphone, vidéoconférence ou autres moyens virtuels.

C’est un changement majeur. Le gouvernement fédéral a
investi des fonds dans ce domaine et est en train de négocier des
accords bilatéraux avec chacune des provinces pour les aider a
accélérer ce changement, a mettre en place davantage de
plateformes qui permettent la vidéoconférence et la messagerie
sécurisée, qui permettent aux patients d’accéder a leurs résultats
d’examens en ligne et qui permettent aux fournisseurs de
surveiller les patients a distance depuis 1’hdpital ou leur clinique.
C’est un travail important qui se poursuit actuellement avec le
soutien d’Inforoute Santé du Canada, qui est 1’agence nationale
du numérique en santé.

En ce qui concerne le commentaire au sujet des effets sur le
soutien apporté pour les retards dans les opérations chirurgicales
ou I’élimination des arriérés, je dirais simplement que plus vous
pouvez libérer les hopitaux et les cliniques en évitant que les
patients s’y rendent en personne et en leur permettant d’étre
traités chez eux, plus vous libérez la capacité.

Parfois, méme les consultations qui doivent avoir lieu avec un
spécialiste avant ou aprés la chirurgie peuvent étre virtuelles.
Dans ce cas, la seule interaction en personne a lieu lorsque vous
devez réellement vous présenter pour le traitement ou la
chirurgie.
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On the question of savings for the future, I think the jury is
still out. That’s something that we will be evaluating very
closely. We have some work going on now with the Centre for
Digital Health Evaluation at the University of Toronto, and we’ll
be working with provinces and territories to create a very robust
evaluation framework to look at how all of this impacts patient
care and the sustainability of funding for the health care system.
Thank you.

Senator Loffreda: Thank you for the answer.

Senator Smith: I have an operational question I want to ask.
I’m impressed with the feedback you are giving us. From a
rollout perspective, an operational plan perspective, have the
departments, like public health, procurement, have you folks sat
down and created a national SWAT team or logistics program? It
seems like we’re receiving segmented answers and different
types of questions that the senators are asking. Is there a national
program? Is there leadership? Who is the leader? What is going
on with the provinces?

If you could give me some sense of where you’re at with the
rollout. As Senator Marshall said, and Senator Boehm to a
certain extent, we hear about getting access to all this medicine,
and we seem to be at the back of the line. But the most important
thing for me to understand is the operational side. Do you have a
national plan? Who is in charge of the national plan? What’s the
relationship with the provinces? How is it going to affect the
population? What’s going to happen to Indigenous folks or
people in minority positions who may not have that direct access
to care? If you could give us a little of feedback, I’'m not sure
who could do that. We have about three minutes left.
Don’t answer too quickly.

Mr. Beaudoin: I think I’m best positioned to give you
an answer to that. We’re working very closely with PSPC, and
they have a task team in terms of the procurement. In terms of
the logistics, it’s clearly the Public Health Agency that’s in
charge of that. We are working very closely with the provinces.
The organization has created several VPs in charge of the
coordination, working with NACI and other groups.

Senator Smith: Do you have the involved,

Mr. Beaudoin?

military

Mr. Beaudoin: Yes. We actually have a major-general who is
on loan from the military for logistics and operations to help us
coordinate with the military.

We also have a chief technology officer who is in place
because not only do we have to distribute but we have to track,
we have to locate where it is, we have to know who has been
immunized. We have to coordinate all of that with the provinces.

Sur la question des économies a venir, je pense que rien n’est
encore joué. C’est une question que nous allons évaluer de trés
prés. Nous travaillons actuellement avec le Centre for Digital
Health Evaluation de 1’Université de Toronto, et nous allons
collaborer avec les provinces et les territoires pour créer un cadre
d’évaluation tres solide afin d’examiner les répercussions de tout
cela sur les soins aux patients et sur la durabilité du financement
du systéeme de santé. Je vous remercie.

Le sénateur Loffreda : Je vous remercie de votre réponse.

Le sénateur Smith : J’ai une question d’ordre opérationnel a
poser. Je suis impressionné par les réponses que vous nous
donnez. Du point de vue du déploiement, du plan opérationnel,
avez-vous discuté ensemble — la Santé publique,
Approvisionnement — et créé un groupe national d’intervention
d’urgence ou un programme logistique? On dirait que nous
recevons des réponses segmentées selon les différents types de
questions que les sénateurs posent. Y a-t-il un programme
national? Y a-t-il un leadership? Qui est le chef de file? Que se
passe-t-il avec les provinces?

J’aimerais que vous me donniez, si vous le pouvez, une idée
de l’état d’avancement du déploiement. Comme I’a dit la
sénatrice Marshall, et le sénateur Boehm dans une certaine
mesure, on nous parle de la possibilit¢ d’accéder a tous ces
médicaments et il semble que nous soyons a la traine. Mais la
chose la plus importante a comprendre pour moi est le coté
opérationnel. Avez-vous un plan national? Qui est responsable
du plan national? Quelle est la relation avec les provinces?
Comment cela va-t-il affecter la population? Que va-t-il arriver
aux peuples autochtones ou aux personnes en situation
minoritaire qui n’ont peut-étre pas un acces direct aux soins? Je
ne sais pas qui pourrait nous fournir de 1’information. Il nous
reste environ trois minutes. Prenez le temps de répondre.

M. Beaudoin : Je pense que je suis le mieux placé pour vous
répondre. Nous travaillons en étroite collaboration avec SPAC,
et ils ont une équipe de travail qui s’occupe du processus
d’approvisionnement. En ce qui concerne la logistique, c’est
manifestement 1’Agence de la santé publique qui s’en charge.
Nous travaillons en étroite collaboration avec les provinces.
L’organisation a nommé plusieurs vice-présidents qui s’occupent
de la coordination, de concert avec le Comité consultatif national
de I’immunisation, le CCNI, et d’autres groupes.

Le sénateur Smith : Est-ce que vous faites appel aux
militaires, monsieur Beaudoin?

M. Beaudoin : Oui. En fait, pour la logistique et les
opérations, I’armée a détaché un major-général qui nous aide a
assurer la coordination avec 1’armée.

Nous avons également un directeur de la technologie, car nous
ne devons pas seulement distribuer les vaccins, mais aussi les
suivre, les localiser et savoir qui a été vacciné. Nous devons
coordonner tout cela avec les provinces.
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My understanding as well is that there are discussions with
Indigenous organizations in terms of the rollout in those
communities as well. This is all being coordinated through the
Public Health Agency, and there are key positions in the
organization that have been set up to do that and coordinate with
other federal partners and provinces.

Senator Smith: Mr. Beaudoin, what is your assessment of
what you see so far? I’'m not trying to put you on the spot, but [
just want to make sure that there is a type of organizational
structure in place that will be able to actually deliver with a
minimum of conflict, a minimum of breakdowns and the
maximum of success.

Mr. Beaudoin: From what I see, the organization has a plan
to get this in place and to be ready effectively to roll out vaccines
as of January 1. We’re on track to deliver on that plan at this
point.

It is a monumental task. It is extremely challenging. My
understanding, from what I can see, is we’re on track to get
there.

Senator Smith: It all depends on getting product in your
hands so you can get the product out to doctors and medical
people who can take care of our population. Is that correct?

Mr. Beaudoin: Yes. What we want to do is be ready so that
when the product gets into our hands, we’re ready for the
distribution, the vaccination and coordination with provinces and
territories.

Senator Smith: Thank you.
[Translation]

Senator Dagenais: My question is for Mr. Beaudoin.

Mr. Beaudoin, just last week, in response to one of my
questions about the development of a plan to vaccinate
Canadians, the Leader of the Government in the Senate, Senator
Gold, told me that this issue fell under provincial jurisdiction.
Can you tell us whether any formal plan has been established
yet?

You just told us that you’re working with the provinces. I want
to ask you about your responsibilities and about whether Quebec
is part of the discussions. Premier Legault seems impatient with
the slowness of the process.

Mr. Beaudoin: To my knowledge, all the provinces are
involved, including Quebec. Of course, part of the issue falls
under federal jurisdiction, and the other part, such as syringes,
falls under provincial jurisdiction. The purchase, coordination
and distribution of vaccines to the provinces fall under federal

Je crois savoir aussi que des discussions sont en cours avec les
organisations autochtones en ce qui concerne le déploiement
dans leurs communautés. Tout cela est coordonné par I’ Agence
de la santé publique, et il y a des postes clés dans 1’organisation
qui ont été créés a cette fin et qui assurent la coordination avec
les autres partenaires fédéraux et les provinces.

Le sénateur Smith : Monsieur Beaudoin, quelle est votre
évaluation de ce que vous voyez jusqu’a présent? Je n’essaie pas
de vous mettre sur la sellette, mais je veux simplement m’assurer
qu’il existe un type de structure organisationnelle qui pourra
effectivement fonctionner avec un minimum de conflits, un
minimum de pannes et un maximum de succes.

M. Beaudoin : D’aprés ce que je vois, 1’organisation a un
plan pour tout mettre en place et pour étre préte a déployer
efficacement les vaccins a partir du 1¢* janvier. Nous sommes en
bonne voie de pouvoir mettre le plan a exécution.

Il s’agit d’une tdiche monumentale et extrémement difficile a
accomplir. A ma connaissance, nous sommes bien partis pour y
parvenir.

Le sénateur Smith : Vous devez avant tout avoir le produit
entre les mains pour pouvoir ’acheminer aux médecins et aux
personnes qui peuvent prendre soin de notre population, n’est-ce
pas?

M. Beaudoin : En effet. Lorsque nous aurons le produit entre
les mains, nous voulons étre préts a le distribuer, a procéder a la
vaccination et & assurer la coordination avec les provinces et les
territoires.

Le sénateur Smith : Merci.
[Frangais]

Le sénateur s’adresse a

M. Beaudoin.

Dagenais : Ma  question

Monsieur Beaudoin, pas plus tard que la semaine derniére, en
réponse a une de mes questions sur 1’élaboration d’un plan de
vaccination des Canadiens, le leader du gouvernement au Sénat,
le sénateur Gold, me disait qu’il s’agissait d’une responsabilité
provinciale. Pouvez-vous nous dire si on a déja établi quelque
chose de formel?

Vous venez de nous dire que vous travaillez avec les
provinces. J’ai donc envie de vous demander quelles sont vos
responsabilités et si le Québec fait partie des discussions. A
entendre le premier ministre Legault, il semble impatient devant
la lenteur du processus.

M. Beaudoin : A ma connaissance, toutes les provinces y
sont impliquées, y compris le Québec. Bien entendu, une
partie du dossier releve des compétences fédérales, et 1’autre
partie, comme les seringues, est de compétence provinciale.
L’achat, la coordination et la distribution des vaccins aux
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jurisdiction. To my knowledge, once in the hands of the
provinces, vaccination becomes a provincial responsibility. From
that perspective, the responsibility is shared with the provinces.

Senator Dagenais: I want to pick up on what my colleagues
said about vaccine availability. Yesterday, I heard Prime
Minister Trudeau say that perhaps we shouldn’t expect to have
the vaccines immediately. I heard this morning on Montreal
radio that, according to Minister Duclos, 400 million doses have
been reserved. However, reserving, purchasing and distributing
are different things. I’'m wondering whether the situation is a
total mess and whether more specific conditions for the delivery
of the vaccines should have been established. Everyone is talking
about delivery. That said, you and I both know that we can order
a Tesla without having it delivered the next day. Pfizer is
headquartered in the United States and has conducted research
with Germany. I think that they’ll be the first to use the vaccines,
which is only natural.

Why is Canada in a weak position, so to speak, from a
distribution perspective? We’re talking about the United States. I
gather that 300 million Americans will surely receive their
vaccines before we do, along with the citizens of the United
Kingdom and Germany. Why are we fourth in line?

Mr. Beaudoin: I think that there’s a negotiation component.
If we look at mask distribution, successful negotiations with the
United States enabled us to continue purchasing N95 masks. I'm
sure that discussions will be held at the political level between
the United States and Canada, and perhaps with other countries,
regarding vaccine distribution. We don’t expect to receive the
vaccines after the Americans have all received their vaccines.
Instead, we believe that we’ll receive them at the same time.

The issue is how many vaccines will be delivered to Canada
and how quickly, compared to the proportion delivered to the
United States.

Senator Dagenais: | have a question for Mr. Fillion. In June,
you received a special budget of $700 million, I believe, and
$445 million was added to the budget for a total of $1.145
billion. T want you to tell us what the first $700 million was used
for. Also, in terms of the subsequent $445 million, I believe that
you’ll receive $188 million to cover expenses that aren’t
necessarily related to COVID-19. Does this mean that the money
will be used to pay for something else and that the pandemic is
being treated as an opportunity to cover other expenses?

André Fillion, Assistant Deputy Minister, Defence and
Marine Procurement, Acquisitions Programs, Public Services
and Procurement Canada: [ don’t think that this question is for
me, because it doesn’t concern defence and marine issues.

provinces sont de compétence fédérale. Une fois entre les mains
des provinces, & ma connaissance, la vaccination devient une
responsabilité provinciale. De ce point de vue, la responsabilité
est partagée avec les provinces.

Le sénateur Dagenais : Si vous me le permettez, je voudrais
revenir sur ce que mes collégues ont dit concernant la
disponibilit¢ des vaccins. J’ai entendu le premier ministre
Trudeau hier dire qu’il ne fallait peut-étre pas s’attendre a les
avoir immédiatement. J’ai entendu ce matin a la radio de
Montréal que, selon le ministre Duclos, 400 millions de doses
sont réservées, mais réserver, acheter et distribuer sont des
choses différentes. Je me demande si une chatte n’en perd pas
ses petits, et si on n’aurait pas di prévoir des conditions plus
précises pour la livraison des vaccins. Tout le monde parle de
livraison, mais vous savez comme moi qu’on peut se commander
une Tesla sans qu’elle nous soit livrée le lendemain. La
compagnie Pfizer a son siége social aux Etats-Unis et a fait des
recherches avec 1’ Allemagne; je pense qu’ils seront les premiers
a se servir, et ¢’est tout a fait normal.

Qu’est-ce qui explique la faiblesse du Canada, si j’ose dire, du
point de vue de la distribution? On parle des Etats-Unis, je
comprends que 300 millions d’Américains recevront sirement
leurs vaccins avant nous, de méme que les citoyens du Royaume-
Uni et de I’Allemagne. Qu’est-ce qui fait qu’on se retrouve en
quatriéme position?

M. Beaudoin : Je crois qu’il y a un élément de négociation.
Si on regarde la distribution des masques, il y a des négociations
qui ont eu du succés avec les Etats-Unis et qui nous ont permis
de continuer d’acheter des masques N95. Il y a des discussions
qui vont avoir lieu, j’en suis sir, au niveau politique entre les
Etats-Unis et le Canada, et peut-étre avec d’autres pays, pour la
distribution des vaccins. On ne s’attend pas a recevoir les
vaccins apreés que les Américains auront tous regu les leurs, mais
on croit plutot les recevoir en paralléle.

La question, c’est de savoir quelle quantité sera livrée au
Canada, et & quelle vitesse, comparativement a la proportion qui
sera livrée aux Etats-Unis.

Le sénateur Dagenais : J’ai une question pour M. Fillion. Un
budget spécial vous a été¢ accordé en juin, de 700 millions de
dollars, je crois, auquel on a ajouté 445 millions de dollars pour
un total de 1,145 milliard de dollars. J’aimerais que vous nous
disiez a quoi ont servi les 700 premiers millions. De plus, en ce
qui concerne les 445 millions de dollars subséquents, je crois que
vous allez recevoir 188 millions de dollars pour couvrir des
dépenses qui ne sont pas nécessairement liées a la COVID-19.
Doit-on comprendre que cela servira a payer autre chose et qu’on
profite de la pandémie pour passer d’autres dépenses?

André Fillion, sous-ministre adjoint, Approvisionnement
maritime et de défense, Programmes des
approvisionnements, Services publics et Approvisionnement
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Mr. Beaudoin: I’ll need to give you a written answer. I’m not
sure whether the question is really for the agency. I want to take
a closer look at the matter and give you a written answer.

The Chair: Is a written answer acceptable to you, Senator
Dagenais? I’ll now turn the floor over to Senator Galvez.

[English]

Senator Galvez: I am glad to be the last to ask questions, but
hopefully next time I'1l be the first.

My colleagues said it well with respect to our worries
concerning COVID: the response, PPE and vaccines. I want to
continue in that line, but I will have two specific questions and
one general question.

In the supplementary estimates there is a request of $400
million to provide supplies to the health system in response to
COVID-19. The funding will be used to acquire and distribute
key goods and services, the PPE. Among all the PPE, which are
the most important? From where are they coming? Initially, in
the first wave, they were all coming from overseas. Have we
changed that?

We know that we will probably require a couple of dosages of
the vaccine; one won’t be enough. Chances are that COVID-19
remains endemic, so new waves will be coming.

My second question deals with the funds that have been
allocated for the cleanup of orphan and inactive wells in the
West. An amount of $1.72 billion was already given to the
provinces to deal with this important pollution issue. In the
supplementary estimates there is now a request for another $1
billion.

When will the funds be provided to Saskatchewan and British
Columbia to clean up these inactive oil and gas wells? How
many orphan and inactive oil and gas wells are in Alberta, and
how many will be cleaned up with these funds?

My third question is a global one. What is the percentage
difference compared to last year’s budget and estimates?

Mr. Beaudoin: Thank you for the questions, senator.

In terms of PPE, I will defer the question to my colleague
Peter Linkletter to reply as to where they’re coming from.

Canada : Je pense que la question ne s’adresse pas a moi,
puisque le sujet ne concerne pas la défense et la marine.

M. Beaudoin : Je vais étre obligé de vous répondre par écrit,
parce que je ne suis pas sir que la question s’adresse réellement
a l’agence. Je voudrais 1’examiner de plus prés pour vous
répondre par écrit.

Le président : Par écrit, ca vous va, sénateur Dagenais?
Maintenant, je passe la parole a la sénatrice Galvez.

[Traduction]

La sénatrice Galvez : Je suis contente d’étre la dernicre a
poser des questions, mais j’espére que la prochaine fois, je serai
la premicére.

Mes collégues ont trés bien exprimé nos préoccupations au
sujet de la COVID : la réponse, 1’équipement de protection
personnelle et les vaccins. Je veux poursuivre dans la méme
veine, mais j’aurai deux questions précises et une question
générale.

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses, un montant de
400 millions de dollars est demandé pour approvisionner le
systéme de santé en réponse a la COVID-19. Ces fonds serviront
a ’acquisition et a la distribution de biens et services clés, dont
I’EPI. Parmi tout ’EPI, qu’est-ce qui est le plus important? D’ou
vient-il? Au départ, lors de la premiére vague, I’EPI venait
exclusivement de 1’étranger. Avons-nous changé cela?

Nous savons que nous aurons probablement besoin de deux
doses du vaccin, car une seule ne suffira pas. Il est fort probable
que la COVID-19 demeure endémique et que d’autres vagues se
produisent.

Ma deuxieéme question porte sur les fonds qui ont été prévus
pour le nettoyage des puits orphelins et inactifs dans 1’Ouest. Un
montant de 1,72 milliard de dollars a déja été versé aux
provinces pour faire face a ce grave probleme de pollution. Dans
le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses, un autre milliard de
dollars est maintenant demandé.

Quand les fonds seront-ils versés a la Saskatchewan et a la
Colombie-Britannique pour le nettoyage des puits de pétrole et
de gaz inactifs? Combien y a-t-il de puits de pétrole et de gaz
orphelins et inactifs en Alberta, et combien seront nettoyés grace
a ces fonds?

Ma troisiéme question est d’ordre général. Quelle est la
différence en pourcentage par rapport au budget et aux
estimations de ’année derniere?

M. Beaudoin : Je vous remercie de vos questions, sénatrice.

En ce qui concerne 1’équipement de protection individuelle, je
vais laisser a mon collégue Peter Linkletter le soin de répondre a
la question concernant leur provenance.
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To your question about requiring two doses of the vaccine and
whether this is endemic, it’s something we’re looking at and
have considered whether we will need to have — similar to
annual flu campaigns — annual COVID campaigns. The science
isn’t yet clear on that. Time will tell.

In terms of the budget difference between this year and last
year, as you know, our total agency budget is about $650
million, and what we’re presenting this year is almost $21 billion
in total. All of this growth is COVID related, so there is no way
to compare the two budgets.

I will defer to my colleague Peter Linkletter in terms of where
the PPE is coming from.

Mr. Linkletter: Thank you, senator, for the question.

In terms of the PPE and medical equipment, it depends on the
specific commodity. I’ll give you an example.

In terms of gloves, they are largely from China and some from
Malaysia. In the case of face shields, we have a considerable
domestic capacity, thanks to the great work done in terms of
mobilizing the industry in Canada. We have about 80% of face
shields coming from Canada. In terms of respirators, we have
considerable self-sufficiency within Canada.

It depends on the commodity, and we have a breakdown. We
would receive PPE, for instance, from Canada, China,
Dominican Republic, Malaysia, Mexico and Taiwan. We have a
true global supply chain. We’re always trying to move toward
domestic self-sufficiency with companies like 3M and Medicom,
that are able to satisfy our needs more locally.

I hope that helps to answer the question, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: Thank you.

Does Health Canada have comments on any of the questions?

Mr. de Sousa: Thank you, senator, for the question.

In terms of the budget question, our Main Estimates for this
year would have been $2.7 billion. Through the updates we’re
talking about, the supplementary estimates, we are now at a $4-
billion amount for this year. Like the Public Health Agency, I
think these significant increases are all related to COVID. It
doesn’t mean these are ongoing amounts; it’s to respond to the
pandemic as we see it today. Thank you.

The Chair: Thank you.

Quant a votre question sur les deux doses qui sont nécessaires
et sur le caractére endémique de la maladie, nous 1’examinons et
réfléchissons a la nécessité d’organiser — comme pour les
campagnes annuelles de lutte contre la grippe — des campagnes
annuelles de vaccination contre la COVID. La science n’est pas
encore au point la-dessus. Le temps nous le dira.

Pour ce qui est de la différence entre le budget de cette année
et celui de I’année derniére, comme vous le savez, le budget total
de I’Agence est d’environ 650 millions de dollars, et celui que
nous présentons cette année est de prés de 21 milliards de dollars
au total. Cette augmentation est entiérement attribuable a la
COVID, de sorte qu’il est impossible de comparer les deux
budgets.

Je m’en remets a mon collégue Peter Linkletter pour ce qui est
de la provenance de I’EPI.

M. Linkletter : Merci de votre question, sénatrice.

En ce qui concerne I’EPI et I’équipement médical, cela dépend
du produit en question. Je vais vous donner un exemple.

Les gants proviennent principalement de Chine et en partie de
Malaisie. Pour ce qui est des écrans faciaux, nous disposons
d’une capacité nationale considérable, grace a 1’excellent travail
de mobilisation de I’industrie au Canada. Environ 80 % des
écrans faciaux sont fabriqués au Canada. Pour les respirateurs,
nous avons une autonomie considérable au Canada.

Tout dépend du produit, et nous en avons fait la ventilation.
Par exemple, nous recevons de I’EPI du Canada, de la Chine, de
la République dominicaine, de la Malaisie, du Mexique et de
Taiwan. Nous avons une véritable chaine d’approvisionnement
mondiale. Nous essayons toujours d’aller vers 1’autosuffisance
nationale avec des entreprises comme 3M et Medicom, qui sont
capables de satisfaire nos besoins plus localement.

J’espére que cela répond a la question, monsieur le président.
Le président : Merci.

Est-ce que quelqu’un de Santé Canada aimerait dire quelque
chose en réponse aux questions?

M. de Sousa : Merci de votre question, sénatrice.

Pour la question relative au budget, notre montant dans le
Budget principal des dépenses pour cette année aurait été¢ de 2,7
milliards de dollars. Avec les mises a jour dont nous parlons, le
Budget supplémentaire des dépenses, nous en sommes
maintenant a un montant de 4 milliards de dollars pour cette
année. Comme pour I’Agence de la santé publique, je crois que
ces augmentations importantes sont toutes liées a la COVID. 11
ne s’agit pas de montants permanents; ils servent a répondre a la
pandémie telle que nous la voyons aujourd’hui. Je vous remercie.

Le président : Merci.
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Honourable senators, we have time for two more questions.

Senator Galvez: Chair, there was one missing question on the
orphan wells. Can somebody reply in written form?

The Chair: Yes. I’'ll direct the information to the clerk.

Clerk, please have the witnesses from each organization look
at the last question posed by Senator Galvez so that we can have
an answer in writing.

Senator Marshall: I will ask my question, and if we can get
the answer in writing that would be fine.

How much in total has been spent so far on vaccine
development? I’d like the dollar amount, but I’d also like to
know what departments and agencies have been involved in
spending that money. Is it just the Public Health Agency of
Canada, or are there other organizations or departments?

[Translation]

Senator Forest: My question concerns the significant level of
coordination that will be required when we receive certification
and the doses for distribution across the country. You said that
you’re working with the provinces. However, is there any
consensus at this point? Will health care workers be among the
first vaccinated? Do the distribution guidelines contain any
findings made by the provinces and territories? Are the rollout
and distribution well planned? We received a report following a
study on the HIN1 pandemic a few years ago. Were any major
lessons learned from this study?

The Chair: To whom is your question addressed, Senator
Forest?

Senator Forest: To those who are comfortable responding.
Health Canada, probably.

[English)

Mr. de Sousa: Thank you for the question. I believe that’s a
question more appropriately directed to the Public Health
Agency of Canada. Thank you.

[Translation]

Mr. Beaudoin: Senator Forest, I think that this question is
very similar to the question asked earlier, which I wanted to pass
on to Ms. Elmslie, regarding how vaccination will be prioritized

Honorables sénateurs, il nous reste du temps pour deux autres
questions.

La sénatrice Galvez : Monsieur le président, il n’y a pas eu
de réponse a la question sur les puits orphelins. Est-ce que
quelqu’un peut y répondre par écrit?

Le président : Oui. Je vais vous demander de transmettre
I’information a la greffiere.

Madame la greffiere, veuillez demander aux témoins de
chaque organisation de regarder la derniére question que la
sénatrice Galvez a posée afin que nous puissions obtenir la
réponse par écrit.

La sénatrice Marshall : Je vais poser ma question, et une
réponse écrite fera 1’affaire.

Combien d’argent a été dépensé au total jusqu’a présent pour
le développement de vaccins? J’aimerais connaitre le montant en
dollars, mais j’aimerais aussi savoir quels ministéres et agences
ont fait ces dépenses. S’agit-il seulement de 1’Agence de la santé
publique du Canada, ou y a-t-il d’autres organisations ou
ministeres?

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Ma question porte sur 1’important
niveau de coordination qui sera nécessaire quand nous allons
recevoir 1’accréditation et les doses a distribuer a 1’échelle
nationale. Vous dites travailler avec les provinces, mais y a-t-il
certains consensus qui se dégagent a 1’heure actuelle? Est-ce que
les travailleurs de la santé seront parmi les premiers a étre
vaccinés? Dans les lignes directrices de cette distribution, y a-t-il
une constatation qui est faite par les provinces et les territoires?
Est-ce que le déploiement et la distribution sont bien planifiés?
Nous avons regu un rapport produit a la suite d’une étude menée
sur la pandémie de HIN1 il y a quelques années. A-t-on tiré de
grandes lecons de cette étude?

Le président : A qui s’adresse votre question, sénateur
Forest?

Le sénateur Forest : Ceux ou celles qui sont a ’aise d’y
répondre. Santé Canada, probablement.

[Traduction]

M. de Sousa : Je vous remercie de cette question. Je pense
que c’est plutot a 1’Agence de la santé publique du Canada qu’il
convient de poser cette question. Je vous remercie.

[Frangais]

M. Beaudoin : Sénateur Forest, je pense que c’est trés
semblable a la question posée plus tot que je voulais transmettre
a Mme Elmslie concernant la fagon dont la priorité sera accordée
a la vaccination selon la population. Je crois que nous nous
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by population. I think that we already committed to providing a
written response to that part of the question.

In terms of the changes made in response to the HINI
pandemic report, I believe that I can also include this
information in the written response prepared by our infectious
diseases department.

Senator Forest: I'm particularly interested in this aspect.
There was a fairly effective rollout across Canada, including in
Quebec. You prepared a report, but we couldn’t access these
findings. They could help us avoid making the same mistakes
twice in the case of COVID-19.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Beaudoin.
[English]

To all of the witnesses, on behalf of the committee, this was
very informative and there is no doubt in my mind that we all
want to thank you for your dedication and devotion to a
challenge that our country has never seen before. On that, you
have been very informative and very professional. Thank you
very much.

Honourable senators, we will now move to the second panel.
We welcome, from Employment and Social Development
Canada, Mark Perlman, Chief Financial Officer; he is
accompanied by Jason Won, Deputy Chief Financial Officer;
CIliff Groen, Assistant Deputy Minister, Benefits Delivery
Services; and Elisha Ram, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Skills and Employment Branch.

We also welcome, from Indigenous Services Canada, Philippe
Thompson, Chief Finances, Results and Delivery Officer; who is
accompanied by Keith Conn, Senior Assistant Deputy Minister,
First Nations and Inuit Health Branch; and Mary-Luisa Kapelus,
Assistant Deputy Minister, Education and Social Development
Programs and Partnerships Sector.

Finally, we welcome, from the Department of Finance Canada,
Darlene Bess, Chief Financial Officer, Financial Management
Directorate, Corporate Services Branch; she is accompanied by
Miodrag Jovanovic, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister, Tax
Policy Branch; Sam Millar, Director General, Corporate Finance,
Natural Resources and Environment, Economic Development
and Corporate Finance Branch; and Galen Countryman, Director
General, Federal-Provincial Relations, Federal-Provincial
Relations and Social Policy Branch.

We have other officials with Ms. Bess who can be called upon
to answer questions from senators.

sommes déja engagés a répondre par écrit & cette partie de la
question.

En ce qui concerne les changements effectués en réponse au
rapport sur la pandémie de HINI, je crois pouvoir inclure ces
renseignements également dans la réponse écrite que préparera
notre département des maladies infectieuses.

Le sénateur Forest: Cette dimension m’interpelle
particuliérement. Il y avait eu un déploiement assez efficace dans
I’ensemble du Canada, y compris au Québec, et vous aviez
produit un rapport, mais on n’a pas eu acceés a ces conclusions.
Cela pourrait nous guider pour éviter de répéter deux fois les
mémes erreurs dans le cadre de la COVID-19.

Le président : Merci beaucoup, monsieur Beaudoin.
[Traduction]

Nous avons eu une séance trés instructive, et il ne fait aucun
doute que le comité entier vous remercie de votre dévouement et
de votre engagement a relever ce défi sans précédent pour notre
pays. Sur ce point, vous nous avez fourni beaucoup
d’information et avez fait preuve d’un grand professionnalisme.
Je vous remercie beaucoup.

Honorables sénateurs, nous allons maintenant passer au
deuxiéme groupe de témoins. Nous accueillons, d’Emploi et
Développement social Canada, Mark Perlman, dirigeant
principal des finances; il est accompagné de Jason Won, adjoint
au dirigeant principal des finances; Cliff Groen, sous-ministre
adjoint, Services de versement des prestations; et Elisha Ram,
sous-ministre  adjoint délégué, Direction générale des
compétences et de I’emploi.

Nous accueillons également, de Services aux Autochtones
Canada, Philippe Thompson, dirigeant principal des finances,
des résultats et de I’exécution, qui est accompagné de Keith
Conn, sous-ministre adjoint principal, Direction générale de la
sant¢ des Premiéres Nations et des Inuits, et de Mary-Luisa
Kapelus, sous-ministre adjointe, Secteur des programmes et des
partenariats en matiére d’éducation et de développement social.

Enfin, nous accueillons, du ministére des Finances du Canada,
Darlene Bess, dirigeante de la gestion financiére, Division de la
gestion financiére, Direction des services ministériels; elle est
accompagnée de Miodrag Jovanovic, sous-ministre adjoint
délégué, Direction de la politique de I’'impdt; Sam Millar,
directeur général, Finances intégrées, ressources naturelles et
environnement, Direction du développement économique et
finances intégrées; et Galen Countryman, directeur général,
Relations fédérales-provinciales, Direction des relations
fédérales-provinciales et de la politique sociale.

Mme Bess est accompagnée d’autres fonctionnaires qui
peuvent étre appelés a répondre aux questions des sénateurs.
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Welcome to all of you, and thank you for accepting our
invitation. Opening remarks will be first, being mindful of the
five-minute rule. We will start with Mr. Perlman, followed by
Mr. Thompson and Ms. Bess. Mr. Perlman, the floor is yours,
please.

Mark Perlman, Chief Financial Officer, Employment and
Social Development Canada: Thank you, Mr. Chair and
members of the committee.

I am pleased to appear before you in my capacity as Chief
Financial Officer of ESDC to provide an overview of the
department’s 2020-21 Main Estimates and Supplementary
Estimates (B).

Employment and Social Development Canada delivers a wide
range of programs and services that affect Canadians throughout
their lives. The department provides seniors with basic income
security, supports unemployed workers and helps students
finance their post-secondary education, especially during this
difficult time for Canadians.

The department also has the mandate to maintain a strong,
productive, healthy and competitive workplace within the federal
jurisdiction through the Labour Program. Service Canada
delivers ESDC’s programs to citizens, as well as other
Government of Canada programs and services. I will begin with
an overview of ESDC’s portion of the 2020-21 Main Estimates
originally tabled on February 27, 2020.

The Main Estimates for ESDC amount to $68.6 billion — an
increase of $3.8 billion when compared to the 2019-20 Main
Estimates. Of this, $64.8 billion, or 94%, will directly benefit
Canadians through the Old Age Security program and other
statutory transfer payment programs.

In these Main Estimates, the department is showing an
increase in statutory payments for Old Age Security pensions,
the Guaranteed Income Supplement and allowance payments.
Collectively these benefits increased by $3.3 billion, which is
explained by the expected increases to the monthly average
benefit amounts and changes to the number of beneficiaries.

Other statutory programs, such as the Canada Student Loans
and Grants and Canada Disability Savings Grants and Bonds
have also increased by $275.4 million and $112.2 million
respectively.

Canada Student Loans and Grants are increasing primarily due
to increased grant amounts for low-income, middle-income and
part-time students provided through the Canada Student Grants.

Bienvenue a tous, et merci d’avoir accepté notre invitation.
Nous allons commencer par les déclarations liminaires, qui ne
doivent pas dépasser cinq minutes. Nous commencerons par
M. Perlman, qui sera suivi de M. Thompson, puis de Mme Bess.
Monsieur Perlman, la parole est a vous.

Mark Perlman, dirigeant principal des finances, Emploi et
Développement social Canada : Je vous remercie, monsieur le
président et distingués membres du comité.

Je suis heureux de comparaitre devant vous en ma qualité de
dirigeant principal des finances d’Emploi et Développement
social Canada, ou EDSC, pour présenter au comité un apercu du
Budget principal des dépenses et du Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses (B) de 2020-2021.

Emploi et Développement social Canada offre une vaste
gamme de programmes et de services qui touchent les Canadiens
tout au long de leur vie. Le ministére offre aux ainés une sécurité
du revenu de base, soutient les chdmeurs et aide les étudiants a
financer leurs études postsecondaires, surtout en cette période
difficile pour les Canadiens.

Le ministére a également le mandat de maintenir un milieu de
travail solide, productif, sain et concurrentiel au sein de la
compétence fédérale grace au Programme du travail. Service
Canada offre aux citoyens les programmes d’EDSC, ainsi que
d’autres programmes et services du gouvernement du Canada.
Pour débuter, je vais donner un apergu de la part d’EDSC du
Budget principal des dépenses initialement déposé le
27 février 2020.

Le Budget principal des dépenses d’EDSC de 2020-2021
s’¢léve a 68,6 milliards de dollars, une augmentation de 3,8
milliards de dollars par rapport au Budget principal des dépenses
de 2019-2020. De ce montant, 64,8 milliards de dollars, ou 94 %,
profiteront directement aux Canadiens et Canadiennes par
I’entremise de la Sécurité de la vieillesse et d’autres programmes
de paiements de transfert 1égislatifs.

Dans ce Budget principal des dépenses, le ministére présente
une augmentation des paiements 1égislatifs pour la Sécurité de la
vieillesse, le Supplément de revenu garanti et des paiements
d’allocations. Collectivement, ces prestations ont augmenté de
3,3 milliards de dollars, ce qui s’explique par les augmentations
prévues des montants mensuels moyens des prestations et par les
variations du nombre de bénéficiaires.

D’autres programmes législatifs, comme le Programme
canadien de préts et bourses aux étudiants ainsi que la
Subvention canadienne et le Bon canadien pour 1’épargne-
invalidité, ont aussi augmenté de 275,4 millions et de 112,2
millions de dollars respectivement.

Les préts et bourses canadiens aux étudiants présentent une
augmentation qui est principalement liée aux hausses des bourses
canadiennes pour les étudiants a revenu faible et moyen, incluant
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Canada Disability Savings Grants and Bonds increased due to
the steady growth in total registered plans and participation in
the program.

In addition to statutory items under Vote 1 operating
expenditures, the department plans to spend $803.3 million in
2020-21 — an increase of $100.5 million from the 2019-20 Main
Estimate of $702.8 million.

The net increase is mainly related to additional funding
approved for the Old Age Security Service Improvement
Strategy and workload, the Temporary Foreign Worker Program,
including the Global Talent Stream, Canada Service Corps and
the modernization of federal labour standards.

For Vote 5 grants and contributions, the 2020-21 Main
Estimates request is $3 billion — an increase of $292.6 million
from the 2010-20 Main Estimates. The increase of $292.6
million is mainly attributable to investments announced in
Budget 2018 and Budget 2019 to the Student Work Placement
Program, the Indigenous Early Learning and Child Care
Transformation Initiative, the Workforce Development
Agreements and the Canada Service Corps.

You will note that Employment Insurance, EI, benefits and
Canada Pension Plan, CPP, benefits and administrative costs are
excluded from the department’s Main Estimates. The EI
operating account and the CPP are two specified-purpose
accounts, which are reflected in the Departmental Plan tabled in
March.

I will now move to an overview of ESDC’s portion of the
2020-21 Supplementary Estimates (B) tabled on October 22,
2020. As part of Supplementary Estimates (B), ESDC is seeking
$48 million in voted appropriations, $34.3 million under Vote 1
operating expenditures and $13.7 million under Vote 5 grants
and contributions. This includes funding of $23.4 million for
retroactive compensation to enable the department to meet
obligations from a long-standing grievance which resulted in a
reclassification.

The COVID-19 pandemic has highlighted the acute need for
additional workers in long-term care facilities, home care and
assisted living services. ESDC is requesting $12.5 million for
training of personal support workers and measures to address
labour shortages in long-term and home care.

ceux a temps partiel, au titre du Programme canadien de bourses
aux étudiants. La Subvention canadienne et le Bon canadien pour
I’épargne-invalidité ont augmenté en raison de la hausse
constante de 1’ensemble des régimes enregistrés et de la
participation accrue au programme.

En plus des postes 1égislatifs au titre du crédit 1 — Dépenses de
fonctionnement, le ministére prévoit dépenser 803,3 millions de
dollars en 2020-2021, ce qui représente une hausse de 100,5
millions de dollars par rapport au Budget principal des dépenses
de 2019-2020, qui s’élevait a 702,8 millions de dollars.

L’augmentation nette est principalement attribuable au
financement supplémentaire approuvé pour la Stratégie
d’amélioration des services de la Sécurité de la vieillesse et la
charge de travail, le Programme des travailleurs étrangers
temporaires, y compris le volet Talents mondiaux, le Service
jeunesse Canada et la modernisation des normes du travail
fédérales.

En ce qui a trait au crédit 5 — Subventions et contributions, le
Budget principal des dépenses de 2020-2021 s’éléve a 3
milliards de dollars, ce qui représente une augmentation de 292,6
millions de dollars par rapport au Budget principal des dépenses
de 2019-2020. L’augmentation de 292,6 millions de dollars est
principalement attribuable aux investissements annoncés dans les
budgets de 2018 et 2019 relativement au Programme de stages
pratiques pour étudiants, a I’Initiative de transformation de
I’apprentissage et de la garde des jeunes enfants autochtones, aux
Ententes sur le développement de la main-d’ceuvre et au Service
jeunesse Canada.

Vous remarquerez que les prestations et les colts
administratifs de 1’assurance-emploi et du Régime de pensions
du Canada sont exclus du Budget principal des dépenses du
ministere. Il s’agit en effet de deux comptes a fins déterminées,
inclus dans le plan ministériel déposé en mars.

Je vais maintenant présenter un apercu de la part ’EDSC dans
le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de 2020-2021 qui a
été déposé le 22 octobre 2020. Dans le cadre du Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B), EDSC souhaite obtenir un
montant additionnel de 48 millions de dollars en crédits votés,
soit 34,4 millions au titre du crédit 1 — Dépenses de
fonctionnement et 13,7 millions au titre du crédit 5 —
Subventions et Contributions. Ceci inclut un financement de 23,4
millions en rémunération rétroactive pour permettre au ministére
d’honorer les obligations découlant d’un grief de longue date qui
a mené a une reclassification.

La pandémie de COVID-19 a mis en lumiére le besoin criant
en main-d’ceuvre supplémentaire dans les établissements de
soins de longue durée, les services de soins a domicile et 1’aide a
la vie autonome. EDSC demande 12,5 millions de dollars pour la
formation des préposés aux bénéficiaires et les mesures visant a
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pallier la pénurie de main-d’ceuvre dans les établissements de
soins de longue durée et le secteur des soins a domicile.

Additionally, $6.9 million to address the outbreak of Le ministére demande en outre 6,9 millions de dollars pour

COVID-19 among temporary foreign workers on farms is being
requested. Since the very beginning of the pandemic, the
Government of Canada has taken a number of important steps to
ensure the safe arrival of farm workers, who play a vital role in
preserving Canada’s food security.

Funding for investment in early learning and child care,
Benefits Delivery Modernization, Canada’s Homelessness
Strategy and horizontal initiatives across multiple federal
departments, such as government advertising programs and
funding to support business resumption for federally regulated
employers due to the COVID-19 crisis is also requested.

You will note that in these supplementary estimates, the
forecast for budgetary statutory items has increased by $31.3
billion. This is due to payments pursuant to the Public Health
Events of National Concern Payments Act for COVID-19
response measures undertaken by ESDC, the largest component
being the increase of $28.5 billion to the Canada Emergency
Response Benefit. This was an increase to the $60 billion
presented for CERB in Supplementary Estimates (A) and reflects
extensions to the program announced in June 2020.

In addition, there is a $1.4-billion increase to the Canada
Student Loans Program related to the temporary COVID-19
measure doubling the Canada Student Grants for 2020-21.

There is also a new statutory item of $848.6 million related to
a one-time payment to persons with disabilities. This one-time,
non-taxable and non-reportable payment of up to $600 to persons
with disabilities is to address extraordinary expenses incurred as
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Finally, there is a net increase of $1.2 billion for the non-
budgetary statutory items, which include the Canada Student
Loans and the Canada Apprentice Loan. This increase reflects
the impact of several Canada Student Loan Program COVID-19
response measures, including a temporary increase to the weekly
loan limits, the waiving of student and spousal contributions and
the six-month moratorium on loan repayments.

lutter contre les éclosions de COVID-19 parmi les travailleurs
étrangers temporaires a 1’ceuvre dans les fermes. Depuis le tout
début de la pandémie, le gouvernement du Canada a pris un
certain nombre de mesures importantes pour assurer 1’arrivée en
toute sécurité des travailleurs agricoles, qui jouent un rdle crucial
pour préserver la sécurité alimentaire au Canada.

Un financement est également demandé pour I’investissement
dans [D’apprentissage précoce et la garde d’enfants, la
modernisation du versement des prestations, la Stratégie
canadienne pour les sans-abri et les initiatives horizontales dans
plusieurs ministéres fédéraux, comme les programmes de
publicité¢ du gouvernement et le financement a 1’appui de la
reprise des activités des employeurs sous réglementation fédérale
par suite de la crise de la COVID-19.

Vous remarquerez que dans ce Budget supplémentaire des
dépenses, la prévision des postes budgétaires législatifs a
augmenté de 31,3 milliards de dollars. Cela est dii aux paiements
au titre de la Loi sur les paiements relatifs aux événements de
santé publique d’intérét national pour les mesures d’intervention
contre la COVID-19 prises par EDSC. L’¢élément le plus
important est I’augmentation de 28,5 milliards de dollars de la
Prestation canadienne d’urgence, ou PCU. Il s’agit d’une
augmentation de 60 milliards de dollars présentés pour la PCU
dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (A), laquelle est
attribuable aux prolongations du programme annoncées
en juin 2020.

De plus, il y a une augmentation de 1,4 milliard de dollars
pour le Programme canadien de préts aux étudiants en raison de
la mesure temporaire relative a la COVID-19, qui double les
bourses canadiennes aux étudiants pour 2020-2021.

Un nouveau poste législatif de 848,6 millions de dollars est
aussi inclus et est reli€¢ au paiement unique de soutien aux
personnes en situation de handicap. Ce paiement forfaitaire d’un
maximum de 600 $, non imposable et non déclarable, est destiné
a soutenir les Canadiens en situation de handicap pour les aider a
payer des dépenses extraordinaires causées par la pandémie de
COVID-19.

Enfin, il y a une augmentation nette de 1,2 milliard de dollars
des postes législatifs non budgétaires, laquelle inclut les préts
canadiens aux étudiants et aux apprentis. Cette augmentation
témoigne de l’effet de plusieurs nouvelles mesures de lutte
contre la COVID-19 pour le Programme canadien de préts aux
étudiants, dont une augmentation de la limite de prét
hebdomadaire, 1’élimination des contributions des étudiants et
des conjoints, et le moratoire temporaire de six mois sur les
remboursements de préts.
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Philippe Thompson, Chief Finances, Results and Delivery
Officer, Indigenous Services Canada: Thank you, Mr. Chair
and honourable senators, for the invitation to discuss the 2020-21
Main Estimates and Supplementary Estimates (B) for Indigenous
Services Canada. I would also like to acknowledge that Canada’s
Parliament is located on the unceded traditional territory of the
Algonquin people.

With me today are my colleagues Keith Conn from the First
Nations and Inuit Health Branch and Mary-Luisa Kapelus from
the Education and Social Development Programs and
Partnerships Sector.

[Translation]

As the resurgence of COVID-19 activity continues in Canada,
I’d like to take a brief moment to update you on the status of the
disease in Indigenous communities. As of November 23, we’re
aware of 1,338 active cases of COVID-19 in First Nations
communities on reserves, for a total of 3,224 confirmed cases.
There have been 1,858 recoveries and, sadly, 28 deaths.

The department is continuing to work closely with its partners
to improve access to high-quality services for First Nations, Inuit
and Meétis. During this pandemic, our department’s role is
becoming more critical than ever. We’re ensuring that the
communities’ needs are identified and addressed.

[English]

I will now turn to the topic of today’s meeting. For 2020-21,
ISC’s Main Estimates were at $12.8 billion. This reflects a net
increase of approximately 4% compared to last year’s Main
Estimates. The increase is primarily related to the transfer of
individual affairs and lands and economic development programs
from CIRNAC to ISC, as well as the related internal services.

About 95% of the department’s resources is dedicated to
supporting or delivering services to Indigenous peoples. The
Main Estimates include close to $10.8 billion in transfer
payments for services delivered directly by First Nations, tribal
councils, health authorities and more.

Additional operating funding is provided for health-related
goods and services not insured by provinces and territories or
other private insurance plans through the Non-Insured Health
Benefits program.

Philippe Thompson, dirigeant principal des finances, des
résultats et de I’exécution, Services aux Autochtones
Canada : Monsieur le président, honorables sénateurs, je vous
remercie de m’avoir invité a traiter du Budget principal des
dépenses et du Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de
2020-2021 de Services aux Autochtones Canada, ou SAC. Je
tiens également a reconnaitre que le Parlement du Canada est
situé sur le territoire traditionnel non cédé du peuple algonquin.

Je suis accompagné de Keith Conn, de la Direction générale de
la santé des Premicres Nations et des Inuits, et de Mary-Luisa
Kapelus, des Programmes et partenariats en matiere d’éducation
et de développement social.

[Frangais]

Etant donné que la résurgence de I’activité de COVID-19 se
poursuit au Canada, j’aimerais prendre un bref moment pour
vous informer de I’état d’avancement du virus dans les
communautés autochtones. En date du 23 novembre, nous avons
connaissance de 1 338 cas actifs de COVID-19 dans les
communautés des Premiéres Nations vivant dans les réserves,
pour un total de 3 224 cas confirmés. Il y a eu 1 858 cas de
personnes rétablies et, malheureusement, 28 déces.

Le ministére continue a travailler en étroite collaboration avec
ses partenaires pour améliorer I’accés a des services de haute
qualité pour les membres des Premiéres Nations, les Inuits et les
Métis. Durant cette pandémie, le role de notre ministeére devient
plus crucial que jamais, car nous veillons a ce que les besoins
des communautés soient cernés et pris en compte.

[Traduction]

Je vais maintenant passer a 1’objet de la séance d’aujourd’hui.
Pour 2020-2021, le Budget principal des dépenses de SAC est de
12,8 milliards de dollars. Cela représente une augmentation nette
d’environ 4 % par rapport au Budget principal des dépenses de
I’année derniere. L’augmentation est principalement attribuable
au transfert des affaires individuelles et du Programme des
services relatifs aux terres et au développement économique de
Relations Couronne-Autochtones et des Affaires du Nord
Canada a Services aux Autochtones Canada, ainsi que des
services internes afférents.

Environ 95 % des ressources du ministére sont utilisées pour
soutenir les peuples autochtones ou pour leur offrir des services.
Le Budget principal des dépenses comprend prés de 10,8
milliards de dollars en paiements de transfert pour les services
fournis directement par les Premieéres Nations, les conseils
tribaux, les autorités sanitaires et d’autres intervenants.

Des fonds de fonctionnement supplémentaires sont prévus
pour les biens et les services liés a la santé qui ne sont assurés ni
par les provinces et les territoires, ni par les régimes d’assurance
privés dans le cadre du Programme des services de santé non
assureés.
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[Translation]

In addition to the Main Estimates, ISC received $1.7 billion
through the Supplementary Estimates (A), mainly for the
COVID-19 response measures and for key programs, such as
child and family services and Jordan’s Principle.

To continue responding to the pandemic and to support
ongoing work, ISC’s 2020-21 Supplementary Estimates (B) are
showing a net increase of $1.8 billion, which will bring the total
authorities for 2020-21 to over $16 billion. This is the highest
ever amount for the department. The $1.8 billion is primarily
composed of $260.4 million in Vote 1 operating expenditures;
$740 million in Vote 10 grants and contributions; and $783.6
million in statutory funding. Of the total amount, $1.1 billion is
dedicated to various COVID-19 initiatives; and $0.7 billion is for
other key initiatives, such as non-insured health benefits for First
Nations and Inuit and child and family services.

[English]

Several of the COVID-19 initiatives are presented as both
voted and statutory appropriations under an act relating to certain
measures in response to COVID-19, which will be repealed on
December 31, 2020. Amounts for payments to be made in
support of initiatives covered by the act after the repeal on

December 31 are included in these estimates as voted
appropriations.

These supplementary estimates include the following
COVID-19 initiatives: $305 million for the Indigenous

Community Support Fund; $298.3 million to address the specific
needs of Indigenous businesses, $245.4 million for a safe restart
in communities, $105.9 million to support students and youth,
$82.5 million for Indigenous mental wellness, $75 million to
support businesses in the tourism sector as well as community
and collective businesses and microbusinesses and $7.2 million
for income assistance.

In the voted appropriations, ISC is requesting $255.8 million
to improve health outcomes through the provision of
supplementary health benefits to First Nations people and Inuit.

ISC is also requesting $240.9 million in voted appropriations
to continue in its efforts to support children and families. These
investments demonstrate the government’s ongoing commitment
to fully implementing the orders of the Canadian Human Rights
Tribunal prior to September 2019.

[Frangais]

En plus du Budget principal des dépenses, SAC a regu une
enveloppe de 1,7 milliard de dollars dans le cadre du Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (A), qui €était principalement liée
aux mesures d’intervention de la COVID-19 et au soutien des
programmes clés, tels que les services aux enfants et aux
familles, de méme que le principe de Jordan.

Pour continuer de répondre a la pandémie et pour soutenir les
travaux en cours, le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de
SAC montre une augmentation nette de 1,8 milliard de dollars,
ce qui portera le total des autorisations pour 2020-2021 a plus de
16 milliards de dollars. C’est le montant le plus élevé jamais
atteint par le ministére. Ce montant se compose principalement
de 260,4 millions de dollars en dépenses de fonctionnement au
titre du crédit 1, de 740 millions de dollars en subventions et
contributions au titre du crédit 10, et de 783,6 millions de dollars
en financement législatif. Sur le montant total, 1,1 milliard de
dollars est consacré a diverses initiatives liées a la COVID-19, et
0,7 milliard de dollars a d’autres initiatives clés telles que les
services de santé non assurés pour les Premicres Nations et les
Inuits, et les services a I’enfance et a la famille.

[Traduction]

Plusieurs des initiatives liées a la COVID-19 présentent a la
fois des crédits votés et des crédits 1égislatifs en vertu de la Loi
relative & certaines mesures en réponse a la COVID-19, qui sera
abrogée le 31 décembre 2020. Les montants des paiements a
effectuer a D’appui des initiatives couvertes par la loi apres
I’abrogation du 31 décembre sont inscrits comme crédits votés
dans le présent budget des dépenses.

Le présent Budget supplémentaire des dépenses comprend les
initiatives liées a la COVID-19 suivantes : 305 millions de
dollars pour le Fonds de soutien aux communautés autochtones;
298.,3 millions de dollars pour répondre aux besoins particuliers
des entreprises autochtones; 245,4 millions de dollars pour
assurer une relance sécuritaire dans les communautés; 105,9
millions de dollars pour soutenir les étudiants et les jeunes; 82,5
millions de dollars pour le bien-étre mental des Autochtones; 75
millions de dollars pour soutenir les entreprises du secteur du
tourisme, ainsi que les entreprises communautaires et collectives
et les microentreprises; et 7,2 millions de dollars pour I’aide au
revenu.

Dans les crédits votés, SAC demande 255,8 millions de dollars
pour améliorer les résultats en matiére de santé en offrant aux
Premiéres Nations et aux Inuits des prestations de santé
supplémentaires.

SAC demande également 240,9 millions de dollars en crédits
votés pour poursuivre ses efforts a I’appui des enfants et des
familles. Ces investissements témoignent de [’engagement
permanent du gouvernement a mettre pleinement en ceuvre les
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[Translation]

These Main Estimates and Supplementary Estimates (B) will
enable us to keep taking concrete steps to address the needs of
Indigenous peoples.

I’'m ready to discuss these aspects with you and with my
colleagues. Thank you.

Darlene Bess, Chief Financial Officer, Financial
Management Directorate, Corporate Services Branch,
Department of Finance Canada: Thank you for the
opportunity to present the 2020-21 Main Estimates and
Supplementary Estimates (B) on behalf of the Department of
Finance. Joining me today are departmental officials. They’ll
help me provide a more in-depth perspective on the rationale and
policies supporting the numbers within our estimates.

[English]

As you know, the department supports the Deputy Prime
Minister and Minister of Finance as well as the Minister of
Middle Class Prosperity and Associate Minister of Finance by
developing policies and providing advice to the government with
the goal of creating a healthy and resilient economy for all
Canadians.

In this regard, the department has been instrumental in
Canada’s COVID-19 Economic Response Plan, which has
helped to protect millions of jobs, provide emergency support to
individuals and families and keep businesses afloat throughout
the pandemic.

The 2020-21 Main Estimates reflect departmental budgetary
spending of $99.5 billion and non-budgetary spending of $50.2
million. This is composed of $105.5 million in voted budgetary
expenditures, $99.4 billion in statutory budgetary expenditures
and $50.2 million in statutory non-budgetary expenditures. These
Main Estimates reflect additional funding to increase the
capacity to manage major government assets such as Trans
Mountain Corporation and funding for collective bargaining as
well as major transfers to other levels of government.

Statutory expenditures are not included in the appropriation
bill, as they have already been approved by Parliament through
enabling legislation. However, they are included in the estimates
documents for information.

ordonnances rendues par le Tribunal canadien des droits de la
personne avant septembre 2019.

[Frangais]

Le Budget principal des dépenses et le Budget supplémentaire
des dépenses (B) nous permettront de continuer a prendre des
mesures concrétes pour répondre aux besoins des peuples
autochtones.

Je suis prét a discuter de ces éléments avec vous et avec mes
collegues. Merci beaucoup.

Darlene Bess, dirigeante de la gestion financiére, Division
de la gestion financiére, Direction des services ministériels,
ministére des Finances Canada : Je vous remercie de me
donner 1’occasion de présenter le Budget principal des dépenses
et le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de 2020-2021 au
nom du ministére des Finances. Des fonctionnaires
m’accompagnent aujourd’hui. Ils m’aideront a vous donner une
perspective plus approfondie des raisons et des politiques qui
appuient les chiffres figurant dans notre budget des dépenses.

[Traduction]

Comme vous le savez, le ministére appuie la vice-premicre
ministre et ministre des Finances, ainsi que la ministre de la
Prospérit¢ de la classe moyenne et ministre associée des
Finances en élaborant des politiques et en fournissant des
conseils au gouvernement dans le but de créer une économie
saine et résiliente pour tous les Canadiens.

A cet égard, le ministére a joué un role déterminant dans le
Plan d’intervention économique du Canada pour répondre a la
COVID-19, plan qui a contribu¢ a protéger des millions
d’emplois, a fournir un soutien d’urgence aux particuliers et aux
familles et a maintenir les entreprises a flot tout au long de la
pandémie.

Le Budget principal des dépenses de 2020-2021 représente des
dépenses budgétaires ministérielles de 99,5 milliards de dollars
et des dépenses non budgétaires de 50,2 millions de dollars. Ces
montants se composent de 105,5 millions de dollars en dépenses
budgétaires votées, de 99,4 milliards de dollars en dépenses
législatives budgétaires et de 50,2 millions de dollars en
dépenses 1égislatives non budgétaires. Ce budget principal des
dépenses comprend des fonds supplémentaires destinés a
accroitre la capacité de gestion des actifs du gouvernement, y
compris la Trans Mountain Corporation, le financement des
négociations collectives, ainsi que des transferts majeurs destinés
aux autres ordres de gouvernement.

Les dépenses 1égislatives ne sont pas comprises dans le projet
de loi de crédits, puisqu’elles ont déja été approuvées par le
Parlement au moyen d’une loi habilitante. Elles sont toutefois
incluses a titre d’information dans les documents du budget
supplémentaire des dépenses.
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The 2020-21 Supplementary Estimates (B) reflect a
departmental budgetary increase of $16.6 billion, stemming from
a $3.2 billion increase in Vote 1 program expenditures, and a
$13.4 billion increase in statutory spending. Given these
increases, the department’s total proposed authorities to date are
$117.7 billion.

The increase of $3.2 billion in Vote 1 program expenditures is
mainly due to statutory measures, including the Safe Return to
Class Fund, the funding to the Province of Alberta to clean up
inactive oil and gas wells, the Safe Restart Agreement and the
essential workers support fund. These program expenditures
have increased because, although authorized pursuant to the
COVID-19 Emergency Response Act, they were not disbursed
before the legislative repeal date of September 30, 2020. The
increased amount will ensure that funds remain available for
additional planned transfers to provinces and territories to help
them respond to the pandemic.

As noted earlier, the statutory expenditures reflect a net
increase of $13.4 billion, which is mainly due to transfer
payments to the provinces and territories for the COVID-19
measures.

Mr. Chair, this concludes my overview of these estimates for
the Department of Finance. My colleagues and 1 would be
pleased to answer any questions committee members may have.

The Chair: Thank you, Ms. Bess. Now we will proceed to
questions from senators.

Senator Marshall: My question is for the Department of
Finance, specifically the Safe Restart Agreement. There’s
statutory funding there of just over $12 billion, but the
agreement itself is for $19 billion. Where is the rest of the
money? Has it gone out through another department or is it yet to
come? Could you answer that question, and then I’ll follow up
with the rest of my questions?

Ms. Bess: Thank you very much for your question, senator.
Senator Marshall, we have already disbursed $12.3 billion of that
to the provinces on September 30. There’s another $700 million
to come out later. I will defer to my colleague Galen
Countryman to respond to the rest of your questions.

Le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) de 2020-2021
témoigne d’une augmentation budgétaire ministérielle de 16,6
milliards de dollars, découlant d’une augmentation de 3,2
milliards de dollars des dépenses de programme du crédit 1 et
d’une augmentation des dépenses législatives de 13,4 milliards
de dollars. Compte tenu de ces augmentations, les autorisations
totales proposées a ce jour pour le ministére s’élévent a 117,7
milliards de dollars.

L’augmentation de 3,2 milliards de dollars des dépenses du
programme du crédit 1 est principalement attribuable a des
mesures législatives. Il s’agit, entre autres, du Fonds pour une
rentrée scolaire sécuritaire; du financement accordé a 1’Alberta
pour le nettoyage des puits inactifs de pétrole et de gaz; de
I’Entente sur la relance sécuritaire et du Soutien financier aux
travailleurs essentiels. Ces dépenses de programme ont augmenté
parce que, bien qu’elles aient été autorisées en vertu de la Loi sur
les mesures d’urgence visant la COVID-19, elles n’ont pas été
décaissées avant la date d’abrogation de la loi du
30 septembre 2020. Le montant accru fera en sorte que des fonds
demeureront disponibles pour des transferts supplémentaires
prévus aux provinces et aux territoires afin de les aider a faire
face a la pandémie.

Comme nous [’avons mentionné plus tot, les dépenses
législatives témoignent d’une augmentation nette de 13,4
milliards de dollars, qui est principalement attribuable aux
paiements de transfert aux provinces et aux territoires pour les
mesures relatives a la COVID-19.

Monsieur le président, c’est ainsi que se termine mon apergu
des budgets du ministére des Finances. C’est avec plaisir que
mes collégues et moi-méme répondrons a toute question que les
membres du comité pourraient avoir.

Le président : Je vous remercie, madame Bess. Nous allons
maintenant laisser les sénateurs et les sénatrices poser des
questions.

La sénatrice Marshall : Ma question s’adresse au ministére
des Finances et porte sur I’Entente sur la relance sécuritaire. Le
financement 1égislatif s’éléve a un peu plus de 12 milliards de
dollars, alors que I’entente elle-méme requiert 19 milliards de
dollars. Ou est le reste des fonds? A-t-il été affecté a un autre
ministére ou sera-t-il versé ultérieurement? Pourriez-vous
répondre a cette question? Je poserai le reste de mes questions
ensuite.

Mme Bess : Je vous remercie beaucoup de cette question,
sénatrice. Sachez, sénatrice Marshall, que 12,3 milliards de
dollars avaient déja été versés aux provinces a cet égard au 30
septembre. Une somme de 700 millions de dollars s’ajoutera par
la suite. Je céderai la parole a mon collégue Galen Countryman,
qui répondra au reste de vos questions.
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Galen Countryman, Director General, Federal-Provincial
Relations, Federal-Provincial Relations and Social Policy
Branch, Department of Finance Canada: Thank you, and
hello, senators. With respect to the Safe Restart Agreement, there
was, as Ms. Bess mentioned, about $12.9 billion going out
directly to provinces and territories; $12.3 billion was already
spent on September 30. There is another $700 million in the
Supplementary Estimates (B). The rest of the funding under the
Safe Restart Agreement was for federal spending, so money that
will support provinces and territories but will be done by the
federal government.

Senator Marshall: Will the rest of it come from the
Department of Finance? I saw some funding there under the
Public Health Agency of Canada.

Mr. Countryman: Yes, exactly. Some of it will go to the
Public Agency of Canada and Health Canada; some will support
the sick leave benefits that ESDC is working on, for example.

Senator Marshall: This is a technical question. The Financial
Administration Act was amended to provide for those payments,
but the section that’s referenced, section 60.2(2)(b), that’s
repealed now, so the payment was statutory. After September 30,
are the payments then voted expenditures or are they still
statutory?

Ms. Bess: Thanks for the question, senator. You’re exactly
right; they are now voted expenses because of the repeal of
section 60.2(2)(b) of the Financial Administration Act, which
became effective on October 1.

Senator Marshall: That’s why the Public Health Agency has
it as a voted item.

This is divided up into areas of spending. We’re looking at the
money that is supposed to be spent for things like the increase in
testing. How do you monitor to make sure that the provincial and
territorial governments are spending where they’re supposed to
be and whether they’re getting the impact that you would like
them to have?

[ read the letters from the various premiers. How is that
monitored? Do you just leave it up to the provincial and
territorial governments to monitor themselves?

Ms. Bess: I will ask Galen Countryman to respond to that.

Mr. Countryman: Yes, Senator Marshall, it is really up to
the provinces and territories to deliver the funding as per the
agreement they had with the federal government.

Galen Countryman, directeur général, Relations fédérales-
provinciales, Direction des relations fédérales-provinciales et
de la politique sociale, ministére des Finances du Canada : Je
vous remercie. Bonjour, honorables sénateurs et sénatrices. En ce
qui concerne I’Entente sur la relance sécuritaire, un montant de
quelque 12,9 milliards a été versé directement aux provinces et
aux territoires, comme Mme Bess 1’a indiqué; 12,3 milliards de
dollars avaient déja été dépensés au 30 septembre. Le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B) prévoit en outre un montant de
700 millions de dollars. Le reste du financement de 1’Entente sur
la relance sécuritaire est prévu pour les dépenses fédérales. Il
s’agit donc de fonds qui aideront les provinces et les territoires,
mais qui seront dépensés par le gouvernement fédéral.

La sénatrice Marshall : Le reste du financement viendra-t-il
du ministére des Finances? J’ai vu certains fonds dans la
section de 1’Agence de la santé publique du Canada.

M. Countryman : Oui, exactement. Certains fonds seront
affectés a 1’Agence de la santé publique du Canada et a Santé
Canada, notamment pour soutenir les prestations de congé de
maladie auxquelles EDSC travaille, par exemple.

La sénatrice Marshall : Voici une question technique. La
Loi sur la gestion des finances publiques a été modifiée pour
effectuer ces paiements, mais la disposition en question,
I’alinéa 60.2(2)b), a maintenant été¢ abrogée. Le paiement était
législatif, mais depuis le 30 septembre, les paiements sont-ils des
dépenses votées ou sont-ils encore des paiements 1égislatifs?

Mme Bess : Je vous remercie de la question, sénatrice. Vous
avez parfaitement raison : il s’agit maintenant de dépenses
votées en raison de I’abrogation de 1’alinéa 60.2(2)b) de la Loi
sur la gestion des finances publiques, qui est entrée en vigueur le
1°T octobre.

La sénatrice Marshall : C’est la raison pour laquelle ces
fonds figurent a titre de dépenses votées sous la section de
1’Agence de la santé publique.

Les fonds sont répartis en domaines de dépenses. Nous nous
intéressons a 1’argent censé étre dépensé pour des objectifs
comme 1’augmentation du nombre de tests. Comment surveillez-
vous les choses pour vous assurer que les provinces et les
territoires dépensent les fonds aux fins prévues et obtiennent les
effets escomptés?

J’ai lu les lettres des divers premiers ministres. Comment
assurez-vous la surveillance? Laissez-vous aux provinces et aux
territoires le soin de se surveiller eux-mémes?

Mme Bess : Je demanderai & M. Galen Countryman de
répondre a cette question.

M. Countryman : Oui, sénatrice Marshall. La surveillance
revient effectivement aux provinces et aux territoires qui utilisent
les fonds au titre de I’accord avec le gouvernement fédéral.
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Senator Marshall: For extended testing, you wouldn’t be
looking from province to province to see if they’ve actually
improved their testing? You don’t do that? You give the money
and just assume they will?

Mr. Countryman: The money has been provided to the
provinces and territories based on the agreement, and it is our
hope that they will honour that agreement.

Senator Marshall: I have a quick question for Employment
and Social Development Canada. I follow your numbers for
CERB, but CERB ended and the program is essentially being
administered through Employment Insurance. It was transferred
over to the EI program. Where is information on the EI program?
When it was CERB, you provided all kinds of information. Now
it has gone to the EI program, and I can’t find the same type of
information.

Mr. Perlman: Thank you for the question, senator. The EI
operating account is specified as a special account. Because it is
not a voted appropriation, it’s made up of contributions and then
expenditures out of that. This is what shows up in our
departmental plan and our departmental report at the end of the
year. It is also made up and itemized in our financial statements.
You will not see it in the estimates because they are not voted
appropriations.

Senator Marshall: Will I see it in your quarterly statements?

Jason Won, Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Employment
and Social Development Canada: Let me just have a quick
look, and I will provide an answer.

Senator Marshall: In the interests of time, if you could
provide that information to the clerk that will be fine.

Mr. Perlman: We can do that, yes.
[Translation]

Senator Forest: Since my colleague must leave early, I’ll
give my time to Senator Galvez.

Senator Galvez: Thank you, Senator Forest. I asked a
question earlier about the orphan wells. Ms. Bess spoke earlier
about the topic. If she could give us a written response, I’d be
grateful. I now have two or three quick questions for the
members of this panel.

La sénatrice Marshall : Pour les tests élargis, vous ne
surveilleriez pas les provinces pour vérifier si elles améliorent
effectivement leurs procédures de test? Vous ne le faites pas?
Vous leur versez ’argent en présumant simplement qu’elles le
feront?

M. Countryman : Les fonds sont fournis aux provinces et
aux territoires au titre de 1’accord, que nous espérons qu’elles
honoreront.

La sénatrice Marshall : J’ai une bréve question pour Emploi
et Développement social Canada. Je suis vos chiffres sur la PCU,
mais cette prestation est terminée et le programme est
essentiellement passé sous la houlette de 1’assurance-emploi, a
laquelle il a été transféré. Ou se trouve l’information sur
I’assurance-emploi? Quand la PCU existait, vous fournissiez tout
un éventail de renseignements, mais maintenant que le
programme a été transféré a 1’assurance-emploi, je ne peux pas
trouver le méme genre d’information.

M. Perlman : Je vous remercie de la question, sénatrice. Le
compte des opérations de I’assurance-emploi est considéré
comme un compte spécial. Comme il ne s’agit pas d’un crédit
voté, il est constitué de contributions, a partir desquelles les
dépenses s’effectuent. C’est ainsi que les fonds figurent dans
notre plan et notre rapport ministériels de fin d’exercice. Le
financement est également inscrit et décrit dans nos états
financiers. Vous ne le trouverez pas dans le budget, car il ne
s’agit pas de crédits votés.

La sénatrice Marshall : Le verrai-je dans vos états financiers
trimestriels?

Jason Won, adjoint au dirigeant principal des dépenses,
Emploi et Développement social Canada : Permettez-moi
d’effectuer une bréve vérification et je vous donnerai une
réponse.

La sénatrice Marshall : Pour éviter toute perte de temps, je
vous demanderais de fournir I’information a la greffiere.

M. Perlman : Oui, nous pouvons le faire.
[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Compte tenu du fait que ma collegue
doit partir plus tot, je vais céder mon temps de parole a la
sénatrice Galvez.

La sénatrice Galvez : Merci beaucoup, sénateur Forest. J’ai
posé tantot une question au sujet des puits orphelins. Mme Bess
s’est exprimée plus tot sur ce sujet, et si elle pouvait nous
répondre par écrit, je lui en serais reconnaissante. Maintenant,
j’ai deux ou trois petites questions a poser aux membres de ce
groupe.
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[English]

In the supplementary estimates regarding the reduction of
emissions in government operations, there is a list of institutional
organizations receiving different amounts of money: RCMP,
Parks Canada, CRA, Agriculture, Foreign Affairs, National
Defence and Natural Resources.

I would like to know — later, maybe — what the conditions
were for these transfers, and if there was any specific use
intended for these funds. I would really appreciate it.

Also, there was a transfer of $120,000 from the Department of
Natural Resources to the department of industry to support the
zero-emission vehicle initiative. That’s on page 267. What is the
role of the department of industry in these initiatives? I would
like to know.

My last question concerns Indigenous peoples’ lands on
reserves vis-a-vis water treatment and water quality. Has there
been any increase in the money transfer to solve this acute
problem that people on reserves are living?

Ms. Bess: I think the only question that relates to us is about
the orphan wells, which we could respond to. My colleague Sam
Millar could respond to that so we don’t have to bring it back in
writing.

Sam Millar, Director General, Corporate Finance, Natural
Resources and Environment, Economic Development and
Corporate Finance Branch, Department of Finance
Canada: I did hear part of the question. I was listening in on the
previous session. I’'ll do my best to respond. I hope I heard the
full question.

I can report to the committee that in terms of the number of
orphan wells, the current estimate is that there are approximately
4,700 orphan wells in Alberta. In Saskatchewan, the equivalent
would be 600; and in British Columbia, approximately 350
wells.

In terms of inactive wells — wells that were previously
producing petroleum but have been suspended — there would be
approximately 91,000 in Alberta, 36,000 in Saskatchewan and
12,000 in British Columbia.

I believe the other portion of Senator Galvez’s question related
to the number of wells that could be expected to be cleaned up
through the funding. The nature of the funding in this case is that
there are transfers to the three provincial governments, and then
also the Alberta Orphan Well Association. Each of those entities
has its own program that they will operate pursuant to a federal-
provincial agreement, and each of them requires different
progress.

[Traduction]

Dans le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses, au sujet de la
réduction des émissions émanant des activités du gouvernement,
il y a une liste d’organisations institutionnelles qui regoivent
diverses sommes, comme la GRC, Parcs Canada, I’Agence du
revenu du Canada, Agriculture Canada, Affaires étrangéres, la
Défense nationale et Ressources naturelles Canada.

Je voudrais savoir — plus tard, peut-étre — quelles étaient les
conditions de ces transferts et si ces fonds devaient étre dépensés
a des fins précises. Je vous saurais gré de nous transmettre
I’information.

De plus, le ministere des Ressources naturelles a transféré
120 000 $ au ministére de 1’Industrie pour soutenir 1’initiative
« zéro émission ». C’est a la page 267. Quel rdle le ministére de
I’Industrie joue-t-il dans ces initiatives? J’aimerais le savoir.

Ma derniére question porte sur les terres des peuples
autochtones sur les réserves en ce qui concerne le traitement et la
qualité de I’eau. A-t-on augmenté les transferts monétaires pour
résoudre ce probléme aigu auquel les habitants des réserves sont
confrontés?

Mme Bess : Je pense que la seule question qui nous concerne
est celle sur les puits orphelins, a laquelle nous pourrions
répondre. Mon collégue Sam Millar pourrait y répondre pour que
nous n’ayons pas a le faire par écrit.

Sam Millar, directeur général, Finances intégrées,
ressources naturelles et environnement, Direction du
développement économique et finances intégrées, ministére
des Finances du Canada : J’ai entendu la question en partie,
car j’étais en train d’écouter la séance précédente. J’y répondrai
de mon mieux. J’espére I’avoir entendu en entier.

Je peux fournir au comité le nombre de puits orphelins. On
estime actuellement qu’il y en a approximativement 4 700 en
Alberta, 600 en Saskatchewan et 350 en Colombie-Britannique.

Quant aux puits inactifs — soit les puits qui ont déja produit
du pétrole, mais dont 1’exploitation a été suspendue —, il y en
aurait environ 91 000 en Alberta, 36 000 en Saskatchewan et
12 000 en Colombie-Britannique.

Je pense que 1’autre question de la sénatrice Galvez concernait
le nombre de puits que le financement permettrait de nettoyer.
Dans le cas présent, le financement prend la forme de transferts
aux trois gouvernements provinciaux et a 1’Orphan Well
Association de I’Alberta. Chacune de ces entités dispose de son
propre programme qu’elle met en ceuvre au titre d’un accord
fédéral-provincial, chaque accord exigeant des progrés
différents.
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In order to be precise in responding to the senator’s question,
we’ll undertake to connect with each of the provinces and the
Orphan Well Association and reply in writing, if that’s
acceptable.

Senator Galvez: If you could tell me what the liability is
associated with both orphan and abandoned or inactive wells, I
would appreciate it. Thank you.

Mr. Thompson: I can answer the question with regard to
water, and thank you very much for the question. As you know,
since Budget 2016 the government has made significant
investments through all budgets to resolve that issue. As of
June 30, we had invested over $1.65 billion to support 626
projects, including 348 that are completed. They serve 462,000
people in 581 communities.

To date, we have 96 long-term advisories that have been lifted
and 168 short-term advisories that were prevented from
becoming long-term. As you can imagine, this year the pandemic
has created challenges in terms of being able to accelerate those
projects. We have limited access to the communities; however,
we are continuing to work closely with First Nations
communities to ensure we continue to make progress with that.
This year, the department has $737 million in authorities to
continue to work on water.

Senator Klyne: Welcome to our panellists. I have two
questions around the Safe Return to Class Fund. One is for
Finance and the other is for ISC.

Supplementary Estimates (B) is $1 billion. T believe the
original amount announced was $2 billion. My question to
Finance is this: What is the forecasted statutory spending on this
fund leading up to Supplementary Estimates (B)?

For ISC: Is there an additional amount in forecasted statutory
spending and Supplementary Estimates (B) for First Nations
communities? Thank you.

Ms. Bess: Thank you very much for your question, senator.
Similar to the question that Senator Marshall asked earlier, $1
billion in statutory is the amount that was paid through the
COVID-19 Emergency Response Act. Because it was repealed
on September 30, any future payments to be made for the $2
billion have to be made through our voted appropriations. That’s
what you see there. There’s $1 billion in voted appropriations
and $1 billion in statutory appropriations that was already paid.
The $1 billion will be following shortly.

Pour pouvoir répondre de manicre précise a la question de la
sénatrice, nous communiquerons avec chaque province et avec
I’Orphan Well Association afin de répondre par écrit, si cette
solution est acceptable.

La sénatrice Galvez : Si vous pouviez m’indiquer quels
passifs est associé aux puits orphelins, abandonnés ou inactifs, je
vous en saurais gré. Je vous remercie.

M. Thompson : Je peux répondre a la question sur 1’eau, que
je vous remercie d’avoir posée. Comme vous le savez, depuis le
budget de 2016, le gouvernement a effectué des investissements
substantiels dans tous les budgets pour résoudre ce probléme. Au
30 juin, nous avions investi plus de 1,65 milliard de dollars a
I’appui de 626 projets, dont 348 sont terminés. Ces projets
bénéficient a 462 000 habitants résidant dans 581 communautés.

A ce jour, nous avons levé 96 avis a long terme et évité que
168 avis a court terme ne deviennent a long terme. Comme vous
pouvez I’imaginer, la pandémie qui a frappé cette année a créé
des défis qui nous empéchent d’accélérer ces projets, puisque
notre accés aux communautés est limité. Cependant, nous
continuons de collaborer étroitement avec les communautés des
Premieres Nations pour nous assurer de continuer de réaliser des
progres a cet égard. Cette année, le ministére dispose de crédits
totalisant 737 millions de dollars pour continuer de travailler
dans ce dossier.

Le sénateur Klyne : Je souhaite la bienvenue a nos témoins.
J’ai deux questions sur le Fonds pour une rentrée scolaire
sécuritaire. L’une s’adresse au ministére des Finances et ’autre,
a Services aux Autochtones Canada.

Le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) prévoit 1 milliard
de dollars. Je pense que le montant initialement annoncé était de
2 milliards de dollars. Ma question pour le ministére des
Finances est la suivante : quelles sont les dépenses législatives
prévues pour ce financement au titre du Budget supplémentaire
des dépenses (B)?

Aux témoins de Services aux Autochtones Canada, je
demanderais si le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B)
prévoit des fonds additionnels pour les dépenses législatives pour
les communautés des Premieres Nations. Je vous remercie.

Mme Bess : Je vous remercie beaucoup de cette question,
sénateur. Comme c’était le cas pour la question que la sénatrice
Marshall a posée précédemment, le montant de 1 milliard de
dollars en dépenses législatives correspond aux sommes qui ont
été versées en vertu de la Loi sur les mesures d’urgence visant la
COVID-19. Puisque cette derniére a été abrogée le 30 septembre,
tout paiement futur au titre du montant de 2 milliards de dollars
devra étre effectué par I’entremise de nos crédits votés. C’est ce
que vous voyez la. Il y a un montant de 1 milliard de dollars en
crédits votés et 1 milliard de dollars en crédits 1égislatifs qui ont
déja été payés. La somme de 1 milliard de dollars suivra bientot.
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Senator Klyne: I didn’t see the voted. Thank you. That clears
it up.

Mr. Thompson: Thank you, senator, for the question. As part
of Supplementary Estimates (B), we have $783 million in
statutory authorities. They include part 2 of the Indigenous
Community Support Fund, $305 million; Safe Restart, $237
million; the support to students and youth, $90 million; mental
wellness support, $82.5 million; and $75 million for Indigenous
businesses. All of these funds are expected to be expended
before the end of the fiscal year.

Senator Klyne: I was referring specifically to whether there
were any monies for the Safe Return to Class Fund.

Mr. Thompson: We have $237.3 million for Safe Restart,
and that includes $100 million for education and $25.9 million
for post-secondary institutions.

Senator Klyne: I want to go back to the cleanup of inactive
oil and gas wells. Supplementary Estimates (B) is $1 billion and
references Alberta in the cleanup of inactive wells. There was an
announcement in April for a $1.7-billion fund aimed at the
cleanup and reclamation of orphan wells in Saskatchewan,
Alberta and B.C.

Is the $1 billion in Supplementary Estimates (B) exclusive of
the $1.7-billion fund, or is it in addition to that?

Ms. Bess: 1’1l let my colleague Sam Millar respond to that.

Mr. Millar: I’'m sorry, Mr. Chair, I had a technical issue. I
had to leave the room and I’ve just re-entered. I did not hear the
question. I apologize.

Senator Klyne: For the sake of time, you can reply in writing.

Ms. Bess: I can answer part of it, Senator Klyne. It is part of
the same bundle of payments to clean up orphan wells in
Saskatchewan and Alberta. This was the last set of payments that
didn’t get through in time before the legislative measures in the
COVID-19 Emergency Response Act were repealed. This is the
last payment that has to go out for the three provinces that were
to be provided with this funding. Is that helpful?

Senator Klyne: It is. I’'m confused because it was specific to
Alberta.

Ms. Bess: This is the last one remaining. It was in statutory,
and now it’s in our voted appropriations because the legislation
has expired.

Le sénateur Klyne : Je n’ai pas vu les crédits votés. Merci.
C’est clair maintenant.

M. Thompson : Merci, sénateur, de la question. Dans le
Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B), nous avons un montant
de 783 millions de dollars en autorisations législatives, ce qui
comprend 305 millions de dollars pour la partie 2 du Fonds de
soutien aux communautés autochtones; 237 millions pour une
relance sécuritaire; 90 millions d’aide pour les étudiants et les
jeunes; 82,5 millions pour la santé mentale; et 75 millions pour
les entreprises autochtones. On s’attend a ce que tous ces fonds
soient dépensés avant la fin de ’année financiére.

Le sénateur Klyne : Je voulais savoir précisément s’il y avait
des sommes destinées au Fonds pour une rentrée scolaire
sécuritaire.

M. Thompson : Il y a 237,3 millions prévus pour une relance
sécuritaire, ce qui comprend 100 millions de dollars pour
I’éducation et 25,9 millions pour les établissements
postsecondaires.

Le sénateur Klyne : Je veux revenir au nettoyage des puits
de pétrole et de gaz. Le Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B)
prévoit 1 milliard de dollars destiné a I’ Alberta pour le nettoyage
des puits inactifs. En avril, on a annoncé un fonds de 1,7 milliard
de dollars pour le nettoyage et la remise en état des puits
abandonnés en Saskatchewan, Alberta et Colombie-Britannique.

Est-ce que le 1 milliard de dollars prévu dans le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B) est en sus du 1,7 milliard?

Mme Bess : Je vais demander a mon collégue Sam Millar de
répondre & votre question.

M. Millar : Veuillez m’excuser, monsieur le président, j’ai eu
un probléme technique. J’ai dii quitter la piéce, et je viens juste
de revenir. Je n’ai pas entendu la question. Toutes mes excuses.

Le sénateur Klyne : Pour ne pas perdre de temps, vous
pouvez répondre par écrit.

Mme Bess : Sénateur Klyne, je peux y répondre en partie. Il
s’agit du méme lot de versements destinés au nettoyage des puits
orphelins en Saskatchewan et en Alberta, soit les derniers
versements qui n’avaient pas été faits a temps avant que les
mesures législatives dans la Loi sur les mesures d’urgence visant
la COVID-19 soient abrogées. Ce sont les derniers versements
destinés aux trois provinces qui devaient recevoir ces fonds. Est-
ce que cela répond a votre question?

Le sénateur Klyne : Oui. Je suis un peu perdu, car ces fonds
étaient destinés expressément a I’ Alberta.

Mme Bess : Ce sont les derniers qui restent. C’était prévu
dans la loi, et cela fait maintenant partie de nos crédits votés
parce que les mesures 1égislatives ont expiré.
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Senator Klyne: Very good. Thank you.

Senator M. Deacon: I want to ask about the $461 million to
be spent topping up the salaries of workers who are deemed to be
essential during the pandemic. It is part of a cooperative effort
with the provinces and territories. We understand that.

I’m trying to narrow down what qualifies as “essential” under
this payment. During the first wave, we thanked not only front-
line workers but the students and the young Canadians working
in grocery and retail — a variety of pieces.

I have seen much less of that in this second wave. These same
folks are being asked to put their health at risk in an even more
prevalent second wave in this country. Many can’t quit their jobs
out of concern for their own and their families’ health because |
don’t believe they would be able to qualify for the extended EI
program. So they’re working, and I don’t think they would be
deemed essential. I would like to understand more about this
“essential” payment qualification. Who is qualified?

The Chair: Directed to whom, senator?

Senator M. Deacon: It is about the topping up of salaries of
workers.

The Chair: So should Finance or Social

Development answer?

Senator M. Deacon: I would ask Finance first. I would leave
it open to Social Development also.

The Chair: Thank you. Ms. Bess, please. Do you have any
comments for clarity?

Ms. Bess: Thank you very much for your question, senator.
I’1l defer the question to Mr. Galen Countryman, who may have
a bit more detail on the program and how it was set up in terms
of what qualifies as essential workers and other details for you.

Mr. Countryman: Thank you, senator, for the question.

The essential workers top-up fund was created in the spring as
part of the first wave. It was allocated to provinces and territories
to develop their own essential worker wage-support programs. It
is the provinces and territories that are responsible for the design
and delivery of the programs and defining who is an essential
worker. We left it to them because it varied in each jurisdiction.

Le sénateur Klyne : Trés bien. Merci.

La sénatrice M. Deacon : J’aimerais en savoir plus au sujet
du montant de 461 millions de dollars pour bonifier le salaire des
travailleurs qui sont considérés comme essentiels pendant la
pandémie. Il s’agit d’un effort conjoint avec les provinces et les
territoires. Nous comprenons cela.

Je tente de savoir précisément qui sont les travailleurs
« essentiels » visés par la bonification. Pendant la premiére
vague, nous avons remercié non seulement les travailleurs de
premiere ligne, mais aussi les étudiants et les jeunes Canadiens
qui travaillaient dans les épiceries, les commerces de détail, soit
divers types de travailleurs.

J’en ai vu beaucoup moins dans la deuxiéme vague. Ce sont
pourtant ces mémes gens qui mettent leur santé en péril lors de
cette deuxiéme vague qui est encore pire que la premiére au
pays. Beaucoup d’entre eux ne peuvent pas quitter leur emploi
parce qu’ils ont des craintes pour leur santé et celle de leur
famille, car ils ne seraient pas admissibles, je pense, au
programme de prolongation des prestations d’assurance-emploi.
Ils travaillent donc, et je ne pense pas qu’ils soient considérés
des travailleurs essentiels. J’aimerais en savoir plus au sujet de
I’admissibilité des travailleurs « essentiels » a ces paiements. Qui
est admissible?

Le président : Sénatrice, a qui s’adresse votre question?

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Elle porte sur la bonification du
salaire des travailleurs.

Le président : Est-ce qu’elle s’adresse aux représentants des
Finances ou du Développement social?

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Je demanderais d’abord aux
représentants du ministére des Finances, et ceux du
Développement social pourraient aussi y répondre.

Le président : Merci. Madame Bess, allez-y, s’il vous plait.
Auriez-vous des précisions a ce sujet?

Mme Bess : Merci beaucoup de poser la question, sénatrice.
Je vais demander a M. Galen Countryman de répondre. Il
pourrait avoir plus d’information sur le programme et les critéres
d’admissibilité, ainsi que d’autres détails.

M. Countryman : Merci, sénatrice, de la question.

Le fonds de bonification du salaire des travailleurs essentiels a
été créé¢ au printemps lors de la premicre vague. Les sommes
sont versées aux provinces et aux territoires qui créent leurs
propres programmes de soutien a la rémunération des travailleurs
essentiels. Ce sont donc les provinces et les territoires qui sont
responsables de la conception et de la mise en ceuvre des
programmes et de déterminer qui sont considérés des travailleurs
essentiels. Nous leur avons laissé cela entre les mains, car
chaque administration est différente.
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What we see here is that there were $3 billion allocated. To
date, $2.5 billion has been drawn down by the provinces and
territories, and there remains $461 million. It’s there as voted,
much like the Safe Restart Agreement and Safe Return to Class
Fund, and the $2.5 billion was spent under the statutory
appropriation, the COVID response act. Those provisions have
expired, so now we are seeking supply through the estimates.

Senator M. Deacon: Thank you. I want to confirm that
“essential” — the definition, the parameters — is differentiated
across this country by each territory and province.

Mr. Countryman: It is for each jurisdiction to develop the
eligibility for their programs. We gave discretion to the
provinces and territories.

Senator M. Deacon: Thank you.

The Chair: Employment and Social Development Canada, do
you have any comments on the question asked by Senator
Deacon?

Mr. Perlman: As that one was run through the Department of
Finance directly to the provinces, we were not engaged.

I can answer Senator Klyne’s question, however. We didn’t
get to that. For Safe Restart and Indigenous communities, we
have $63.9 million for Indigenous early learning and child care
as a statutory item.

Senator Boehm: I would like to thank all our witnesses for
being here and for the excellent work they are undertaking
during these difficult times.

My question is for Mr. Philippe Thompson. The National
Advisory Committee on Immunization pointed to Indigenous
peoples as part of the key groups that should really receive
priority for the vaccine when it comes. However, there has
already been some provincial/federal confusion regarding the
deployment of that distribution. Some senators have touched on
this earlier and in the previous panel as well.

This is not to mention the incredible logistical challenges of
transporting and distributing the vaccine while also maintaining
temperature requirements. My understanding is that the Pfizer
vaccine requires a storage temperature of -70 degrees. Our
winters are cold, but not that cold. We’ve seen what has
happened in Nunavut with the outbreak, and certainly in the
North and the Arctic. I think of my colleague Senator Duncan,
who is also a member of this committee, from the Yukon.

Nous voyons ici qu’un montant de 3 milliards a été affecté.
Jusqu’a maintenant, 2,5 milliards ont été transférés aux
provinces et territoires, et il reste 461 millions de dollars. C’est
un crédit qui a été voté, un peu comme dans le cas de 1’Accord
sur la relance sécuritaire et du Fonds pour une rentrée scolaire
sécuritaire, et le montant de 2,5 milliards de dollars a été dépensé
dans le cadre du crédit législatif, de la Loi sur la réponse a la
COVID. Ces dispositions ont expiré, alors nous demandons les
fonds dans le cadre du budget supplémentaire.

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Merci. Je veux avoir la
confirmation que ce qu’on entend par « essentiel » — soit la
définition, les parameétres — varie au pays selon les provinces et
les territoires.

M. Countryman : Il revient a chaque administration d’établir
les critéres d’admissibilité a ses programmes. Nous laissons aux
provinces et aux territoires le soin de le faire.

La sénatrice M. Deacon : Merci.

Le président : Est-ce que les représentants d’Emploi et
Développement social Canada auraient des commentaires a
propos de la question de la sénatrice Deacon?

M. Perlman : Comme le ministére des Finances a traité
directement avec les provinces, nous n’avons pas participé au
programme.

Je peux toutefois répondre a la question du sénateur Klyne.
Nous n’y avons pas répondu. Au sujet de la relance sécuritaire et
des communautés autochtones, nous avons un crédit l1égislatif de
63,9 millions de dollars destiné a ’apprentissage et la garde des
jeunes enfants autochtones.

Le sénateur Boehm : J’aimerais remercier tous les témoins
de leur présence et de leur excellent travail pendant ces temps
difficiles.

Ma question s’adresse a M. Philippe Thompson. Le Comité
consultatif national de I’immunisation a mentionné que les
peuples autochtones devraient faire partie des groupes
prioritaires pour recevoir le vaccin lorsqu’il sera disponible.
Toutefois, il y a déja de la confusion entre le fédéral et les
provinces au sujet de sa distribution. Des sénateurs ont abordé la
question un peu plus tot, tout comme avec le groupe de témoins
précédent.

A cela viennent s’ajouter les défis logistiques incroyables liés
au transport et a la distribution d’un vaccin qui nécessite d’étre
maintenu a une certaine température. Je crois comprendre que le
vaccin de Pfizer doit étre entreposé a une température de -70
degrés. Nos hivers sont froids, mais pas a ce point. Nous avons
vu ce qui s’est passé au Nunavut lors de 1’éclosion, ainsi que
dans le Nord et I’Arctique. Je pense a ma collegue, la sénatrice
Duncan, qui siége aussi a notre comité et qui vient du Yukon.
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While the government already has a list of interested suppliers
for vaccine logistics service providers, I did not seem to find
anything in the estimates related to funds for wvaccine
distribution. You may have mentioned this in your remarks, but
I’m afraid I missed it.

I’m wondering whether you can comment on that, that these
vaccines will go to remote communities, especially Indigenous
one, and that they will be a priority. Health care issues are, of
course, paramount in these communities. Thank you.

Mr. Thompson: Thank you very much, senator, for the
question. You are correct to say that in the supplementary
estimates there’s no money that is specifically identified for
vaccine distribution. That being said, the department is getting
prepared.

It is absolutely extremely important for us to make sure that
we are ready to respond as soon as the vaccine is available. I will
defer to my colleague Keith Conn to answer the question on the
level of preparedness that we have in the organization and what
we’re doing in anticipation of the vaccine.

Keith Conn, Senior Assistant Deputy Minister, First
Nations and Inuit Health Branch, Indigenous Services
Canada: Thank you, senator, for the question, and for the
commentary as well. Yes, we are working closely with our
Indigenous partners — First Nations, Inuit and Métis — on
vaccine planning and deployment. We’re also working very
closely with the Public Health Agency folks who are responsible
for the planning and deployment with provinces and territories.
We are privileged to see, of course, the public report of the
National Advisory Committee on Immunization, which is a
group of experts on immunization and vaccines. In that report, in
terms of their initial recommendations, it is noted that
prioritization groups are Indigenous populations, including rural
and remote, knowing very well the pre-health conditions,
housing conditions and a number of other factors, puts the
population at risk.

A lot of discussion is happening as we speak in terms of
national rollout. Of course, we have a very structured working
group within our department, with many partners, and we’re
working closely with PHAC on the work ahead.

That requires a lot of coordination with our territorial and
provincial partners as well. There’s more to come in that regard,
in terms of phase 1 of the vaccines and then the rollout of
subsequent doses. A lot is happening in that regard, with more to
come.

Senator Boehm: Thank you for your answers.

Le gouvernement a déja une liste de fournisseurs intéressés
pour les services de logistique liés au vaccin, mais je ne pense
pas avoir vu de fonds dans le budget destinés a sa distribution. Il
se peut que vous I’ayez mentionné dans votre déclaration, mais
j’ai bien peur que cela m’ait échappé.

Jaimerais que vous puissiez nous en dire plus a ce sujet, a
savoir si ces vaccins seront destinés en priorité aux communautés
¢éloignées, en particulier les communautés autochtones. Les soins
de santé sont primordiaux, bien entendu, dans ces communautés.
Mereci.

M. Thompson : Merci beaucoup, sénateur, de la question.
Vous avez raison de dire qu’il n’y a pas d’argent prévu dans le
Budget supplémentaire des dépenses expressément pour la
distribution des vaccins. Cela étant dit, le ministére est en mode
préparation.

Il est extrémement important pour nous de nous assurer d’étre
préts a réagir dés que le vaccin sera disponible. Je vais demander
a mon collégue Keith Conn de répondre a la question au sujet du
niveau de préparation au sein de notre organisation et de nos
préparatifs en vue de ’arrivée du vaccin.

Keith Conn, sous-ministre adjoint principal, Direction
générale de la santé des Premiéres Nations et des Inuits,
Services aux Autochtones Canada : Merci, sénateur, de la
question et de vos commentaires également. Oui, nous
travaillons en étroite collaboration avec nos partenaires
autochtones — les Premiéres Nations, les Inuits et les Métis —
concernant la planification et la distribution du vaccin. Nous
travaillons également en étroite collaboration avec les
responsables de 1’Agence de la santé publique qui sont
responsables de la planification et de la distribution du vaccin
dans les provinces et les territoires. Nous avons le privilége de
consulter, bien entendu, le rapport public du Comité consultatif
national de I’immunisation, un groupe d’experts sur
I’immunisation et la vaccination. Dans ses recommandations
initiales, le comité mentionne qu’il faut accorder la priorité aux
populations autochtones, y compris les communautés rurales et
¢éloignées, sachant trés bien que les conditions prémédicales, de
logement et autres mettent la population en danger.

Beaucoup de discussions sont en cours en ce moment méme au
sujet de la distribution du vaccin a I’échelle nationale. Bien
entendu, nous avons un groupe de travail trés structuré au sein de
notre ministére, avec nos partenaires, et nous travaillons en
étroite collaboration avec I’Agence de la santé publique du
Canada sur les étapes a venir.

Il y a aussi beaucoup d’éléments a coordonner avec nos
partenaires territoriaux et provinciaux. Il y aura la phase 1, puis
viendront les doses suivantes. Beaucoup de choses se passent en
ce moment et d’autres sont a venir.

Le sénateur Boehm : Merci de vos réponses.
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Chair, I yield the balance of my time.

Senator Duncan: Senator Boehm, I would like to thank you;
you have led very well into my question. Thank you very much
to our witnesses who have appeared.

I’'m going to focus my question to Indigenous Services.
Forgive me for drilling down on this, but I would just like to give
you a little bit of background. I served for a time as premier of
the Yukon when health care funding was number one on the
table. Following my political career, I served for many years in
health care administration, working on a day-to-day basis with
non-insured health benefits. From that background, I just point
out that Canada is the fourteenth province at the table when it
comes to health care. They have a fiduciary responsibility for
First Nations. They also maintain responsibility for the Armed
Forces and the RCMP.

Health Canada has non-insured health benefits. The Finance
Committee has asked before about Crown and Indigenous
relations and these new departments being structured — where
did the health care people go? We saw a marked decrease in non-
insured health benefits staffing at the ground level.

My concern follows up on Senator Boehm’s introduction and
with that background. I would really like elaboration
an answer — from Indigenous Services Canada as to how they’re
working on the delivery of the vaccine and the drugs to deal with
COVID-19 on the ground. How is it working on-reserve, off-
reserve, with Métis and Inuit, and with the Armed Forces and
RCMP who are covered under Health Canada?

The Chair: I will recognize Mr. Thompson, and if there are
additional comments by other public servants in the department,
please contribute.

Mr. Thompson: Thank you for the question, senator. The
Supplementary Estimates (B) include $255.8 million for non-
insured health benefits, bringing the total for the program this
year to $1.8 billion. Again, I will refer to my colleague Keith
Conn to provide more information on the question.

Mr. Conn: Thank you, senator, for the question.

First of all, in terms of points in history, the Government of
Canada created the Indigenous Services Canada department,
focused on services. The First Nations Inuit Health Branch in its
totality was merged into this new department called Indigenous
Services Canada, so we’ve left our lovely department called
Health Canada, but we still have close relations, of course. We
have taken with us the responsibility for the non-insured health
benefits program and its administration nationally.

Monsieur le président, je vais céder le reste de mon temps.

La sénatrice Duncan : Sénateur Boehm, je tiens a vous
remercier, car votre question rejoignait la mienne. Je remercie
sincérement nos témoins de comparaitre.

Mes questions s’adressent surtout a Services aux Autochtones.
Je m’excuse d’insister, mais je vais vous donner un peu de
contexte. J’ai été premiére ministre du Yukon un temps lorsque
le financement des soins de santé était la grande priorité a la
table des discussions. Aprés ma carriére en politique, j’ai
travaillé pendant de nombreuses années dans la gestion des soins
de santé et, au quotidien, dans le dossier des services de santé
non assurés. Cela étant dit, j’aimerais préciser que le Canada est
la 14° province a la table dans le dossier des soins de santé. Il a
une responsabilité fiduciaire a 1’égard des Premicres Nations. 11
est aussi responsable des forces armées et de la GRC.

Santé Canada offre des services de santé non assurés. Le
Comité des finances a déja posé la question au sujet de Relations
Couronne-Autochtones, la structure de ces nouveaux
ministeres... Ou sont passés les gens responsables des soins de
santé? Nous avons assisté a une baisse considérable du nombre
d’employés qui s’occupent des services de santé non assurés sur
le terrain.

Mes préoccupations s’inscrivent dans la foulée des propos du
sénateur Boehm et de ce que je viens de vous dire. J’aimerais
beaucoup avoir des précisions — et une réponse — de Services
aux Autochtones Canada sur leur fagon de procéder pour assurer
la distribution du vaccin et des médicaments pour lutter contre la
COVID-19 sur le terrain. Comment cela se passe-t-il dans les
réserves, hors réserve, pour les Métis et les Inuits, ainsi que pour
les forces armées et la GRC dont les services sont offerts par
Santé Canada?

Le président : Je vais demander a M. Thompson de répondre,
et si d’autres fonctionnaires du ministére veulent intervenir,
n’hésitez pas a le faire.

M. Thompson : Merci de la question, sénatrice. Le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B) prévoit un montant de 255,8
millions de dollars pour les services non assurés, ce qui porte le
montant total pour I’année en cours a 1,8 milliard de dollars. Je

vais demander encore une fois & mon collégue Keith Conn de
répondre & votre question.

M. Conn : Merci de la question, sénatrice.

Premiérement, pour revenir un peu en arriére dans letemps, le
gouvernement du Canada a créé le ministére des Services aux
Autochtones Canada, qui se concentre sur les services. La
Direction générale de la santé des Premicres Nations et des Inuits
dans son intégralité a été transférée au nouveau ministére appelé
Services aux Autochtones Canada. Nous avons donc quitté le
merveilleux ministére appelé Santé Canada, mais nous sommes
toujours en étroite relation avec lui, naturellement. Nous
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That program still continues with vigour. Obviously the non-
insured health benefits program for dental, pharmacy and
transportation applies to all eligible recipients, including Inuit
and First Nations who are registered. That has been maintained.

It’s interesting, in terms of the pandemic’s arrival, that whole
program has gone practically virtual. We have been seamless in
terms of delivery. No backlogs or interruptions, so we’re pleased
with that result.

I’m trying to remember part of the other questions. We don’t
see a downward trend in terms of non-insured health benefits
staff. We actually see an increase with continuous hiring. We
grow and expand in terms of the program service delivery
responsibilities, working with our Indigenous partners in terms
of identifying gaps or needs if they exist.

Pardon me, senator, I’'m not sure if I covered all aspects of
your questions or commentary.

Senator Duncan: No. I appreciate that what you’re saying —
and I understand — is that Crown-Indigenous Relations took this
over, so now we have non-insured health benefits delivery in one
area and Health Canada over here. My real question is: How will
we ensure that everyone — Indigenous on-reserve, off-reserve,
Meétis, and Inuit — will receive the services they should? It
seems like we have two areas working — not at cross purposes,
but there are two different hands in the till, so to speak. So how
will we ensure accountability on the ground? How will we
follow this as parliamentarians? How do we ensure that
Canadians are receiving these services?

Mr. Conn: The mandate and program service delivery of the
First Nations and Inuit Health Branch rests with Indigenous
Services Canada. We work closely with the Crown-Indigenous
Relations organization in terms of our relationships with our
First Nations, Inuit and Métis partners to ensure there is
coordination. Again, the program service delivery of non-insured
health benefits rests with Indigenous Services Canada, working
with all our partners, First Nations, Inuit and Métis, to ensure
those services are delivered.

The Chair: Senator Duncan also mentioned, Mr. Thompson,
the impact on the RCMP and health. Could you bring clarity to
that?

assumons toujours la responsabilité du programme des services
non assurés et sa gestion a 1’échelle nationale.

Ce programme est toujours bien vivant. Bien entendu, le
programme des services de santé non assurés pour les soins
dentaires, les médicaments et le transport s’applique a tous les
bénéficiaires admissibles, y compris les Inuits et les Premicres
Nations qui sont inscrits. Ce programme se poursuit.

Il est intéressant de noter que, avec 1’arrivée de la pandémie,
tout le programme est passé presque en mode virtuel. Tout s’est
passé sans heurt du coté de la prestation des services. Il n’y a pas
eu d’arriérés ou d’interruptions, alors nous sommes heureux des
résultats.

J’essaie de me rappeler les autres €léments de vos questions.
Nous n’assistons pas & une tendance & la baisse du personnel
affecté aux services de santé non assurés. Nous assistons plutot a
une hausse du personnel et I’embauche se poursuit. Nos
responsabilités dans la prestation des services du programme
s’élargissent, et nous travaillons avec nos partenaires
autochtones pour recenser, le cas échéant, les lacunes ou les
besoins.

Sénatrice, je m’excuse si je n’ai pas répondu a tous les
¢léments de vos questions ou de vos commentaires.

La sénatrice Duncan : Non. Je comprends, d’aprés ce que
vous dites, que Relations Couronne-Autochtones a pris le relais,
si bien que la prestation des services de soins non assurés se
trouve dans ce secteur, et Santé Canada, 1a. Ma question précise
est la suivante : comment allons-nous nous assurer que tous —
les Autochtones dans les réserves et hors réserve, les Métis et les
Inuits — vont recevoir les services qu’ils doivent recevoir? Il
semble y avoir deux secteurs a 1’ceuvre, dont les efforts ne sont
pas contradictoires, mais il y a deux paires de mains différentes
dans la caisse, si on veut. Comment allez-vous faire, donc, pour
assurer la reddition de comptes sur le terrain? Comment les
parlementaires vont-ils assurer un suivi? Comment allons-nous
veiller a ce que les Canadiens recgoivent ces services?

M. Conn : Le mandat et la prestation des services du
programme de la Direction générale de la santé des Premicres
Nations et des Inuits relévent de Services aux Autochtones
Canada. Nous travaillons en étroite collaboration avec Relations
Couronne-Autochtones dans nos relations avec nos partenaires
des Premiéres Nations, inuits et métis pour assurer la
coordination. Je répéte encore une fois que le programme des
services de santé non assurés reléve de Services aux Autochtones
Canada, et nous travaillons en collaboration avec tous nos
partenaires — les Premiéres Nations, les Inuits et les Métis —
pour assurer la prestation des services.

Le président : Monsieur Thompson, la sénatrice Duncan a
aussi parlé de la GRC. Pourriez-vous clarifier ce point?
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Mr. Thompson: I’'m not sure I understand the question with
regard to the RCMP, sir, I’'m sorry.

The Chair: Senator Duncan, this was in view of services to
the population?

Senator Duncan: That’s correct. The RCMP and the Armed
Forces are not covered under provincial health care acts. My
understanding is that Health Canada has responsibility for them.
That’s certainly our provincial health act. Where do they fit in
this money and in ensuring service delivery?

The Chair: Mr. Thompson, having a sense of the question
vis-a-vis your department, the other department and the vote that
you’re being asked for clarity on by senators and National
Finance, could you take Senator Duncan’s questions into
consideration with your officials, if need be? If you want to be
more specific on the question posed and connect with another
department, could you answer in writing? Please be mindful that
we have a time frame in which to table our report in the Senate.
Is that fair to ask?

Mr. Thompson: I can answer the question, senator. My
department is not responsible for delivering services to the
RCMP and the Armed Forces. We are solely responsible for First
Nations and Inuit, so that would be another organization. That
has not been transferred to our department.

The Chair: Senator Duncan, if you want to look at your
clarification questions and submit another question before we
table the report — in view of the many questions you have
asked — it would be considered before the report is tabled.

Senator Loffreda: Thank you to our all our witnesses,
panellists and colleagues.

My question is for the Department of Finance. There is a
request for $1 billion related to the Safe Return to Class Fund.
That is for adapted learning spaces, PPE, cleaning supplies and
air ventilation. We don’t have supply shortages anymore — we
all know that — but we’ve heard a lot lately in the news about
air ventilation and how much of a concern that is. It’s a larger
concern and a bigger challenge. We all know that the safe return
to class is a large concern for all of us at this point in time. We
all have COVID fatigue and we want to get everybody back to
class safely and not lose a year.

What can you share? Can you give us a status update on the air
ventilation? Are there any timing concerns on your side? What
can you further share on that note? What is the breakdown

M. Thompson : Je ne suis pas certain de comprendre la
question concernant la GRC, monsieur. Je suis désolé.

Le président : Sénatrice Duncan, s’agissait-il des services a
la population?

La sénatrice Duncan : C’est exact. La GRC et les forces
armées ne sont pas couvertes par les lois sur la santé des
provinces. Je crois comprendre que c’est une responsabilité qui
reléve de Santé Canada. C’est le cas du moins dans notre loi
provinciale sur la santé. Les sommes s’appliquent-elles a eux
pour la prestation des services?

Le président : Monsieur Thompson, vous comprenez le sens
de la question pour votre ministére, 1’autre ministere et le crédit
pour lequel les sénateurs et le comité vous demandent des
précisions, alors pourriez-vous discuter des questions de la
sénatrice Duncan avec vos collégues, si nécessaire? Si vous
voulez nous donner plus de précisions et en discuter avec un
autre ministére, pourriez-vous nous répondre par écrit?
N’oubliez pas que nous avons un échéancier a respecter pour
déposer notre rapport au Sénat. Est-ce juste de vous demander
cela?

M. Thompson : Je peux répondre a la question, sénateur.
Mon ministére n’est pas responsable de la prestation des services
a la GRC et aux forces armées. Nous sommes uniquement
responsables des Premiéres Nations et des Inuits. Cette
responsabilité n’a pas été transférée a notre ministére, alors elle
reléve d’un autre ministere.

Le président : Sénatrice Duncan, si vous voulez jeter un coup
d’ceeil a vos questions et en poser une autre avant de déposer le
rapport — considérant les nombreuses questions que vous avez
posées —, elle sera examinée avant le dép6t du rapport.

Le sénateur Loffreda : Merci a tous nos témoins et

participants.

Ma question s’adresse au ministére des Finances. Il y a une
demande de 1 milliard de dollars concernant le Fonds pour une
rentrée scolaire sécuritaire, du financement destiné a 1’adaptation
des espaces d’apprentissage, l’équipement de protection
individuelle, les produits nettoyants et la ventilation. Nous
n’avons plus de pénurie approvisionnement maintenant — nous
le savons tous —, mais nous avons beaucoup entendu parler aux
nouvelles derniérement des graves préoccupations lies a la
ventilation. C’est une préoccupation et un défi de nature
générale. Nous savons que la question du retour sécuritaire en
classe nous préoccupe tous beaucoup en ce moment. Nous avons
tous une lassitude face a la COVID et nous voulons que le retour
en classe se fasse de maniére sécuritaire et que les ¢tudiants ne
perdent pas une année.

Que pouvez-vous nous dire a ce sujet? Pouvez-vous nous faire
une mise a jour concernant la ventilation? Avez-vous des
inquiétudes liées aux échéanciers? Que pouvez-vous nous dire a
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between the federal government and the provinces and territories
of that fund? Will it be sufficient? Thank you.

Ms. Bess: At this point I don’t have that information off the
top of my head, but I will defer to my colleague Mr. Galen
Countryman to see if he has any further information on the
ventilation.

Mr. Countryman: Thank you, senator. Similar to other
transfers, this is a return of costs when it’s a block transfer to the
provinces and territories, and it’s up to the provinces and
territories to allocate the funding among the different priorities.
We anticipate that, as part of the agreements, the premiers will
write to the Prime Minister to report on how they’ve spent the
funds and how they intend to spend the second tranche of the $1
billion in the supplementary estimates. We will have a better
sense then as to how they are allocating the money across the
different priorities identified as part of the safe return to class
agreement and where they intend to spend the additional $1
billion.

Senator Loffreda: I have a question for Employment and
Social Development Canada. In advertising programs you have
$1.2 million that you’re asking for. It’s not the amount that’s
important, but you’re asking for operating expenditures to inform
seniors and for available services to promote hiring persons with
disabilities. Recently in the chamber I discussed the
Opportunities Fund for Persons with Disabilities. We are
approving $1.2 million for the advertising.

How is the Opportunities Fund for Persons with Disabilities
coming along? If we are looking at advertising and having
people acknowledge that there is such a fund and they need to
apply for it, do you have any feedback at this point in time? Is it
sufficient? Do we have enough in that fund going forward?
Should we be looking at that as a major concern? It is a major
concern. Should we be asking for more funding at that level?
Training is important, and the vulnerable are very much in need,
persons with disabilities require help when necessary, and
seniors, too, for that matter. Could you elaborate or give us a
status update on that?

Mr. Perlman: I can give you an update on the 2020-21
advertising campaign. The purpose is to increase knowledge and
awareness of Government of Canada programs and services to
benefit seniors and persons with disabilities. I’'m just starting to
do that on our various campaign pages. All of these, of course,
have been worked through and negotiated with our central
agency colleagues. Because you’re specifically asking about the
opportunities fund, I will turn it over to my colleague Elisha
Ram.

ce sujet? Comment les fonds sont-ils répartis entre le
gouvernement fédéral et les provinces et territoires? Le montant
sera-t-il suffisant? Merci.

Mme Bess : Je n’ai pas ’information en téte, mais je vais
demander a mon collegue, M. Galen Countryman, s’il peut
répondre a votre question au sujet de la ventilation.

M. Countryman : Merci, sénateur. Comme pour les autres
transferts, il y a un retour des cofts lors d’un transfert en bloc
aux provinces et aux territoires, et il leur revient de répartir les
fonds en fonction de leurs priorités. Nous prévoyons que, dans le
cadre des accords, les premiers ministres provinciaux vont écrire
au premier ministre pour 1’informer de la fagon dont ils ont
dépensé les fonds et comment ils comptent dépenser la deuxiéme
tranche de 1 milliard de dollars prévue dans le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses. Nous aurons une meilleure idée a
ce moment de leur fagon de répartir les fonds en fonction de
leurs priorités pour assurer une rentrée scolaire sécuritaire, et de
la fagon qu’ils comptent dépenser le montant de 1 milliard
supplémentaire.

Le sénateur Loffreda: J’ai une question pour les
représentants d’Emploi et Développement social Canada. Vous
demandez 1,2 million de dollars pour les programmes de
publicité. Ce n’est pas le montant qui est important, mais vous
demandez des dépenses de fonctionnement pour informer les
personnes agées et promouvoir les services disponibles pour
I’embauche de personnes handicapées. Derniérement a la
Chambre, j’ai parlé du Fonds d’intégration pour les personnes
handicapées. Nous approuvons 1,2 million pour la publicité.

Ou en est le Fonds d’intégration pour les personnes
handicapées? Si on parle de publicité, et que les gens savent
qu’un fonds existe et qu’ils doivent faire une demande, avez-
vous de la rétroaction en ce moment? Le montant est-il suffisant?
Avons-nous besoin de plus? Devrions-nous nous en inquiéter?
C’est trés inquiétant. Devrions-nous demander plus de fonds? La
formation est importante, et les personnes vulnérables sont dans
le besoin, les personnes handicapées ont besoin d’aide lorsque
c’est nécessaire, et les personnes agées également. Pouvez-vous
nous en dire plus ou nous dire ou cela en est actuellement?

M. Perlman : Je peux vous dire ou en est la campagne de
publicité 2020-2021. L’objectif est de mieux faire connaitre les
programmes et les services du gouvernement du Canada dont
peuvent profiter les personnes Aagées et les personnes
handicapées. C’est ce que je viens tout juste de commencer a
faire sur les différentes pages de la campagne. Tous les détails,
bien sir, ont fait I’objet de discussions avec nos collégues des
organismes centraux. Comme votre question porte précisément
sur le fonds d’intégration, je vais céder la parole a mon collegue
Elisha Ram.
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Elisha Ram, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister, Skills
and Employment Branch, Employment and Social
Development Canada: Thank you for the question. I couldn’t
agree with you more that the opportunities fund is an important
initiative. It’s an initiative that provides approximately $40
million a year in which we work with community-based
organizations to increase employability and other supports for
persons with disabilities. There has also been a temporary
increase this year for that program in the context of COVID,
recognizing that there are additional challenges that persons with
disabilities face as a result of the pandemic. We think we’re
doing pretty well with that program. Should you be interested,
we can provide additional information offline.

Senator Loffreda: Yes, I would be very interested in
receiving additional information offline, and I'd be very
interested in promoting additional expenditures and investment
in that area, which is so important for persons with disabilities
and, of course, seniors. Thank you for your answer.

Senator Smith: My question is for the ESDC group. You’re
seeking an additional $6.9 million in Supplementary Estimates
(B) to address the outbreak of COVID-19 among temporary
foreign workers on farms and to increase protection for these
workers. During last week’s Seasonal Agricultural Worker
Program meetings, Mexican officials called on Canada to
maintain its COVID-19 protections for temporary foreign
workers and re-evaluate other long-standing concerns, including
the decades-old problem of housing standards, and providing
access to grieving services for many of those workers.

Can you tell us about the talks that have taken place or a
contingency plan addressing these pressing issues?

Mr. Perlman: I can tell you that the department absolutely
takes this very seriously, which is why the investment is being
made. It’s all about further investment to safeguard the health
and safety of Canadians. Again, I will turn to my colleague
Mr. Ram to take that question.

Mr. Ram: As Mr. Perlman has said, this is something we take
extremely seriously. We are aware of some of the concerns that
have been raised with respect to the safety of all workers,
particularly migrant workers, especially in the agricultural sector
because they often live on the farm. We have put in place a
number of different initiatives, not just funding but also new
regulations that have created obligations on the part of the
employer to respect quarantine and self-isolation rules and
ensure workers have access to information about what those

Elisha Ram, sous-ministre adjoint délégué, Direction
générale des compétences et de P’emploi, Emploi et
Développement social Canada : Merci beaucoup de la

question. Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec vous pour dire que le
fonds d’intégration est une initiative importante. C’est une
initiative d’environ 40 millions de dollars par année dans le
cadre de laquelle nous travaillons avec des organismes
communautaires pour accroitre 1’employabilité des personnes
handicapées et leur offrir d’autres formes de soutien. Le
programme a été bonifié temporairement cette année en raison de
la COVID, compte tenu des difficultés supplémentaires qui se
posent pour elles dans ce contexte. Le programme fonctionne
trés bien. Si vous le souhaitez, je peux vous fournir plus
d’information apres la séance.

Le sénateur Loffreda : Oui, j’aimerais bien avoir plus
d’information apres la séance, et j’aimerais bien proner une
hausse des dépenses et des investissements dans ce programme
qui est si important pour les personnes handicapées et,
naturellement, les personnes agées. Merci de votre réponse.

Le sénateur Smith : Ma question s’adresse aux représentants
d’Emploi et Développement social Canada. Dans le Budget
supplémentaire des dépenses (B), vous demandez un montant
additionnel de 6,9 millions de dollars pour mieux protéger les
travailleurs étrangers temporaires qui s’exposent a des éclosions
de COVID-19 dans les fermes. Lors des réunions tenues la
semaine derniére concernant le Programme des travailleurs
agricoles saisonniers, les représentants mexicains ont demandé
au Canada de maintenir ses mesures de protection des
travailleurs étrangers temporaires contre la COVID-19, et de se
pencher a nouveau sur des problémes qui perdurent depuis des
décennies, comme ceux touchant les normes de logement et
I’impossibilité de déposer un grief pour bon nombre de ces
travailleurs.

Pouvez-vous nous parler de la teneur de ces discussions et
nous indiquer si un plan a été mis en place pour s’attaquer a ces
problémes pressants?

M. Perlman : Je peux vous assurer que ce sont des enjeux
que le ministére prend trés au sérieux, comme en témoignent les
investissements qui sont consentis. Il s’agit en fait d’investir
encore davantage pour assurer la santé et la sécurité des
Canadiens. Je vais demander a mon collegue, M. Ram, de vous
en dire plus long a ce sujet.

M. Ram : Comme I’indiquait M. Perlman, c’est une
problématique que nous prenons trés au sérieux. Nous sommes
au fait des préoccupations qui ont été soulevées quant a la
sécurité de tous les travailleurs, et particulierement des
travailleurs étrangers dans le secteur agricole étant donné qu’ils
doivent souvent vivre sur la ferme elle-méme. Nous avons mis
en place différentes initiatives a cette fin. En plus du
financement, nous avons adopt¢ de nouvelles mesures
réglementaires qui obligent I’employeur a respecter les régles en
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provisions are. We have also provided funding to help employers
address some of the issues on housing, as well as launching
recent consultations on new national standards for
accommodations for foreign workers in the agricultural sector.

This is something we continue to pay a lot of attention to. We
seem to be making good progress. We also continue to have
conversations with foreign governments — countries like
Mexico — that provide those workers to Canada to ensure that
they’re aware of the measures we’re taking. They then have an
opportunity to provide any feedback about additional measures
that may be required.

Senator Smith: Has your department taken a snapshot to
provide actual feedback? You’ve talked about how important
everything is, but is there an actual plan of execution? Do you
have feedback you can share with us that shows the path you are
on and some of the results you’re actually achieving?

Mr. Ram: [ think we’re making progress, senator, in a
number of different areas. As I said, we have put in place
regulations that clearly protect the workers and ensure that
employers are respecting them. We have increased the number of
inspections being undertaken to ensure that those regulations are
being followed. We’ve also increased our dialogue with
organizations that represent the interests of the migrant workers
to ensure that they have a voice and that they’re able to
communicate to us whenever those concerns arise.

Of course we were heartbroken by some of the situations that
emerged on a number of farms and that some workers were
exposed to the virus. We have definitely taken lessons away
from that, and we are in the process of engaging with employers,
the workers themselves and the provinces and territories. Many
of the authorities for things like housing inspection and health
and safety actually reside in provincial jurisdiction. We are
definitely making progress, and we’d be happy to come back at a
later date and talk to you a bit more about that.

[Translation]

Senator Dagenais: My first question is for Mr. Thompson.
Some 330,000 people live in First Nations communities on
reserve in Canada. Your total authorities for this year have
increased; you now have $16 billion to deliver services, which is
slightly less than $50,000 for each of the 330,000 status
members living on reserve in Canada. Many Canadian families
do not make $50,000 a year. Despite the significant investments
to support communities on reserve, that population still has the
lowest standard of living. Some still do not have access to
running water, and even fewer have access to the internet.

matiére de quarantaine et d’isolement et a veiller a ce que ces
travailleurs aient acces a toute I’information nécessaire au sujet
de ces dispositions. Nous avons de plus offert du financement
pour aider les employeurs a régler certains problémes concernant
le logement, en plus de lancer récemment un processus de
consultation relativement a de nouvelles normes nationales sur le
logement des travailleurs étrangers dans le secteur agricole.

Ce sont des enjeux que nous continuons a surveiller de trés
pres. Tout indique que nous avons pu ainsi réaliser des progres
intéressants. Nous poursuivons par ailleurs nos échanges avec les
gouvernements des pays — comme le Mexique — qui
fournissent ces travailleurs au Canada pour veiller a ce qu’ils
soient bien au fait des mesures que nous prenons. Ils peuvent
ainsi nous faire part des dispositions supplémentaires pouvant
étre nécessaires selon eux.

Le sénateur Smith : Est-ce que votre ministére a fait un bilan
de la situation pouvant nous permettre de savoir ce qu’il en est
exactement? Vous nous avez parlé de ’importance de toutes ces
mesures, mais y a-t-il un plan qui encadre le tout? Pourriez-vous
nous informer de l’orientation que vous avez prise et nous
indiquer certains résultats concrets qui sont obtenus?

M. Ram : Je crois que nous réalisons des progres a différents
égards. Comme je l’indiquais, nous avons mis en place des
mesures réglementaires qui assurent une protection concréte aux
travailleurs en veillant a ce que les employeurs s’y conforment.
Pour ce faire, nous avons augmenté le nombre d’inspections que
nous effectuons. Nous avons également intensifié nos échanges
avec les organisations représentant les intéréts des travailleurs
migrants de telle sorte que ceux-ci puissent avoir vraiment voix
au chapitre et exprimer leurs préoccupations.

Nous avons bien sir été consternés par certaines des situations
qui ont pu se produire avec des travailleurs exposés au virus.
Nous avons certes tiré¢ des enseignements de tout cela, et nous
multiplions actuellement les contacts avec les employeurs, les
travailleurs eux-mémes ainsi que les provinces et les territoires.
Bon nombre des questions en cause, comme l’inspection des
logements et les préoccupations liées a la santé et a la sécurité,
relévent en fait des provinces. Il ne fait aucun doute que nous
allons dans la bonne direction, et nous serons ravis de vous
fournir ultérieurement de plus amples détails a ce sujet.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Dagenais : Ma premiére question s’adresse a
M. Thompson. 11 y a 330 000 membres des Premiéres Nations
qui vivent dans des réserves au Canada. Vous aurez un budget
augmenté de 16 milliards de dollars cette année pour offrir des
services, soit un peu moins de 50 000 $ pour chacun des 330 000
membres inscrits de ces communautés qui vivent dans une
réserve au Canada. Il y a beaucoup de familles canadiennes qui
ne gagnent pas 50 000 $ par année. Malgré les sommes
importantes qui sont versées dans les réserves, cette population
connait tout de méme le niveau de vie le plus faible, certains
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Can you tell us how the $16 billion is being spent and whether
you track how the money is used? Also, to what extent will you
be able to tell whether living conditions have improved?

Mr. Thompson: Thank you for your question, senator. It is
indeed quite valid. As you know, the government has made
considerable investments in the past few years. It’s hard to make
a one-for-one comparison between First Nations members and
the rest of Canadians. As you mentioned, the standard of living
is often lower in First Nations communities, so much so, that
there is a significant amount of catching up to do. Major
investments are still needed to support housing, running water,
health care and education. Those investments are all being made
and tracked.

In addition, we have figured out in recent years that, when we
hand over control to First Nations communities, they are much
more effective at setting their own priorities. That is why we
introduced the 10-year grant.

As for the contribution funding, it is delivered through
contribution agreements. We have systems for tracking,
monitoring and performance management, so we are accountable
in terms of achieving program objectives and reporting on
priorities and progress. Our departmental performance report is
one way we do that.

Under the 10-year grant, communities establish financial
administration laws, setting out a modern regime of transparency
and accountability to the community. Accountability is provided
on that end, as well.

Senator Dagenais: I have a second question for Ms. Bess.
The support measures resulted in significant fraud. Surprisingly,
the issue is not necessarily one that the authorities are
consistently concerned about, even though many Canadians have
had their identities stolen. I’m not sure whether you can give us
an update today on the extent of the fraud that was committed,
but if you can, that would be appreciated. Also, do you have a
plan to help the people who were defrauded come tax time? That
is something they are going to have to deal with. Do you have a
plan? They will have to prove that they never received the
benefits.

n’ont pas encore accés a l’eau courante, et encore moins a
Internet.

Pouvez-vous nous dire comment ces milliards sont dépensés et
nous préciser si vous faites un suivi de 1’utilisation de I’argent?
Finalement, dans quelle mesure allez-vous é&tre capable de
constater s’il y a eu une amélioration des conditions de vie?

M. Thompson : Merci, sénateur, pour votre question. C’est
une question qui est effectivement trés pertinente. Vous le savez,
le gouvernement a fait des investissements majeurs dans les
derniéres années. Il est difficile de faire une comparaison « un
pour un » entre les membres des Premiéres Nations et le reste
des Canadiens. Comme vous 1’avez mentionné vous-méme, les
niveaux de vie sont souvent inférieurs. Il y a des conditions qui
demandent beaucoup de rattrapage. Des investissements trés
importants doivent encore étre faits en faveur des logements, de
I’eau courante, de la santé et de 1’éducation. Tous ces
investissements sont faits et sont suivis.

Nous avons aussi déterminé dans les derniéres années que,
quand on donne le contréle aux communautés des Premicres
Nations, elles connaissent beaucoup plus de succés dans
I’établissement de leurs priorités; c’est pour cela que nous avons
mis en place la subvention de 10 ans.

Pour ce qui est de I’argent qui est fourni sous forme de
contributions, c’est dans le cadre d’ententes de contribution.
Nous avons des systémes de suivi, de controle, de gestion de la
performance, donc nous faisons une reddition de comptes pour
nous assurer d’atteindre les objectifs des programmes et d’étre
en mesure de faire rapport sur ces priorités, par exemple par
I’entremise de notre rapport sur le rendement.

En ce qui a trait a la subvention de 10 ans, les communautés
ont mis en place des lois d’administration financiére qui
établissent un régime moderne de transparence et de reddition de
comptes envers la communauté. Donc, cette reddition de
comptes est faite également.

Le sénateur Dagenais : Je vais avoir une seconde question a
poser 8 Mme Bess. Les programmes d’aide ont donné lieu a des
fraudes importantes. On est toujours étonné de constater que cela
ne préoccupe peut-tre pas toujours les autorités, alors que de
nombreux Canadiens se sont fait voler leur identité par des
fraudeurs. Je ne sais pas si vous avez un bilan de I’ampleur des
fraudes a partager avec nous aujourd’hui. Aussi, est-ce que vous
avez ¢élaboré un plan pour les personnes flouées quand viendra le
temps pour elles de payer de 1’imp6t? Elles devront y faire face.
Est-ce qu’il y a un plan qui est prévu? Elles vont devoir montrer
qu’elles n’ont jamais pergu leurs cotisations.
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[English]

The Chair: Ms. Bess, you heard the question. Could you
provide us with a graph? Can you address the question, or would
you prefer to provide your answer in writing?

Ms. Bess: Thank you for the question, senator. I’m not sure if
this is a question for the Department of Finance or more of a
question for the Canada Revenue Agency. I don’t feel our
department is best placed to answer that question.

The Chair: Could you look into it and share that information
with the clerk, please?

Ms. Bess: [ will.
The Chair: Thank you.
[Translation]

Senator Forest: My first question is about temporary foreign
workers. It’s for the Employment and Social Development
Canada officials. You are requesting $6.9 million to address the
issue of temporary foreign workers infected with COVID-19. In
late October, the agriculture and employment ministers launched
consultations to fast-track the arrival of workers to make the
process more effective and enhance worker safety. Ultimately,
the idea is to review the Temporary Foreign Worker Program.
Consulting stakeholders is a good idea, but farmers need to know
where things stand in this unique context.

First, do you have a timetable for changing the Temporary
Foreign Worker Program? Second, some of the rules for hiring
temporary foreign workers were relaxed for the 2020 season, so
will farmers be able to count on that same flexibility next year?
As you know, the agricultural sector, especially market
gardening, is on shaky ground.

[English]
The Chair: Mr. Perlman, please?

Mr. Perlman: Again, I would pass that on to Mr. Ram.

[Translation]

Mr. Ram: Thank you, senator, for that very important
question. We understand how important foreign workers are to
the agricultural sector. We are working closely with the sector
and with workers to make sure everyone understands the rules so
that employers are not faced with uncertainty next year.

[Traduction]

Le président : Madame Bess, vous avez entendu cette
question ou ’on vous demande notamment un tableau de la
situation. Voulez-vous y répondre maintenant ou préféreriez-
vous le faire par écrit?

Mme Bess : Merci pour la question, sénateur. Je me demande
si ce n’est pas davantage une question pour 1’Agence du revenu
du Canada, plutét que pour le ministére des Finances. Je ne
pense pas que nous soyons les mieux placés pour y répondre.

Le président : Pourriez-vous faire les  vérifications
nécessaires et nous indiquer ce qu’il en est par ’entremise de
notre greffiere?

Mme Bess : C’est ce que vais faire.
Le président : Merci.
[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Ma premicre question concerne les
travailleurs étrangers temporaires et s’adresse aux représentants
d’Emploi et Développement social Canada. Dans le budget, il y a
une somme de 6,9 millions de dollars. On a constaté que des
travailleurs étrangers temporaires ont été atteints de la
COVID-19. Des consultations ont été lancées derniérement, a la
fin octobre, par les ministres de 1’ Agriculture et de I’Emploi dans
le but d’accélérer I’arrivée des travailleurs de facon plus efficace
et plus sécuritaire. On visait ultimement a revoir le Programme
des travailleurs étrangers temporaires. L’idée de consulter les
intervenants concernés est bonne. Toutefois, il faudrait que les
agriculteurs aient I’heure juste dans un contexte aussi particulier.

Premicrement, avez-vous un échéancier pour les modifications
a apporter au Programme des travailleurs étrangers temporaires?
Deuxiémement, les producteurs agricoles pourront-ils compter,
I’an prochain, sur les assouplissements apportés pour la saison de
2020 en ce qui concerne I’embauche des travailleurs étrangers
temporaires? On sait que le secteur agricole, en particulier celui
de la culture maraichére, est trés fragilisé.

[Traduction]
Le président : Monsieur Perlman, voulez-vous répondre?

M. Perlman : Je vais demander a nouveau a M. Ram de le
faire.

[Frangais]

M. Ram : Merci, monsieur le sénateur, pour cette question
trés importante. Nous comprenons I’importance des travailleurs
étrangers pour le secteur agricole. Nous travaillons étroitement
avec le secteur et les travailleurs pour veiller a ce que tout le
monde comprenne les réglements et afin d’éviter ’incertitude
pour les employeurs 1’année prochaine.
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Senator Forest: For next year, do you have an idea of when
farm business owners can expect to see the changes to the
program?

Mr. Ram: We don’t have any exact dates, but we are in the
midst of developing policies for next year in close consultation
with the sector.

Senator Forest: If it was before December 25, it would be a
nice Christmas gift for farmers.

My second question is for the Department of Finance officials.
There is an issue that concerns me, and I asked the minister
about it. I am at a loss to explain certain things from an ethical
and fairness standpoint. Take for example the case of a business
that received major support through the wage subsidy program,
as reported by the Journal de Montréal. One company received
$63 million and paid out nearly $46 million in dividends to
shareholders, which was an increase. When you design a
program to help businesses survive a crisis and preserve jobs,
should you not prohibit businesses from paying out dividends
when they are receiving wage subsidies? That’s only ethical.
Canadians are concerned that some businesses are showing no
morality in the current situation.

Perhaps Ms. Bess could answer that question?
[English]

Ms. Bess: Thank you very much for your question. I’ll defer
to my colleague Mr. Miodrag Jovanovic for that response.

[Translation]

Miodrag Jovanovic, Associate Assistant Deputy Minister,
Tax Policy Branch, Department of Finance Canada: Thank
you, Senator Forest, for your question. You’re right that the
requirements for the wage subsidy program do not prohibit
businesses from paying dividends or even increasing them. The
eligibility criteria do, however, build some underlying rigour into
the program. In order to access the subsidy, the business must
first show that it was affected by the crisis and experienced a
decline in revenue. Furthermore, the subsidy is based on the
payment of wages, so the business cannot receive the subsidy if
it has not paid its employees first.

In our view, the subsidy is designed in a way that provides
effective support for employment, making it possible for
businesses to keep their employees longer and to preserve that

Le sénateur Forest : Pour I’an prochain, avez-vous une idée
des dates ou ces entrepreneurs agricoles verront les
modifications apportées au programme?

M. Ram : Nous n’avons pas de dates précises. Toutefois,
nous sommes en train d’élaborer les politiques pour 1’année
prochaine en consultation étroite avec le secteur.

Le sénateur Forest : Ce pourrait donc étre un cadeau de Noé¢l
pour les agriculteurs s’ils I’obtiennent pour le 25 décembre.

Ma deuxiéme question s’adresse aux représentants du
ministére des Finances. Un sujet m’interpelle, sur lequel j’ai
interrogé la ministre. Je n’arrive pas, en matiere d’éthique et
d’équité, a expliquer certaines choses. Prenons ’exemple d’une
entreprise qui a recu, comme le Journal de Montréal le
mentionnait, des sommes importantes en subventions salariales.
Je pense a une entreprise qui a regu environ 63 millions de
dollars et qui a versé pres de 46 millions de dollars en dividendes
a ses actionnaires, ce qui représente une augmentation.
L’¢laboration d’un programme d’aide pour la survie des
entreprises, qui vise entre autres a maintenir les emplois, ne
pourrait-elle pas inclure des dispositions qui interdisent aux
entreprises de se verser des dividendes alors qu’elles recoivent
des subventions salariales? C’est une question d’éthique. Les
Canadiens et Canadiennes sont interpellés par le fait que, dans la
situation actuelle, certaines entreprises ne fassent preuve
d’aucune morale corporative.

Peut-étre que Mme Bess pourrait répondre a la question?
[Traduction]

Mme Bess : Merci beaucoup pour la question. Je crois que
mon collégue, M. Miodrag Jovanovic, pourra vous répondre a ce
sujet.

[Frangais]

Miodrag Jovanovic, sous-ministre adjoint délégué,
Direction de la politique de I’imp6t, ministére des Finances
Canada : Merci, sénateur Forest, pour la  question.
Effectivement, pour ce qui est du programme de la subvention
salariale, il n’y a pas de condition qui empéche 1’entreprise de
verser des dividendes ni d’augmenter les dividendes. Par contre,
les critéres d’admissibilité font en sorte qu’il y a une certaine
discipline implicite dans le programme. Pour obtenir Ia
subvention, I’entreprise doit d’abord démontrer qu’elle a été
touchée par la crise et qu’il y a une réduction des revenus. Par
ailleurs, la subvention est basée sur le paiement de salaires.
L’entreprise ne peut donc pas obtenir de subvention si elle n’a
pas d’abord payé¢ les employés.

De la fagon dont la mesure est congue, nous estimons qu’elle
soutient efficacement 1’emploi, et qu’elle permet aux entreprises
de garder leurs employés plus longtemps et de maintenir ce lien
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important relationship. When the economy rebounds, the
employee-employer relationship will be intact.

Senator Forest: We share that objective. The labour
challenge for designated individuals in every sector is huge. A
critical mass of knowledge within our businesses has to be
preserved. I am well aware of the fact that the public service
does not determine the criteria. Even though the decision of
whether or not to green-light a program is a political one, you
still have to provide recommendations and advice to the
politicians making the decisions. It is absolutely inconceivable to
me that a company can receive $63 million in subsidy supports
from the government, taxpayer money, and turn around and pay
its shareholders $46 million in dividends. It’s a matter of
fairness, solidarity, and right and wrong. It has nothing to do
with the appropriateness of the program objectives. It’s about
conscience, solidarity and social morality. I do, however, realize
that you don’t make the decisions.

[English]

The Chair: That was a comment by the senator. I heard
Finance respond to the previous question. Ms. Bess, would you
to look into it with the comments that were made? If you can
bring clarity to the previous question, we would appreciate that.

Ms. Bess: I will, Mr. Chair.
The Chair: Thank you.

Senator Richards: Thank you. This is a follow-up to Senator
Smith and Senator Forest’s first question.

This is in regard to the losses in the agricultural sector.
Mr. Ram, do we know what percentage of food security there
will be and if the cost of food will rise exponentially over the
next months because of food and commodity prices? Maybe you
can give us some indication on that.

Mr. Ram: Thank you, senator. I think I can partly answer that
question, in the sense that we are working as hard as we can to
ensure that the agricultural sector and employers in that sector
have access to the workers they normally depend on.

However, the specific questions around the production in the
agricultural sector is not something that is within our
responsibility. T would direct that question to officials from
Agriculture and Agri-food Canada. I apologize for that.

Senator Richards: Thank you.

important. Au moment ou l’économie rebondira, la relation
employé-employeur sera ainsi maintenue.

Le sénateur Forest : Nous partageons cet objectif. Le défi de
la main-d’ceuvre pour les personnes désignées dans tous les
secteurs d’activité est immense. Il y a toute une masse critique de
connaissances a maintenir au sein de nos entreprises. Je suis trés
conscient du fait que ce n’est pas 1’administration qui décide des
critéres. Que ce soit, en fin de compte, une décision politique
d’approuver ou non le programme, il reste que vous avez a faire
des recommandations aux hommes et aux femmes politiques qui
prennent les décisions. A mon avis, il est totalement
inconcevable qu’une entreprise qui recoit 63 millions de dollars
en subventions d’aide de I’Etat, a partir de fonds publics, se
retourne et verse 46 millions de dollars en dividendes. C’est une
question d’équité, de solidarité et de morale. Ca n’a rien a voir
avec la pertinence des objectifs du programme. C’est une
question de conscience, de solidarité et de morale sociale. Je
comprends cependant que ce n’est pas vous qui prenez la
décision.

[Traduction]

Le président : C’était un commentaire de la part du sénateur.
Nous avons entendu la réponse du ministére des Finances a la
question précédente. Madame Bess, nous vous serions
reconnaissants de bien vouloir préciser cette réponse en tenant
compte des commentaires qui ont été faits.

Mme Bess : Je vais m’en charger, monsieur le président.
Le président : Merci.

Le sénateur Richards : Merci. Je vais poursuivre dans le
sens de D’intervention du sénateur Smith et de la premicre
question du sénateur Forest.

C’est au sujet des pertes encourues dans le secteur agricole.
Monsieur Ram, je ne sais pas si vous pouvez nous donner une
idée de ce a quoi nous devons nous attendre pour ce qui est de la
mesure dans laquelle nous risquons de perdre notre sécurité
alimentaire en voyant les prix des denrées augmenter de facon
exponentielle au cours des prochains mois.

M. Ram : Merci, sénateur. Je crois pouvoir répondre
partiellement a votre question en vous disant que nous mettons
tout en ceuvre pour faire en sorte que les employeurs du secteur
agricole aient accés aux travailleurs dont ils ont habituellement
besoin pour mener leurs activités.

Cependant, les différents détails touchant la production dans
ce secteur ne relévent pas de notre responsabilité. Je suis désolé,
mais il serait préférable que vous posiez la question aux
représentants d’Agriculture et Agroalimentaire Canada.

Le sénateur Richards : Merci.
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The Chair: Senators, we have time for a second round.
Before we adjourn, we have time for at least two questions.

Senator Marshall: I have a very general question — not to
put the officials on the spot — and I’ll be very careful with the
way [ word it. There is a Minister of Middle Class Prosperity,
and a lot of money has been going out for COVID-19 programs.
Is anything being published or generated by the department
whereby parliamentarians can see the impact of COVID-19 on
the middle class, as envisioned by the current government?

Ms. Bess: Thank you for your question, Senator Marshall. I’11
defer to my colleague Mr. Nicholas Leswick, who may be able to
provide an update on what will be published.

Nicholas Leswick, Assistant Deputy Minister, Economic
and Fiscal Policy Branch, Department of Finance Canada: |
would anticipate that this coming Monday’s publication should
give you some more well-rounded discussion in terms of
COVID-19 impacts on the labour market, how government
supports have filled that gap and what kind of challenges and
opportunities there are for the middle class in a post-COVID
economy. Stay tuned for Monday.

Senator Marshall: Will there be a pre-briefing like there is
for the budget? Will we just be getting the update cold, or will
we get that lead-in like we do with the budget?

Mr. Leswick: Sarah Lawley is on the line, and I believe she’s
coordinating our communications strategy with parliamentarians,
senators and house officials, so I’ll let her take over.

Ms. Bess: Ms. Lawley is our communications expert, and she
will be able to field this question.

Sarah Lawley, Assistant Deputy Minister, Consultations
and Communications Branch, Department of Finance
Canada: To your question, senator, given the public health
environment we currently find ourselves in, we are not able to do
our normal secure readings, as we call them, in advance of a
release. There will be a very select few parliamentarians who are
given access to the documents in advance, but we will not be
able to open the doors to the numbers of people that we usually
do. I hope you understand that.

Senator Marshall: Okay, so no Zoom briefing?

Le président : Il nous reste du temps pour un second tour.
Nous devrions ainsi pouvoir poser au moins deux questions d’ici
la fin de la séance.

La sénatrice Marshall : J’ai une question d’ordre trés
général, et je vais essayer de la formuler avec soin afin de ne pas
mettre les fonctionnaires sur la sellette. Il y a une ministre de la
Prospérité de la classe moyenne, et beaucoup d’argent a été
consacré aux programmes pour la COVID-19. Le ministére a-t-il
publié ou produit des informations pouvant permettre aux
parlementaires de savoir mieux a quoi s’en tenir quant aux
répercussions de la pandémie sur la classe moyenne dans le
contexte des objectifs que s’est donnés le gouvernement au
pouvoir?

Mme Bess : Merci pour votre question, sénatrice Marshall. Je
vais céder la parole a mon collégue, M. Nicholas Leswick, qui
devrait pouvoir vous en dire plus long sur ce qui a été publié.

Nicholas Leswick, sous-ministre adjoint, Direction de la
politique économique et budgétaire, ministére des Finances
du Canada : Je présume que la mise a jour économique de lundi
nous permettra de nous faire une meilleure idée des impacts de la
COVID-19 sur le marché du travail, de 1’efficacité des mesures
prises par le gouvernement pour combler le manque a gagner et
des différents défis et débouchés qui vont s’offrir a la classe
moyenne dans une économie post-pandémie. Il faudra attendre
jusqu’a lundi.

La sénatrice Marshall : Y aura-t-il une séance d’information
préalable comme c’est le cas pour le budget? Va-t-on nous
présenter directement la mise a jour économique ou aurons-nous
droit a cette longueur d’avance comme pour le budget?

M. Leswick : Sarah Lawley est en ligne, et je vais lui
demander de vous répondre, car je crois que c’est elle qui
coordonne notre stratégie de communication avec les
parlementaires, les sénateurs et les représentants de la Chambre.

Mme Bess: Mme Lawley est notre experte en
communications, et elle pourra répondre a cette question.

Sarah Lawley, sous-ministre adjointe, Direction des
consultations et communications, ministére des Finances du
Canada : Pour répondre a votre question, sénatrice, compte tenu
des considérations liées a la santé publique avec lesquelles nous
devons composer actuellement, il ne nous sera pas possible de
procéder a une lecture restreinte comme nous le faisons
habituellement avant la présentation d’un budget ou d’une mise a
jour économique. Un groupe trés sélect de quelques
parlementaires pourra avoir acceés aux documents a l’avance,
mais nous ne pourrons pas accueillir autant de gens que nous le
faisons normalement. J’espere que vous comprendrez.

La sénatrice Marshall : I1 n’y aura donc pas de séance
d’information via Zoom?



25-11-2020

Finances nationales

6:57

Ms. Lawley: No Zoom briefing.

The Chair: Ms. Lawley, before we go to Senator Forest, can
you assure the Finance Committee that a senator or senators will
be included on that link?

Ms. Lawley: There is no electronic link. There will be a very
select few in-person readings. I can tell you that right now we
are working with the Government House Leader’s office, on both
the parliamentary side and the Senate side, to confirm our
approach for Monday. But it is kind of @ la minute right now.

The Chair: Including the Senate side?

Ms. Lawley: Yes, we are confirming that right now.

[Translation]

Senator Forest: Thank you. My question is for the finance
officials.

Supplementary Estimates (B) includes $1 billion to clean up
inactive oil and gas wells. The government clearly wants to help
oil and gas workers affected by the COVID-19 crisis and the
drop in oil prices, and we absolutely support that.

One thing worries me, though. A number of rural
municipalities in Alberta recently revealed that they are owed a
total of $173 million in unpaid property and municipal taxes.
Before a company receives funding to clean up a site that it
polluted for its own profit, will anyone check to make sure the
company has paid any outstanding municipal taxes in full? After
all, that tax revenue benefits the local government, which has to
(a) cope first-hand with the limitations caused by that type of
pollution on its territory and (b) deliver basic services such as
safety and snow clearing.

Will you make sure that all municipalities have received the
property and municipal taxes they are owed before companies
obtain any funding under the program? I sure hope so.

Ms. Bess: Thank you for your question, senator.
[English]

I will defer to my colleague Mr. Sam Millar to speak about the
orphan wells and taxes.

Mme Lawley : Non, pas de séance Zoom.

Le président : Madame Lawley, avant de donner la parole au
sénateur Forest, je vous demanderais s’il vous est possible de
garantir au Comité des finances qu’au moins un sénateur aura
acces a ce lien?

Mme Lawley : Il n’y a pas de lien électronique. Il y a
seulement quelques parlementaires triés sur le volet qui pourront
prendre connaissance des documents en personne. Je peux vous
dire que nous sommes actuellement en communication avec les
bureaux des leaders du gouvernement a la Chambre et au Sénat
pour confirmer la fagon dont nous allons procéder lundi
prochain. C’est donc a suivre pour I’instant.

Le président : 11 y a donc une place pour le Sénat?

Mme Lawley : Oui, nous sommes en train de confirmer le
tout.

[Frangais]

Le sénateur Forest : Merci. Ma question s’adresse aux
fonctionnaires du ministére des Finances.

Il est prévu au Budget supplémentaire des dépenses (B) une
somme de 1 milliard de dollars pour nettoyer les puits de pétrole
inactifs. Il est clair que le gouvernement veut aider les
travailleurs de 1’industrie pétroliére qui sont touchés par la
COVID-19 et par la baisse des prix du pétrole, et nous sommes
tout a fait d’accord avec cela.

Cependant, une chose me préoccupe : plusieurs municipalités
rurales de I’Alberta ont récemment relevé que des entreprises
énergétiques leur doivent un total de 173 millions de dollars sous
la forme de taxes fonciéres ou municipales impayées. Avant de
verser une subvention a une entreprise pour décontaminer un site
qu’elle a elle-méme pollué a ses profits, va-t-on s’assurer que
cette compagnie s’est acquittée du paiement complet des taxes
municipales qui sont dues? Nous savons que ces taxes servent a
un ordre de gouvernement de proximité qui subit directement les
contraintes liées a ce type de pollution sur son territoire et que ce
dernier doit assurer les services de base, comme la sécurité et le
déblaiement des rues.

Dans le cadre de ce programme, va-t-on s’assurer — et je
I’espére — que 1’ensemble des municipalités ont regu les
paiements de taxes fonciéres et municipales qui leur reviennent
avant de verser une subvention?

Mme Bess : Merci d’avoir posé cette question, sénateur.
[Traduction]

Je vais demander a mon collégue, M. Sam Millar, de vous
répondre au sujet des puits inactifs et des taxes.
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[Translation]
Mr. Millar: Thank you for your question.

The government signed an agreement with the Province of
Alberta and became aware of the situation you described. One of
the requirements in the agreement with Alberta is that Alberta
must make sure the municipalities affected by the inactive wells
approve the cleanup process before funding can be transferred.

Of course, funding amounts allocated under the program are
posted on the Province of Alberta’s website. That tells the public
and the federal government that the process is being
implemented properly.

Senator Forest: Thank you. I gather, then, that there is no
specific requirement whereby program funding is directly tied to
a company’s payment in full of outstanding municipal taxes.
There is, however, a co-operation agreement with the Province
of Alberta.

Mr. Millar: Yes, that’s right. I would agree with that.

Senator Forest: Thank you.
[English]

The Chair: We have come to the end of the time frame for
this panel. To the witnesses, I would like to thank you for your
dedication. This was very informative. As you have seen by the
questions posed to you, the motto of the Finance Committee —
which has a common denominator to yours — is transparency,
accountability, predictability and reliability. Thank you for your
dedication. You’ve been very professional.

Honourable senators, our next meeting will be tomorrow,
Thursday, November 26, at 3:30 p.m. ET. Before I officially
adjourn the meeting, I want to share with you that we have been
informed that Minister Duclos, the President of the Treasury
Board, has accepted our invitation and should appear next
Tuesday, December 1, at 12:30 p.m. ET.

Senator Duncan, did you have a question or a comment?

Senator Duncan: If there is time, Mr. Chair, | was going to
request a written response to the question I put in the chat room
and ask it verbally of the Finance officials.

The Chair: You can ask your question immediately.

[Frangais]
M. Millar : Merci d’avoir posé cette question.

Le gouvernement a signé un accord avec la province de
I’Alberta et a pris connaissance de cette situation. L’une des
conditions qui figurent dans 1’accord avec 1’Alberta pour
procéder au transfert de ces fonds est que 1’ Alberta, dans le cadre
de D’administration du programme, doit s’assurer que les
municipalités touchées par ces puits inactifs approuvent le
processus de nettoyage.

Bien sir, sur le site Web de la province de 1’Alberta, vous
pouvez aussi voir les enveloppes budgétaires prévues dans le
cadre de ce programme, ce qui permet d’indiquer au public et au
gouvernement fédéral que ce processus est bien mis en place.

Le sénateur Forest : Merci. Il n’y a donc pas de condition
précise a respecter, a savoir un lien direct pour indiquer que les
entreprises se sont acquittées du paiement complet des taxes
municipales qui sont dues, mais il existe une entente de
collaboration avec la province de 1’ Alberta.

M. Millar : Oui, en effet. Je suis d’accord avec cette

précision.
Le sénateur Forest : Merci.
[Traduction]

Le président : Nous sommes arrivés a la fin du temps prévu
pour ce groupe de témoins. Je tiens a tous vous remercier pour le
temps que vous nous avez consacré. Vous nous avez appris
beaucoup de choses. Comme vous avez pu le constater a la
lumiére des questions qui vous ont été posées, le travail du
Comité des finances s’articule autour de la transparence, de la
reddition de comptes, de la prévisibilité et de la fiabilité, des
considérations qui sont loin de vous étre étrangéres. Merci pour
votre dévouement et le professionnalisme dont vous faites
montre.

Chers collégues, notre prochaine réunion aura lieu demain, le
jeudi 26 novembre, a 15 h 30, heure de I’Est. Avant de lever
officiellement la séance, je dois vous annoncer que le ministre
Duclos, président du Conseil du Trésor, a accepté notre
invitation et devrait comparaitre devant le comité jeudi prochain,
soit le 1¢T décembre, a 12 h 30, heure de I’Est.

Sénatrice aviez une

commentaire?

Duncan, vous question ou un

La sénatrice Duncan : Si le temps le permet, monsieur le
président, je voudrais demander une réponse écrite a la question
que j’ai inscrite dans la salle de clavardage et aussi la poser
directement aux représentants du ministére des Finances.

Le président : Vous pouvez poser votre question dés
maintenant.
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Senator Duncan: How much is Canada paying for
immunization and therapeutics for Canadians for whom they
have responsibility for health care, including First Nations — on-
and off-reserve — Métis and Inuit not covered by provincial
health care plans; Canadians serving overseas, if not covered by
the health care plans; the Armed Forces; and the RCMP? How
does Canada intend to ensure that these Canadians receive the
services, immunization and drugs that are not covered under
provincial health care plans? How much is Canada paying for the
people they have responsibility for, and could Finance get that
number for us? Could we also have some assurance that there is
a commitment to ensure these individuals receive services? This
expenditure crosses many departments.

The Chair: Ms. Bess, would you comment in writing and
submit the answer?

Ms. Bess: Thank you very much for the question, senator.
Yes, I see the question in the chat. We’ll work with the
departments to see what we can get on that.

The Chair: Please be mindful, Ms. Bess, in communicating
with our clerk, that we have a time frame for tabling our report in
the Senate.

Ms. Bess: Will do. Thank you.

The Chair: On this, honourable senators, thank you very
much.

(The committee adjourned.)

La sénatrice Duncan : Combien le Canada paie-t-il pour
I’immunisation et les soins a offrir aux Canadiens dont il a la
responsabilit¢ du point de vue de la santé, y compris les
membres des Premiéres Nations — dans les réserves et a
I’extérieur — les Métis et les Inuits qui ne sont pas couverts par
les régimes provinciaux de soins de santé; les militaires
canadiens déployés a 1’étranger, s’ils ne sont pas couverts par
des régimes de santé; les membres des Forces armées
canadiennes et de la GRC? Comment le Canada entend-il
s’assurer que ces Canadiens vont recevoir les services, les
vaccins et les médicaments nécessaires méme s’ils ne sont pas
couverts par un régime provincial de soins de santé? Le
ministére des Finances pourrait-il nous indiquer quelles sont les
sommes versées par le Canada pour ces gens dont il a la
responsabilité? Pouvez-vous également nous donner certaines
garanties quant a l’engagement a s’assurer que ces gens-la
recoivent effectivement les services dont ils ont besoin? C’est un
secteur de dépenses qui touche de nombreux ministéres.

Le président : Madame Bess, pouvez-vous commenter
briévement et nous fournir ultérieurement une réponse écrite?

Mme Bess : Merci beaucoup pour la question, sénatrice. Je la
vois effectivement dans la salle de clavardage. Nous verrons
avec les différents ministéres quels renseignements nous
pouvons compiler a ce sujet.

Le président : Je vous prierais, madame Bess, de bien vouloir
transmettre votre réponse a notre greffiére en n’oubliant pas que
nous avons un échéancier a respecter pour le dépot de notre
rapport au Sénat.

Mme Bess : Nous allons en tenir compte. Merci.

Le président : Sur ce, honorables sénateurs, merci beaucoup.

(La séance est levée.)




